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s the integrated one-stop LED energy

management services provider, we are
committed to providing reliable, efficient and
energy-saving LED backlights, LED lighting
products as well as comprehensive lighting
energy management solutions for sizeable
business corporations and public utilities
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CORPORATE PROFILE
NG M)y

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited (“Wai Chi Holdings” or the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries collectively referred to
as the “Group”) was established in Hong Kong over 30 years ago.
The Group is one of China’s top manufacturers of high-quality Light-
Emitting Diode (“LED”) backlight and LED lighting products, with
its operations covering research and development (“R&D”), design,
manufacturing, sales, etc. It was recognised as the world’s largest
manufacturer of LED backlights for automobile onboard displays,
in terms of product shipment. It also offers comprehensive lighting
energy management solutions for sizeable business corporations
and public utilities. The Group recently expanded its business into
sourcing semiconductor memory chips to capture the growing
demand and help facilitate the development of the industry.

Since its listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 November 2014 (stock
code: 1305), the Group has been dedicated to upgrading its brand
value and becoming one of the leading producers in China’s high-end
LED backlights and lighting products.

Throughout the years, the Group has been monitoring the industry
trends closely and innovating technologies actively, achieving
significant R&D results. The Group has successfully developed over
1,000 new LED backlight products and over 100 new LED lighting
products in Hong Kong, China, Taiwan and Japan, among which 234
patents were registered in the PRC.

The Group has comprehensive production facilities in Shenzhen
and Huizhou in the Guangdong province and Yichang in the Hubei
province. The Group’s products can be categorized into 2 main
groups under LED backlight products and LED lighting business. LED
backlight products are classified into 3 types, including: 1) automobile
on-board displays; 2) television displays; and 3) other industrial
equipment displays. LED lighting business is divided into 2 types,
including commercial lighting and public lighting.
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Mr. Chen Chung Po (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
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Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang
Mr. Ho Chi Wai

COMPANY SECRETARY
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
LTFEH

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Chen Chung Po
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

6th Floor, Liven House
63 King Yip Street
Kwun Tong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

AUDITORS

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
17th Floor, Windsor House
311 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

Guantao & Chow (as to Hong Kong law)
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01305
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

O-Bank Co., Ltd.

Suites 3210-3214

32nd Floor, Gateway Tower 6
Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
11th Floor, Citi Tower

83 Hoi Bun Road

Kwun Tong

Kowloon, Hong Kong

Cayman Islands principal share registrar and

transfer office

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office

Tricor Investor Services Limited

17th Floor

Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREE

\/\/elJphokipragmatm and
prudent business management,
emphasize the flexible use of resources,
and shall always be at our optimal

condition to respond to market changes
and explore opportunities
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”), its
subsidiaries, and the board of directors of the Company (“Directors”
or the “Board”), | am pleased to present the audited annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

With the drastically-less-lethal Omicron variant of the Novel
Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) dominating the pandemic, 2022 was a
year the world finally focused on healing wounds and recovering
from losses. However, the lingering COVID-19 infections, the intense
war in Ukraine, and the uncertainties such incidents brought to the
markets caused the world economy to suffer a widespread and sharp
slowdown.
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For China, 2022 was also challenging as the country went through a
period of turbulence with the rest of the world. The highly-infectious
Omicron variant caused waves of COVID-19 cases that triggered
mass lockdowns in many regions of the country, halting its supply
chains and putting its economic growth at risk. In the meantime, as
global geopolitical tension keeps escalating, China’s chip makers took
a solid hit when the US implemented heavy sanctions against China’s
semiconductor industry.

Looking back at 2022, manufacturing industries were taking up
increasing shares in the overall economy in China, indicating a healthy
and upgraded growth model. Against such a backdrop, China’s
LED backlight industry had an eventful year, with the immense
growth momentum coming mainly from the automobile onboard
display segment. According to Sigmaintel, a professional research
and advisory company, it is estimated that the global shipment of
automobile onboard front display panels amounted to about 180
million pieces in 2022, an increase of approximately 11.5% year-on-
year. BOE Varitronix Limited, a leading Chinese market player listed
on the Main Board of HKEX, announced that it is expecting net profit
growth of 70%-90% for 2022, citing automobile onboard display
panels being the predominant growth driver.
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The continued boom in automobile onboard displays was not taken
for granted in China as the country’s 13-year-long subsidy to the new
energy car industry ended in 2022. Though this inevitably affected
the automobile market, demand for onboard display panels continues
to increase as automakers now, more than ever, compete to equip
intelligent, advanced, and high-quality in-vehicle displays with larger
sizes and in greater numbers. According to CINNO Research, the
average electronic automobile dashboard size in China in the third
quarter of 2022 reached 9.4 inches, growing from 8.7 inches in
2021 and 8.3 inches in 2020. The growing dashboard sizes are just
the tip of the iceberg regarding how automobile onboard display
technologies are evolving. The technological and capital barrier
means it might be too late now for new players to enter this lucrative
market while current players are competing to keep up with the
rapidly developing trends.

Unlike the automobile display segment, LED backlights for other
equipment, including TV, smartphone, notebook, tablet, etc.,
continued their downslope journey, suffering from demand drop
brought by global economic pressure and intensified threats from
more advanced technologies.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Driven mainly by the rapid expansion of backlight for automotive,
the Group’s overall revenue grew by approximately 15.3%, from
approximately HK$1,922,595,000 in 2021 to approximately
HK$2,216,352,000 in 2022. Affected by the COVID-19 curbs,
including conducting regular polymerase chain reaction (“PCR”) tests
for our employees, arranging quarantine hotels for staff on business
trips, and accommodating the disrupted supply chain, the Group’s
operation cost reached a high level during 2022. In addition, US
dollar appreciation caused us some loss in the exchange rate. All of
these external factors weighed on our profit margin. During the year,
our overall gross profit amounted to approximately HK$262,691,000,
a decrease of approximately 6.9% compared to the approximate
HK$282,197,000 from the year ended 31 December 2021. The gross
profit margin was 11.9% (2021: 14.7%) during the year.
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By segments, revenue from backlights for automobile onboard
displays achieved a new record of approximately HK$1,350,820,000
during the year, up about 16.6% from approximately
HK$1,158,602,000 in the previous year. Though the profit margin
has room to improve, this segment was the biggest growth driver.
According to CINNO Research, the Group accounted for 18% of
global shipments in LED backlights for automobile onboard displays
during the first half of 2022, also ranked number 1 during the past
two years. Orders of our automotive backlight product were inflowing
rapidly, which outperformed the capacity of our current storage
facilities. As a solution, we rented a transshipment depot to meet
our clients’ demands, the cost of which, among others, was also a
limiting factor on our profit margin during the year.

Considering our core businesses, being LED backlight and
lighting products, as a whole, revenue amounted to approximately
HK$1,712,035,000, up approximately 6.8% compared to the
approximate HK$1,603,450,000 in 2021. Gross profit was
approximately HK$254,043,000, a decrease of approximately 7.7 %.

Under the sanctions the US imposed on memory chips made
in China, we were not able to continue the expansion of our
semiconductor production line. However, the sourcing of
semiconductor products remained an income stream, contributing a
revenue of approximately HK$504,317,000, up approximately 58.0%.
This segment provided a stable income stream allowing us to focus
on optimising our backlight products.
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PROSPECTS

After re-assessing the situation, China’s central government made the
decision to ease the COVID-19 limitations and reopen in December
2022, sending a strong signal that the country is moving away from
stringent curbs. Echoing this, in the January 2023 issue of World
Economic Outlook by the International Monetary Fund (“IMF”), the
global economic growth is projected to be 2.9% in 2023, though still
a slowdown compared to 2021, it is 0.2 percentage points higher
than the IMF’s previous estimation published in October 2022, citing
pent-up demand in numerous economies, a faster fall in inflation, and
the recent reopening of China.

For businesses, it is widely expected that the negative impacts of
major central banks’ tightening monetary policies will further emerge.
Geopolitical tensions will also add to downside risks. External demand
weakness will continue to affect China’s exports in the coming year.
However, the Chinese economy is resilient and the fundamentals are
solid. Mobility and activities are quickly recovering after COVID-19,
and the effects of economic stabilisation measures introduced in the
past year are gradually emerging.

Amid all the opportunities and challenges, 2023 will present
an exciting journey for LED panel and backlight makers. OLED
technology is becoming increasingly affordable in applications for
cellphones, notebooks, and TVs, while the development of Micro-
LED panels is claiming a noticeable share in ultra-high-end markets.
Considering the price tag of Micro-LED, and the lack of brightness
and short lifespan of OLED panels, they are not enjoying much
preference in the automotive industry. Mini LED display panels, with
a better viewing experience than traditional LCD panels and longer
lifespans than OLED panels, are quickly taking over the automobile
onboard display market. Many claimed that 2022 witnessed the mini
LED’s debut as a mainstream in-vehicle display application. Based on
the data from CMMA (7 B & T 18 & 17 2 # Mini/MicroLED 8 '~ £ 3
&), demand for in-vehicle mini LED backlight, which was less than
0.1 million pieces in 2021, will quickly increase to 4.5 million pieces in
2025, with a CAGR of 159%.
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In view of the above, Wai Chi has already invested more effort and
resources into the research and development (‘R&D”) of automobile
onboard display backlights, including mini-LED backlights. In the
meantime, the supply chain in our industry started to integrate
as many panel makers are now producing auto-pilot and driver-
assistance modules, and some tier 1 suppliers in the market have
already approached us for the procurement of complex products. In
the future, we look to expand our business towards lower-stream in
the supply chain to fit in with the industry integration. In addition, to
capture the technological advancement, an expanded and enhanced
R&D centre is on our agenda. To meet the need of our booming
backlight business, as well as the growing panel sizes, we are also
looking for an opportunity to expand our production facilities and
storage space, ideally in a location nearby our current factories, so as
to reduce the cost and risks arising from the transportation of delicate
products.

After a few years of navigating through the ever-changing business
environment, we remain prudent and alert in dealing with the
technology market. However, business growth were recorded, even
under difficult times. We now excitedly look forward to riding on the
expansion of the automobile onboard display market and further
optimising our profitability.

Mr. Chen Chung Po
Executive Director and Chairman

24 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THE WL S

INDUSTRY REVIEW

On September 14th, 2022, the head of the World Health Organization
said at a press conference that the end of the pandemic was “in
sight” while he urged countries to continue to push for higher
vaccination rates. Though many countries have finally declared the
end of the COVID-19 emergency by the end of 2022, the path to
recovery is not easy, given the pressing inflation and recession risks
and the rising global political tension. According to IMF, in 2022,
the world output registered its weakest growth since 2001, except
for the global financial crisis and the acute phase of the COVID-19
pandemic.

As for China, though the year opened well and held its steady position
for the first half, circumstances drastically worsened in the second
half, as the international environment became more turbulent and
mass COVID-19 infections hit domestically. Adding to the challenges,
the sweeping export bans imposed by the U.S. against chips made
in China derailed the expansion plans of the country’s chipmakers
and left the whole semiconductor sector embattled. The year was
concluded with GDP growth of 3% in China, missing the central
government’s target of 5.5%.
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For China’s LED and other manufacturers, 2022 also presented a
complex profile of pressing factors. Since stringent COVID-19 curbs
remained in place across the country for most of the year, raw
material prices were unstable, and transportation, especially long-
distance, was unreliable. The anti-epidemic requirements also meant
lost working days and extra expenses to arrange for employees’
regular COVID-19 tests and sick leave days. In the meantime, waves
of COVID-19 outbreaks hit regions including the Yangze-river delta,
where China’s richest cities and biggest car markets, like Shanghai,
are located, and the Central area, home to many optical-electronics,
telecommunications, and equipment manufacturing factories.
However, these are now considered problems of the past, as China
introduced a shift of COVID-19 policies by the end of the year, and
infections soon peaked, signaling the end of an era.

Within China’s LED backlight industry, manufacturers experienced
different business environments depending on the types of products
they focused on. For those producing backlights for large-size LED
panels, mainly used for TVs, the market continued to shrink as OLED
technology continued to phase out traditional LCD TVs. As for the
market of small panels, mainly used in cellphones and other electronic
gadgets, the profitability of backlight manufacturers was minimal
since global electronic sales itself plateaued and competition from
OLED and micro-LED left LCD panels with little bargaining power.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THEZWLER S

Manufacturers are now rushing into the medium-sized panel market,
lured by the automobile onboard display sector, which stood out as a
highly expandable and profitable business despite all the challenges
mentioned above. Internationally, the global in-vehicle display panel
market is expected to reach US$10.453 billion in 2022, an increase of
5% from 2021, according to FuijiKeizai, a Japanese market research
agency. By 2026, its market size will reach US$12.323 billion, an
increase of 23.8% from 2021. Regionally, in-vehicle panel buyers
are increasingly turning to Chinese manufacturers as the country
accounted for the biggest cut in global car manufacture and sales.
In addition, the global energy crisis and inflation also disadvantaged
international competitors in terms of manufacturing and operating
cost. According to CINNO Research’s Quarterly Automotive Backlight
Market Analysis Report, in the first half of 2022, in terms of product
shipment, the biggest five automobile onboard display backlight
manufacturers in the world are all Chinese, among which, the Group
ranked first.
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Despite the luring opportunities, newcomers to the market are facing
strong headwinds as in-vehicle panels go through evolving trends
that make the industry more and more demanding on backlights. The
first noticeable sign is the sizes of the in-vehicle screens. According
to the automobile section of Gao Gong Intelligent (& L& &E;95), in
the first half of 2020, only 32.98% of passenger cars in China were
equipped with 10-inch or above central control screens, but it had
increased to 52.58% by the first half of 2022. The penetration rate
of multi-screen is also growing. According to ICVTank’s prediction,
the penetration rate of full LCD dashboards will increase from 30%
in 2020 to 70% in 2025, and the penetration rate of central control
screens, streaming rearview mirrors, and HUD head-up displays will
increase from 80%, 7% and 10% in 2020 to 100%, 30% and 30%,
respectively, in 2025. At the same time, more and more models with
co-pilot entertainment screens and rear-row entertainment screens
are entering the market.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) system implemented
by the Group continues to contribute to its cost control through
timely monitoring of its operation process to promote information
exchange between functions, storing and managing operational data.
It has enhanced financial and work efficiency with a higher level of
automation during the manufacturing process. The Group is also
exploring vendor-managed inventory systems to facilitate smooth
transactions with its customers and further improve its operating
system.

The total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately HK$2,216,352,000, representing an increase of 15.3%
compared to approximately HK$1,922,595,000 for the year ended
31 December 2021. Considering the core business segments, being
LED backlight and LED lighting products, the Group’s core revenue
was approximately HK$1,712,035,000, representing an increase
of 6.8% as compared to approximately HK$1,603,450,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2021. Revenue from the sales of LED
backlight products was approximately HK$1,620,565,000 (2021:
approximately HK$1,454,015,000), representing an increase of
11.5%. Such an increase was mainly contributed by the record-high
sales of the backlight for automobile onboard displays, which grew
by approximately 16.6%. Revenue from the sales of LED lighting
products was approximately HK$91,470,000 (2021: approximately
HK$149,435,000), representing a decrease of 38.8%, falling back
from the previous year’s expansion of approximately 101%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THRZWLE S Hh

LED Backlight Business

The three types of the Group’s LED backlight products are: 1)
automobile onboard displays; 2) television displays; and 3) other
industrial equipment displays. For the year ended 31 December
2022, revenue derived from LED backlight products in automobile
onboard displays, television displays and industrial equipment
displays were approximately HK$1,350,820,000, HK$37,311,000
and HK$232,434,000, respectively.

Under a booming demand, backlights for automobile onboard
displays have been the core growth driver of the Group, recording
a 16.6% increase in sales for the year ended 31 December 2022,
following continuous and rapid expansion in the past few years. It
continued to be the largest contributor to the Group’s LED backlight
business during the year ended 31 December 2022, representing
approximately 83.4% of total LED backlight product sales (2021:
approximately 79.7%).

The demand for LED backlights for television, after a comeback in
the previous year, fell back in 2022. As a result, the Group’s LED
backlight for television displays recorded a 43.2% decrease in sales,
amounting to approximately HK$37,311,000 (2021: approximately
HK$65,728,000). Equipment display backlight products recorded a
mild increase of 1.2% in revenue for the year ended 31 December
2022.

LED Backlight
Revenue Breakdown

LED B R EK

REBHNZHLEDSE KNERE  )BEHETR
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LED & ¥} For the year ended 31 December
L ONEE HE12A31HLEE
2022 2021

2022 £ 2021 &
HK$’000 HK$’000 %
T FHET %
Automobile Displays BE AR 1,350,820 834 1,158,602 79.7
Televisions IR 37,311 2.3 65,728 4.5
Equipment Displays BN 232,434 14.3 229,685 156.8
1,620,565 100.0 1,454,015 100.0
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Lighting Service Business

The Group’s LED lighting business is classified into two categories,
namely public lighting and commercial lighting. The Group provides
various services including products, lighting solutions design,
installation, and maintenance etc. During the year ended 31 December
2022, revenues from public lighting and commercial lighting were
approximately HK$905,000 and HK$90,565,000, respectively (2021:
approximately HK$6,101,000 and HK$143,334,000), both observing
reasonable fallbacks after their sales volume being doubled in the
previous year.
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Public Lighting 7~ FRREA 905 1.0 6,101 4.1
Commercial Lighting 74 A RR BA 90,565 99.0 143,334 96.9
91,470 100.0 149,435 100.0
Sourcing Business RBER

In order to secure a stable source of income to fund the Group’s
optimising of its product mix, it engaged in sourcing high-tech
products. Leveraging on the Group’s business connections and
expertise, this segment is now centred around memory chips related
products.

Sourcing Business
Revenue Breakdown

REIIRENRARRRBLERMAARHR
B ASRERERBIHMRER BEX
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BERHCHERER

REBEK For the year ended 31 December
Y A\ BA 48 HZE12A31ALEE
2022 2021
2022 2021 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHET
Semiconductor memory chips FERERFTA
— Packaging and testing — 58 17,406 6,244
— Products sourcing —EmEE 486,911 312,901
504,317 319,145
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THRZWLE S Hh

QUALITY CONTROL

At the Company, a high level of quality control has proven to garner
customer loyalty. The Group has established stringent quality
control procedures to ensure the quality of its products. From the
very beginning of designing a product to each stage throughout the
manufacturing process, until the product is completed and stored,
the Group’s quality control staff ensures excellence in every aspect.
There is a set of established procedures in selecting and approving
new suppliers and raw materials, and thorough testing of product
samples is carried out before mass production of the products.

The Group owns a series of advanced production and testing
equipment for improving quality control. The Group has been awarded
various certifications, including ISO 9001:2008 and ISO 14001:2004
for quality and environmental management systems, which serve as
an important assurance of product quality and reliability.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

As today’s consumers look for intelligence, diversity, and integration
in many tech-related products, market research is vital to understand
the ever-evolving needs and preferences of customers. Highly
valuing R&D capabilities, the Group has become an agile and sharp
industry player for its efforts in this field. R&D not only keeps the
Group relevant in market trends, and retains customer loyalty, but
also enables the Group to identify niche markets that offer profitable
opportunities ahead of peers.

The Group’s R&D centre is located in our production plant in Huizhou.
The Group engages in various R&D activities, including (i) concurrent
development of new product designs with our customers; (ii)
improvement of product quality, efficiency and functionality of existing
products; (iii) in-project calibration and optimization of the production
processes and capability of the equipment; (iv) introduction and
promotion of the use of new production technologies and new
production materials; and (v) assessment of the future prospect and
development trend of the LED industry. The Group has achieved a
number of technological advancements and breakthroughs over the
years, and, as of 31 December 2022, the Group held 234 patents
registered in the PRC. Looking forward, the Group seeks to expand
its R&D centre and talent base, striving to be always prepared for
emerging opportunities so as to capture optimal business deals.
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AWARDS FOR CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Wai Chi Opto Technology
Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, has received the Green Office
Label awarded under the Green Office Awards Labelling Scheme
(“GOALS”) organised by the World Green Organization (“WGO”) for
the sixth year, in recognition of the Group’s continued efforts in aiding
environmental protection.

WGO launched GOALS in 2013 with the objectives of raising
awareness of global environmental issues and encouraging
corporations to implement the best green practices in their offices
in 9 stipulated aspects of operations, including energy savings,
water savings, waste reduction, paper and printing reduction,
green procurement, IT use and disposal, transportation, education
and awareness, and finally green innovation. Companies have to
undergo a process of stringent green audit, during which the Group
has demonstrated its commitment in corporate social responsibility
by incorporating its green mission into daily practice and corporate
culture.

PROSPECTS

Successive shocks from political fragmentation, war, the aftermath
of the pandemic, trade tensions, etc., have kept world economic
uncertainty aggravated. However, economic growth proved fairly
resilient, exhibiting strong labour markets, robust consumption,
better-than-expected adaptation to the energy crisis in Europe, and
signs of improvement in inflation across regions. China’s earlier-than-
anticipated re-opening also paved the way for a rapid rebound in
activities. IMF believes global growth will slow down from 3.4 % in
2022 10 2.9% in 2023 but then rebound to 3.1% in 2024, much more
encouraging than the Fund’s earlier projections.
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As Asia propels a larger share of global economic growth, China
is believed to be one of the major engines. IMF projected China’s
GDP growth to increase from 3% in 2022 to 5.2% in 2023, driven
by a rebound in private consumption amid the reopening and
the subsequent swift adaptation. This meant a great relief for all
manufacturers in the country, who can now expect the end of
COVID-19-related operating costs, a more stable supply chain, and
much fewer unexpected emergencies to hinder their business. But
since consumer electronic sales hit a plateau, the overall demand for
display panels, especially those for personal electronics and TVs, is
still expecting a drop for the coming year.

In the automotive market, after years of rapid growth pushed by
the new energy sector, sales are cooling down. Passenger car
makers are now competing to provide the best driving and in-vehicle
entertaining experience, making onboard display systems one of
the forefront battlefields. According to Digitimes Research, global
shipments of in-vehicle displays, which were 141 million units in
2020, will reach 253 million units by 2026, with a CAGR of 10.24%.
Along with screen quantity, sizes are also growing. According to
CINNO Research, the average LED automotive dashboard size on
Chinese passenger cars will grow from 9.4 inches in the third quarter
of 2022 to 9.6 inches in 2023 and subsequently 10.0 inches in 2024.
Besides, the panel sizes are starting to standardise, meaning less
production waste and higher profit margin for manufacturers. There’s
also a significant trend of industry integration as many panel-focused
manufacturers are producing complex in-vehicle modules featuring
their expertise in LED. Able players in the market are adding more
value to their products. In terms of display technology, traditional
LCD panels will still take up the bulk of in-vehicle screens for their
durability, reliability, and cost-effectiveness. But Mini LED panels have
become the major favorite and selling point for many mid-high-end
automobile vehicles, including Li Auto’s flagship L9 SUV, Nio’s latest
ES8 and its prequel ES7 as well as Cadilac’s futuristic LYRIO electric
model, etc.
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In view of the ample opportunities in the market, the Group is
prioritising its LED backlight for automotive onboard displays. Mini
LED backlights are in our R&D pipeline, enabling us to stay relevant
in the market trend. In addition, we look to expand our portfolio
downwards in the supply chain to introduce more value-added
products. To catch the evolving technologies in our industry, we
are also investing more resources to train and educate our talents.
Besides, we are working on our vendor-managed inventory system to
provide better services to our clients and reduce operation costs.

With an optimised product mix, improved operation system,
and favourable market conditions, we believe our LED segment,
particularly the automotive line, will continue to expand in the coming
years. As a result of our growing business, our storage space
reached its maximum capacity during the year ended 31 December
2022, leading us to the rental of a transshipment depot to meet the
booming demand from our clients. In fact, at the current pace of
expansion, we expect our production facilities to reach full capacity
by as early as 2025. Thus, we are actively looking for an optimal
location to expand our production facilities, ideally, a space near our
current factories, to reduce the cost of product transportation and
packaging, as well as keep the risk of breakage low.

Looking ahead, with recognition from the market and trust from our
loyal customers, we are confident in maintaining our leading position
as the top manufacturer of LED backlights for automobile onboard
displays. In the meantime, we will stay prudent and resilient to any
possible shift in market conditions.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the sources of revenue
for the Group were the sales of LED backlights, LED lighting
services, and the sourcing of semiconductor products. The
sales of the Group’s LED backlight products were approximately
HK$1,620,565,000, representing an increase of approximately 11.5%
from 2021, which was mainly attributable to the continuous increase
in sales of automobile onboard display LED backlight products. The
revenue from the Group’s LED lighting services was approximately
HK$91,470,000, representing a decrease of approximately 38.8%,
which is an expected fallback after the 101.0% expansion recorded
in the previous year. The segment of the semiconductor product
sourcing business recorded sales of approximately HK$504,317,000
(2021: HK$319,145,000), representing solid growth and providing a
stream of income as the Group continues to upgrade its product mix.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2022, gross profit from the
sales of LED backlight products and LED lighting services was
approximately HK$254,043,000, representing a decrease of 7.7%
from approximately HK$275,166,000 in 2021. Gross profit margin
for these two segments decreased by 2.6 percentage points from
17.2% in 2021 to 14.6% in 2022. The decrease in gross profit and
gross profit margin was mainly due to 1) the increase in operating
expenses under the impacts of COVID-19 curbs, including regular
PCR tests for all employees, quarantine arrangements for travelling
staff, and disruption in the supply chain; 2) foreign exchange losses
due to the depreciation of RMB against USD. These impacts
have already started to diminish and we expect a better operating
environment in the coming year. Gross profit and gross profit margin
from the sourcing of semiconductor products were HK$8,648,000
and 1.7% (2021: HK$7,031,000 and 2.2%) respectively, remaining
relative stability. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
overall gross profit was approximately HK$262,691,000, representing
a decrease of 6.9% from approximately HK$282,197,000 in 2021.
Overall gross profit margin was 11.9% in 2022, representing a
decrease of 2.8 percentage points from 14.7% in 2021.

22

Bt % [] 8

A

HZE2022F12A831HLEFE  AEERK
ARBHEELEDE X EM - LEDRBA IR &
REBLEEER AEBLEDY XESNH
E 54 5 1,620,565,00078 7T * 820214 +
FHI11.5% T E ZE R R B HFE R[LED
EXERREERETE G - A& ELEDR
BE AR 75 B9 U A 49 & 91,470,000 7T B 49
38.8% ' =t EFHLK101.0%1& H 78 Hf [B]
FoNEREMRBEBSABZEHELRLD
504,317,000 7t (20214 : 319,145,000 i
L) ERTEE  WEERASEESAREE
mAAE MR ARIR o

EFRENR

HE2022F 12 A1 HILFE » $HELED A X
7 in M2 LED 8 BA AR 7% 89 E 1) 49 /&2 254,043,000
T 0 82021 F H 49275,166,000 %8 7T
DT7.7% o %W E 5 2B &) T ) B 2021 F 1Y
17.2% T ¥ 2.6 8 'H 7 B 2= 2022 F 1) 14.6% °
FRREFMETEDEZEHMN1) S COVID-19
REIEREAFE  CERAEIN - 815 TE 5
HETAB THETPCRIEE - H = A ERFEBE
THEREEEFRE  2) AREEETRES
REE BB - xS 2 MBS &M
A RFNEEIRBESEN - FEBERK
R EFREF XS R A8,648,000% 7T &
1.7% (20214 : 7,031,000/ 7T % 2.2%) ' 1%
BT  -EHE2022F12 A1 HIEFE -
REE SRS R EFN LA 262,691,000 7T
2021 5 K #) 282,197,000 7 7T 38 42 6.9% ©
2022 F M) EEEF K A 11.9% 82021 F 1
14.7% Tk2.8 A& D2 -

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | 5B ER Q7



Selling and Distribution Expenses

Labour costs, sales commissions and transportation costs were the
Group’s major selling and distribution expenses. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses
was approximately HK$36,009,000 which has decreased by 1.2%
compared to approximately HK$36,437,000 for the year 2021.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses refer to the general expenses incurred in
offices and factories. The Group focuses on effective management
by means of resource consolidation in the Shenzhen and Huizhou
factories. However, the COVID-19 curbs have induced operating
disturbance, causing an increase in expenses. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group’s administrative expenses were
approximately HK$194,493,000 which has increased by 18.7%
compared to approximately HK$163,848,000 for the year 2021.

Other Income

During the year ended 31 December 2022, other income was
approximately HK$52,335,000, representing an increase of 125.2%
in comparison with approximately HK$23,239,000 for the year 2021,
mainly due to the increase in interest income arising from bank
savings.

Bank Balances and Cash

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank balances
and cash amounted to approximately HK$257,912,000, representing
an increase of 129.6% from approximately HK$112,312,000 in 2021.
With various COVID-19 outbreaks throughout the Group’s supply
chain, shipments of its raw material and final products were severely
disrupted, causing a widened gap between its receivables and
payables. In order to maintain service stability, a significantly larger
amount of cash was held to stay ready for any emergencies.
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Pledged Deposit

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s pledged
deposit amounted to approximately HK$562,630,000(2021:
approximately HK$342,017,000). Having only one property in PRC
as collateral limited the Group’s options for corporate loans needed
for business expansion at times, thus, as a norm under the current
macroeconomic policies, the Group was provided with an alternative
of savings pledged loans. The Group is currently consolidating its
assets and savings hoping to simplify and improve the situation in the
coming year.

Taxation

Taxation comprised current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities. Two of the Group’s subsidiaries, Wai Chi Opto
Technology (Shenzhen) Limited (“Shenzhen Wai Chi”) and Huizhou
Wai Chi Electronics Company Limited, are qualified as “High-Tech
Enterprises” in the PRC and granted certain tax benefits, including a
preferential enterprise income tax rate of 15% instead of the statutory
rate of 25%. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
tax expenses were approximately HK$377,000 (2021: Tax credit of
approximately HK$69,000), which increased alongside the expansion
of business.

Inventories

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s inventories was approximately
HK$276,763,000, representing a decrease of 11.3% as compared
to approximately HK$312,029,000 as at 31 December 2021. The
decrease in inventories was an expected fallback after the Group
strategically increased its inventories in the previous year to offset the
anticipated increase in raw material prices.

Trade Receivables

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s net trade receivables
amounted to approximately HK$749,923,000, which increased by
11.5% as compared to approximately HK$672,316,000 as at 31
December 2021. This was attributable to the increase in sales of LED
backlight products.
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Trade Payables

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade payables amounted to
approximately HK$393,639,000, which decrease mildly by 1.7% as
compared to approximately HK$400,649,000 as at 31 December
2021.

Completion of an Acquisition

On 11 November 2021, Techwide Management Company Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as Purchaser,
and Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu (being an executive Director), Mr. Yiu Kwan
Lok (being brother of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu and an associate thereof) and
Ms. Yiu Oi Tung (being sister of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu and an associate
thereof), as the Vendors, entered into an agreement for the acquisition
by the Company as purchaser of the entire equity interest held by the
Vendors in Maxtone Electronics Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability, being the Target Company, at the
consideration of HK$91.0 million which shall be settled by way of
cash. The Target Company held three units of industrial premises
in Hong Kong, one being leased to the Company as office and
warehouse, one being leased to a third party, and the other vacant.
On 10 January 2022, in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the said agreement, the said acquisition was completed, and the
Target Company became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. The acquisition was financed by internal resources
of the Group. For details regarding the acquisition, please refer to
the Company’s announcements dated 11 November 2021 and 10
January 2022.
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Grant of Share Options under the Share Option
Scheme

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 28 June
2022. The terms in this paragraph shall have the same meanings
as those defined in the Company’s announcement dated 28 June
2022. On 28 June 2022, the Grant Date, the Board announced that
a total of 4,710,000 Share Options were granted by the Company to
a number of eligible participants, being the Grantees, subject to the
acceptance of the Grantees, under the share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 27 October 2014, valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing from the date of its adoption, that would
expire on 25 October 2024, being the Scheme. The Share Options
will entitle the Grantees to subscribe for 4,710,000 ordinary Shares
of HK$0.01 each of the Company, representing approximately 2.2%
of the total number of Shares in issue as of the Grant Date. The aim
is to award employees’ services and contributions to the Company,
the Grantees included directors and employees of the Company. The
exercise price of the Share Options granted was HK$1.49 per Share,
with a 10-year validity period from the Grant Date, and the exercise
period will commence on the date immediately following the expiry
of twelve months from the Grant Date up to and inclusive of 27 June
2032. For details regarding the grant of Share Options, please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 28 June 2022.
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Adoption of Share Award Scheme and Share
Option Scheme and Termination of Existing Share
Option Scheme

Reference is made to the circular (the “Circular”) of the Company
and the notice (the “Notice”) of the extraordinary general meeting,
both dated 1 December 2022. Terms used in this paragraph shall
have the same meanings as those defined in the Circular. The Board
announced that on 29 November 2022 (after trading hours), it has
resolved to propose the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and
termination of the Existing Share Option Scheme. The purposes
and objectives of the Share Option Scheme are to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions of the Eligible Participants to the
Group by granting Options to them as incentives or rewards thereto
in order to retain them for the continual operation and development of
the Group and to attract suitable personnel for further development
of the Group. The Existing Share Option Scheme, adopted by the
Company on 27 October 2014, was valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing from the date of its adoption, and would expire
on 25 October 2024, and according to its terms, may be terminated
by an ordinary resolution in general meeting. In view of (i) adopting
the Amended Rules for the Company’s Share Option Scheme;
and (i) the expiration of the Existing Share Option Scheme on 25
October 2024, the Board proposed to take the opportunity to adopt
the Share Option Scheme and terminate the Existing Share Option
Scheme. In addition, the Board is of the view that granting of equity
incentives is an effective instrument to encourage, retain and attract
talents of significant importance to the future business development
of the Group. Therefore, the Company recognises the need to have
in place incentive mechanisms by way of share awards to support
the long-term development of the Group. On 13 September 2022,
the Board resolved to propose the adoption of the Share Award
Scheme. The purposes and objectives of the Share Award Scheme
are to recognise the contributions by certain Employees and give
incentives thereto in order to retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group. The aforementioned resolutions
were discussed, voted and duly passed as ordinary resolutions at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 19 December 2022. For details
on these matters, please refer to the Circular and the Notice.
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Grant of Award Shares under the Share Award
Scheme

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 23
December 2022. The terms in this paragraph shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the Company’s announcement dated
23 December 2022. On 23 December 2022, the Board resolved
to conditionally grant 2,900,000 Awarded Shares to 12 Selected
Employees pursuant to the Share Award Scheme (inclusive of the
Conditional Grant). Among the Awarded Shares granted, (i) 1,200,000
Awarded Shares were conditionally granted to the Conditional
Grantees, subject to the approval of Independent Shareholders at
the EGM; and (ii) 1,700,000 Awarded Shares were granted to the
other Grantees including certain Directors and employees of the
Group. The Grant was to be satisfied by allotment and the issue of
new Shares under the Scheme Limit. The aforementioned resolutions
were discussed, voted on, and duly passed as ordinary resolutions
at the EGM held on 9 February 2023. For details regarding the grant
of Awarded Shares, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 23 December 2022.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES
EE  BREEARRER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Chung Po, age 45, was appointed as executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer of our Company on 16 August 2013
and appointed as Chairman of our Company on 28 January 2022.
He is responsible for the day-to-day management of our Group
including administration, procurement, production as well as financial
management. Mr. Chen received his Bachelor of Arts in Business
Studies degree from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
2000. He has more than 10 years of working experience in banking
and finance fields. After graduation, he joined Bank of China (Hong
Kong) as a credit analyst and was gradually promoted to Branch
Manager from 2000 to 2006. From 2006 to 2010, he worked with
the Sun Hung Kai Group of companies serving as the Vice President
of Sales Division in Wealth Management when he resigned in 2011,
From 2011 to 2012, he was a person licensed to carry on Type 2
regulated activity. Prior to joining our Group, he was the sales director
in GF Securities (Hong Kong) Brokerage Limited from 2011 to 2013.
Mr. Chen is the husband of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, son-in-law of Mr. Yiu
Chi To and Ms. Luk Fong, and brother-in-law of Mr. Yiu Kwan Lok.

Ms. Luk Fong, aged 60, was appointed as executive Director of the
Company on 22 March 2022. Prior to the appointment as executive
Director, Ms. Luk has been the assistant head of backlight overseas
business department of Shenzhen Wai Chi since March 2003. Ms.
Luk joined the Group in 1984 as she served as marketing and sales
representative of Wai Chi Electronics Co. from then until 1991 and
was then appointed as director from June 1991 to February 2003.
Ms. Luk graduated from Jiangsu Wuxi Fifth High School in 1981. Ms.
Luk is the wife of Mr. Yiu Chi To, mother of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu and Mr.
Yiu Kwan Lok and the mother-in-law of Mr. Chen Chung Po.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES
EF SREEREARRRER

Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, age 38, was appointed as executive Director
of our Company on 16 August 2013. She is also the Sales and
Marketing Manager of Wai Chi Opto Technology Limited since
2009. Ms. Yiu joined us in 2008 and served as Sales and Marketing
Executive initially. She is responsible for the sales and marketing of
our LED lighting division and she is also in charge of the research and
development department of our LED lighting division. Currently she
is also in charge of monitoring the production line of semiconductor
memory chips. Ms. Yiu received her Bachelor’'s degree of Applied
Science in Electrical Engineering from The University of British
Columbia in May 2008 and her Master of Lighting degree from
the Queensland University of Technology in May 2012. Ms. Yiu
was admitted as Engineer by the Corporation of Seven Wardens
Inc. in 2008. She also held the Directorship of Hong Kong Critical
Component Manufacturing Association from 2009 to 2012 and the
Directorship of Hong Kong Opto Mechatronics Industry Association
from 2012 to 2018. Ms. Yiu is the elder daughter of Mr. Yiu Chi To
and Ms. Luk Fong, wife of Mr. Chen Chung Po and sister of Mr. Yiu
Kwan Lok.

Mr. Chen Wei Wu, age 59, was appointed as executive Director
of our Company on 11 March 2014. He is the Financial Controller
of Shenzhen Wai Chi since 2010. He is responsible for the financial
management and day-to-day financial operation in the PRC region.
He has 30 years of experience in commercial and finance fields.
From 1984 to 1992, Mr. Chen served as Accounting Officer in Jinan
Chemicals Factory at Hengyang City of Hunan. From 1992 to 1997,
he served as Financial Controller in Shenzhen Zhonggiao Group at
Shenzhen. From 1997 to 2001, he served as Vice General Manager
and Chief Financial Controller in Shenzhen Shennan Merchants
Group. From 2001 to 2006, he served as the Assistant to the
General Manager and head of the Capital Department in Shenzhen
Saigedasheng Joint-stock Company Limited. From 2006 to 2008,
he served as the General Manager of the Audit Planning Department
in GD Hengfeng Investment Group Co., Ltd. From 2008 to 2010,
he served as the General Manager of Group Finance Division in
Shenzhen Shangtianran Investment Company Limited.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

Mr. Chen studied and graduated from the correspondence course
in industrial accountancy and received the professional certificate
in industrial accountancy from the Hunan College of Finance and
Economics (merged with Hunan University in April 2020) in July
1987. In October 1994, Mr. Chen was conferred by the Ministry of
Finance in the PRC the qualification of an accountant specializing
in corporate accounting. In April 2011, Mr. Chen was admitted as
Senior International Finance Manager by the International Financial
Management Association. In December 2017, Mr. Chen was admitted
as Senior Accountant by the Human Resources and Social Security
Department of Guangdong Province and Mr. Chen was admitted
as International Certified Public Accountant by the International
Association of Accounting Professionals in August 2020. In June
2012, Mr. Chen obtained his Master of Business Administration
degree from the Zhongnan University of Economics and Law.
In November 2014, Mr. Chen obtained his Doctor of Business
Administration degree from the Victoria University of Switzerland.

Ms. Yong Jian Hui, age 46, was appointed as executive Director
of our Company on 11 March 2014. She joined our Company
since 2003. She is currently the Deputy General Manager and the
Head of Sales Department of Wai Chi Opto Technology (Shenzhen)
Company Limited. She is responsible for the sales and marketing of
our LED backlight products. She has more than 10 years of working
experience in sales and marketing of backlight products. Prior to
her joining our Company, Ms. Yong served as the head of Sales
Department at Wah Mei Electronics (Shenzhen) Company Limited
from 2000 to 2002. Ms. Yong graduated from the Hunan Radio & TV
University of Financial Accounting Profession in 1999 and obtained
her Master of Business Administration degree from the Southwest
Jiaotong University in June 2012.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES
EF SREEREARRRER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, age 59, was appointed as independent
non-executive Director (“INED”) of our Company on 11 March 2014.

Mr. Au Yeung obtained a Professional Diploma in Accountancy in The
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in 1987. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Au Yeung had worked for a number of years for
Price Waterhouse (now known as PricewaterhouseCoopers), had
acted as a financial manager of a listed company and a major private
company respectively in Hong Kong. He has been a certified public
accountant since 1994 and has over thirty years’ experience in
auditing, finance and administration. He is now the director of Lau &
Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited.

Mr. Au Yeung was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Amvig Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2300, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and was privatized
on 19 April 2021) during the period from May 2006 to April 2021. Mr.
Au Yeung was also appointed on 12 August 2016 and is currently
acting as an independent non-executive director of Man Shing Global
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8309, a company listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange).

Mr. Chen Kwok Wang, age 60, was appointed as INED of our
Company on 11 March 2014.

Mr. Chen is currently a Partner at Messrs. Fairbairn, Catley, Low &
Kong. He has been admitted as a Solicitor of the High Court since
2005. He obtained his Bachelor of Laws from the University of
Wolverhampton in February 2002 and his Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws from the University of Hong Kong in June 2003. Mr. Chen
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering in November
1986 and also a Master of Business Administration degree in
December 1997 from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chen has
been a Member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now
known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) since
1990.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

Prior to establishing his career in the legal field, Mr. Chen worked
in an international accounting firm from 1986 to 1991 as a Staff
Accountant and was eventually promoted to the position of Audit
Supervisor. In 1992 to 1993, Mr. Chen became an Internal Auditor at
the Hong Kong branch of a bank. In 1993 to 2000, Mr. Chen worked
at The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in the capacity as
a Manager and was eventually promoted to the position of Senior
Manager. In 2001 to 2002, Mr. Chen worked at the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong as a Manager where he was
responsible for day-to-day supervision of financial intermediaries.
Mr. Chen was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Fujian Start Group Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600734), during the period from
20 May 2014 to 28 March 2022 and PPS International (Holdings)
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code
8201, a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange), during the
period from 19 November 2014 to 30 December 2015. Mr. Chen
was also appointed on 9 December 2021 and is currently acting as
an independent non-executive director of Enterprise Development
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1808, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange).

Mr. Ho Chi Wai, age 48, was appointed as INED of our Company on
11 March 2014.

Mr. Ho is currently a partner of SRF Partners & Co., CPAs. He
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from
Lingnan University in November 1997 and a Master’s degree in
Finance from Jinan University in December 2012. He is currently a
practicing certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a chartered tax adviser and fellow
member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a fellow member
of the Association of International Accountants.

Mr. Ho has over 25 years of experience in audit assurance and
business consulting. Prior to his own practice in 2012, Mr. Ho worked
as an Audit Senior in a local accounting firm from 1997 to 2000. From
2000 to 2010, Mr. Ho was the audit manager in a sizable accounting
firm and from 2010 to 2011 he became the Principal of the group to
which the said accountancy firm belonged.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES
EF SREEREARRRER

Mr. Ho acted as an independent non-executive director of Capital
Finance Holdings Limited (Stock Code 8239, a company listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange, formerly known as Ming Kei Holdings
Limited) from June 2012 to October 2013. Mr. Ho was appointed on
13 May 2018 and is currently acting as an independent non-executive
director of Affluent Foundation Holdings Limited (Stock Code 1757,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). Mr
Ho was also appointed on 23 June 2018 and is currently acting as
an independent non-executive director of Hyfusin Group Holdings
Limited (Stock Code 8512, a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yiu Kwan Lok, age 29, joined our Company in February 2022
and is currently the General Manager of Shenzhen Wai Chi and
Huizhou Wai Chi. Mr. Yiu is responsible for supervising the daily
operation of LED backlight and lighting production lines. Mr. Yiu
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Arts (Honors) from the University
of Toronto, Canada in June 2016 with double major in Political
Science and History. Before joining our Company, Mr. Yiu worked in
Diageo (Shanghai) Limited and his last position was Assistant Brand
Manager. He is responsible for the brand promotion and management
in the relevant region(s) in the PRC. Mr. Yiu is the youngest son of Mr.
Yiu Chi To and Ms. Luk Fong, brother of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu and the
brother-in-law of Mr. Chen Chung Po.

Mr. Luo Zeng Chang, age 41, joined our Company since 2003 and
is currently the General Manager of our Project Design Department
of Shenzhen Wai Chi. Mr. Luo is responsible for supervising the
designs of our products. Prior to joining our Company, Mr. Luo was
a research development engineer with a small to medium size LED
backlight module manufacturing company from 2002 to 2003. Mr.
Luo was then employed as a senior technician at Shenzhen Wai Chi
in 2003 and was the leader of our Design Project Department from
2004 to 2007. He was then appointed as the Vice General Manager
of our Design Project Department at Shenzhen Wai Chi in 2008. Mr.
Luo obtained a graduation certificate specializing in Mechatronics
from Jiaying University in July 2001.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

COMPANY SECRETARY AND CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Cheung Wai Hung, age 41, was appointed as the Chief
Financial Officer of our Company on 11 March 2014 and appointed
as the Company Secretary of our Company on 12 November 2015.

Mr. Cheung is responsible for our financial management other
than the PRC. Mr. Cheung has over 9 years of experience in audit
assurance. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Cheung worked as audit
trainee in Eric Ng & Co. from June 2003 to July 2004 and as audit
manager in Jonten Hopkins CPA Limited from July 2004 to March
2014. Mr. Cheung graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with an honors degree in Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy
in November 2003. He is currently a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a chartered tax
adviser of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheung was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Grand T G Gold Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8299, a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange) on 27 August 2018. Mr.
Cheung was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1941, a company
listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange) on 17 February 2020.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEREE

The Board of Directors is pleased to present this report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its principal place of business at
6th Floor, Liven House, Nos. 61-63 King Yip Street, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 39 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year ended 31 December 2022.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
(the “Reporting Period”) are set out in the Consolidated Financial
Statements on pages 95 to 218 of this annual report. The Directors
do not recommend the payment of a dividend and resolve not to
declare any final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2022.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) to be held on 25 May 2023
(Thursday), the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 22 May 2023 (Monday) to 25 May 2023 (Thursday), both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 19 May 2023 (Friday). The record date for the
entitlement to attend the AGM will be on 19 May 2023 (Friday).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 99 to 100 of
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders is approximately HK$332,147,000
(2021: approximately HK$332,147,000), representing the balance of
share premium account which can be authorised for this purpose in
accordance with the Company Law of Cayman Islands.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2022 are set out in Note 28 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2022, the gearing ratio of the Group, based on
total borrowings (including bank and other borrowing, corporate
bonds and lease liabilities) to the equity (including all capital and
reserves) of the Company, was 55.5% (2021: 41.9%).
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 2,904 employees. The
Group recognized the importance of maintaining good relationship
with its employees and retaining competent staff to ensure operational
efficiency and effectiveness. In the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group had not encountered any significant problems with its
employees, and there had not been any dispute between the Group
and its employees that might have caused any disruption to the
Group’s business or operation. The Group has had no difficulty
in recruiting and retaining experienced staff. The remuneration of
each employee of the Group is determined on the basis of his or
her performance and responsibility. The Group provides training to
employees.

The total staff costs incurred by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 was approximately HK$293,116,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the percentage of public float
as prescribed in the Rules governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the
Reporting Period and at any time before and up to the date of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2022 and up to and including the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Chung Po (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Luk Fong (Appointed on 22 March 2022)
Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu
Mr. Chen Wei Wu
Ms. Yong Jian Hui
Mr. Yiu Chi To (Former Chairman, passed away on
28 January 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang
Mr. Ho Chi Wai

In accordance with article 84(1) and 84(2) of the Company’s articles of
association, each of Mr. Chen Wei Wu and Ms. Yong Jian Hui, both
of whom were appointed as executive directors on 11 March 2014
will retire as Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and
they, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election thereat.

In accordance with article 84(1) and 84(2) of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah and Mr. Ho Chi Wai, both of
whom were appointed as independent non-executive directors on 11
March 2014 will retire as Directors at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, and they, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
thereat.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are set
out on pages 29 to 35 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Chen Chung Po and Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for three years from 16 August
2022, and each of the service agreements may be terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice.

Ms. Luk Fong has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for three years from 22 March 2022, the service agreement
may be terminated by either party by giving not less than three
months’ written notice.

Each of Mr. Chen Wei Wu and Ms. Yong Jian Hui has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for three years from 11 March
2023, and each of the service agreements may be terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice.

Each of Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Mr. Chen Kwok Wang and Mr. Ho
Chi Wai has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of two years commencing from 11 March 2022 and each
of the letters of appointment may be terminated by either party by
giving not less than two months’ written notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a contract of
service with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation (except for statutory compensation).

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with reference
to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence and the
prevailing market conditions. None of the Directors waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration of the Group as at the date of
this annual report are set out in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or minor children (under 18 years of age), or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement whose objectives are to enable a Director of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to and
including the date of this annual report.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS AND
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the sub-section headed “Connected
Transaction” below and “Related Party Transactions and Balances”
in Note 34 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or a
controlling shareholder had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2022
or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive personnel of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were
as follows:

Name of Director

Capacity/nature of interest

EERTETBRASHERAA
REBBEERG - HERG
RiEFzsEamRxkE

R2022F 12 A31H ARAIEZENETETT
BABRARRREEEZE (TERESF R
HEKRA ((BHERAE®RG) EXVI) B
7 HEERD REEEY  BEEAARAR
BBENEBEERAEIB2IGELAMTEEER
Ak ZERIE ET AR BB EX 10 Fr sk _E T 81T
ABEFETEFR ZREESTR ([1EEFE])
BONMEARNRRBRAHES RARNT

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number and
class of securities

EENA 513 #ExHE EEHERER BESLAT DL
(Note 2)
(Mt3E2)
Mr Yiu Chi To (deceased) (Note 1) Beneficial owner 128,120,000 (L) 59.09%
wh B A (B Bt ) (BYsE1) EnBAA
Ms. Luk Fong (Note 3) Interest of spouse 128,120,000 (L) 59.09%
B 75 20+ (B 5 3) B (5 4 2
Notes: B &

1. Mr. Yiu Chi To holds 100% of the issued share capital of Rexell Technology
Company Limited, which is the controlling shareholder holding approximately
59.09% of the issued share capital of the Company.

2. The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the
Company or the relevant associated corporation.

3. Ms. Luk Fong, as the spouse of Mr. Yiu Chi To, is deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Rexell Technology Company Limited by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors and chief executive personnel of the Company had or
was deemed to have any interests or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest
or short positions which they had taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

42

1 BEERESAREHIRRARAR Wit
RHEA IR 2 7 AR 2 71 459.00% B+ A7
DR PR

2. HAXFHILIRREZRAQARGHEMEREE
AR EVEF R

3. BEFRERUSEREMEE REEZFLBE
P BER T HARRHEA R TR ER AR
Bt Ky e o

B EXWEEI R2022F12A31H &
ERARAEFETHRAEMEREA NG RE
AR (E& R EH R EEGIEXVER) /)
B HEROMIEEES  HEREFS
MEIEEHEXVELE7 R8N HAME AR
A M TRERS AR (BERIEES N
BRI EBEEEFRR ARENER
K#KR)  RIBREES R EENIE 3521578
R ZIEIERMAOERIOAE - SR
BZETRBNE AT KBRS
KA e

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | 5B ER Q7



INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PARTIES IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, so far as the directors and chief executive
officer of the Company were aware, the following persons and
corporations (excluding the directors and chief executive officer of
the Company) had interests or short positions in any of the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or
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FERREEMALIRAQTR
B RHERARGPFNESRARR

R2022F 12 A31H AR A EFE MITH
BEFTE - LA REE (KARESRT
BB ELASN) R A B D sk BB (D P A
BEFSHRBEKMNEXVIE2XIH B
&SR BB AN S 2NN &) N B 22 BT B 4 2 0%
B REZBHFRIBEKRAEI(HEAERETR
AGFEMECMASENEEAR  E
B EERA RN P HER 5%k A R

Nz
= o

who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the shares m
of the Company.
Approximate
percentage of
Number of issued share
Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest shares held capital
BRITREAZ
REREE 51 #xstE FrishRia 88 BHEHGE
Rexell Technology Company Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 128,120,000 59.09%
HEREARA R (FEE1) En#BA
Mr Yiu Chi To (deceased) (Note 2) Interest of a controlled corporation 128,120,000 59.09%
whREE % A (BB (Fi5E2) R LB B RS
Ms. Luk Fong (Note 3) Interest of spouse 128,120,000 59.09%
B 75 22+ (B EE3) Ao B o
Notes: MI5E -

1. Rexell Technology Company Limited directly holds 128,120,000 shares
representing approximately 59.09% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

2. Mr. Yiu Chi To is the legal and beneficial owner of all the issued shares of
Rexell Technology Company Limited and is therefore deemed to be interested
in all the shares of the Company held by Rexell Technology Company Limited
under the SFO.

3. Ms. Luk Fong, as the spouse of Mr. Yiu Chi To, is deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Rexell Technology Company Limited by virtue of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company, a director
of the Company may be indemnified out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which the director shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of his or her duty as a director of the Company,
to the extent permitted by law. Such permitted indemnity provision
has been in force since the adoption of the articles of association of
the Company on 27 October 2014 and is currently in force at the time
of approval of this report.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for certain legal actions brought against its directors
and officers.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of its/his compliance with the terms and undertakings of the deed
of non-competition provided to the Company under the Deed of
Non-competition (as defined in the Company’s prospectus dated
4 November 2014). The INEDs of the Company have reviewed
the status of compliance and confirmed that all the terms and
undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition have been complied
with by the controlling shareholders.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 220 of this
annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has had
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, which are exempt from the connected transaction
requirements under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. Details of the
significant transactions with related parties are set out in Note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 27 October 2014, under which the Directors may grant
options to eligible persons to subscribe for the Company’s shares,
subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) and details of movements in the share options
under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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2022 are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements 7ML -
and summarized as below:
Granted Outstanding at
Exercise during the 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period Price year 2022
®20225 128
REBH T i@ FAERE 31 ARTE
Director
£z
Mr. Chen Chung Po (Note 1) 28 June 2022 To be commenced on the date 1.49 800,000 800,000
immediately following the expiry of
twelve months from the Grant Date up
to and inclusive of 27 June 2032
PRaga st A (et 1) 2022667 28H RERREARET—EAEREN
MR EZ 203266 A27B (81
#8)
Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu (Note 1) 28 June 2022 To be commenced on the date 1.49 400,000 400,000
immediately following the expiry of
twelve months from the Grant Date up
to and inclusive of 27 June 2032
thE®mz+ (HE1) 202266 A28H RERERL B HE+ A ERERD
BERMIREZ 203266 A27B (81
#8)
Ms. Yong Jian Hui (Note1) 28 June 2022 To be commenced on the date 1.49 400,000 400,000
immediately following the expiry of
twelve months from the Grant Date up
to and inclusive of 27 June 2032
EEELL (1) 202264281 REBERILRHET—EAERED
AERIREE2032F6 27 B (R
#A)
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Granted Outstanding at

Exercise during the 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period Price year 2022
®20225 128
REBH 1T 1@ FRAERE 31 ARTE
Mr. Chen Wei Wu (Note 1) 28 June 2022 To be commenced on the date 1.49 800,000 800,000
immediately following the expiry of
twelve months from the Grant Date up
to and inclusive of 27 June 2032
R A (FeE1) 202267 28R RERREARET—EAEREN
MR EZ 203266 A27B (821
#8)
Other 24 Grantees (Note 1) 28 June 2022 To be commenced on the date 1.49 2,910,000 2,910,000
immediately following the expiry of
twelve months from the Grant Date up
to and inclusive of 27 June 2032
Htvoa AR A (M31)  2022F6AH28R RERER L B e+ A RRES
MR EZ 203266 A27B (81
#8)
4,710,000 4,710,000
Note 1:  The granted options were approved by the Board of Directors and ekl BRHEZERENR2022F6828B8KEES
Remuneration Committee on June 28 2022. For details, please refer to MEMEZa etk - FEBLEARQFA
the company’s announcement dated June 28, 2022 HA2022F6 A28 A2 A E
SHARE AWARD SCHEME i 45 8€ Eh 5t 2

The Share Award Scheme was adopted by the Company on 19
December 2022 (the “Adoption Date”). The purposes of the Share
Award Scheme are to through the Shares awarded or provisionally
awarded (the “Award(s)” or “Award Share(s)”) (a) recognise and
reward the contribution of certain eligible participants to the growth
and development of the Group and to give incentives thereto in order
to retain them for the continual operation and development of the

Group; and (b) attract suitable personnel for further development of

the Group.
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The eligible participants of the Share Award Scheme (the “Share
Award Eligible Participants”) include (a) any employee (whether
full time or part time, including any executive Director but excluding
any non-executive Director) of the Company, any subsidiary or any
related entity; (b) any non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) of the Company, any subsidiary or any
related entity; (c) any adviser (professional or otherwise), consultant
to or expert in any area of business or business development of any
member of the Group or any related entity; and (d) any other group
or classes of participants who have contributed or may contribute by
way of joint venture, business alliance or other business arrangement
to the development and growth of the Group, and, for the purposes
of the Share Award Scheme, the Award may be made to any
company wholly owned by one or more of the abovementioned
participants and any trust where the settlor is one of the participants,
but excluding the excluded participants.

The total number of the Shares, excluding those that would not be
vested or have been forfeited (“Lapsed Shares”), granted and to
be granted to qualified participants under the Award Scheme shall
not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue from time to time. Subject to
the aforesaid limit, in addition, no further grant may be made under
the Award Scheme if () in the Initial Term, the total number of Shares
(excluding Lapsed Shares) granted and to be granted pursuant to the
Award Scheme exceed 3% of the Shares in issue at the time of the
relevant grant; and (i) in each Subsequent Term, the total number
of Shares (excluding Lapsed Shares) granted and to be granted
pursuant to the Award Scheme exceed such limit as determined by
the Board from time to time for each such Subsequent Term. No
further grant may be made under the Award Scheme if this will result
in any of the aforesaid limits being exceeded.

As at the date of this Directors’ Report, a maximum of 18,782,500
Shares (representing 8.66% of the issued Shares thereby) were
available for grant under the Award Scheme.

During the period from the Adoption Date and up to the date of
this Annual Report, no Award was granted under the Share Award
Scheme. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Award
Scheme and the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Board or
a duly authorised committee or other person(s) from time to time
delegated by the Board with the power and authority to administer
the Share Award Scheme (the “Committee”) may, from time to time
at its absolute discretion, select any Share Award Eligible Participants
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to participate in the Share Award Scheme as a selected participant,
make an offer to the selected participants and grant Award Shares
to such selected participants, and such Award Shares can be
satisfied by (i) new Shares to be subscribed by the trustee under the
Company’s available general mandate or under a specific mandate
approved or to be approved by the Shareholders; or (i) Shares
purchased by the trustee in the open market as directed by the Board
or the Committee.

It B ET Bl G R A EH N AR EH
B3 A2022F 12 A1 HREEK -

A detailed summary of the terms of the Share Award Scheme are set
out in the Company’s circular dated 1 December 2021.

Number of Shares
underlying the share

Grantee Date of grant award granted Vesting schedule
EEA RHBEE ZERHEME SEAH HME
Conditional Grantees:

BREFREA:

Mr. Chen Chung Po 9 February 2023 800,000 8 February 2024

BoR 28 5 o A 202832 A9H 20242 A 8H
Ms. Yong Jian Hui 9 February 2023 400,000 8 February 2024
R T 20232 A9H 20242 A8 H
Other Grantees:

Hh &R A

Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu 23 December 2022 200,000 22 December 2023
PE B LT 20224 12 A 23 H 2023%F 12 A22H
Mr. Chen Wei Wu 23 December 2022 200,000 22 December 2023
PRAZ I A4 2022412 23 8 20234 12 228
Other 8 Selected Employees 23 December 2022 130,000 22 December 2023
Hin8 BB TERE 2022412 B 23H 2023 12 22 H
Total

Bt 2,900,000

Details and movements of award shares that were granted under the BIFREET R L 2 BB O F B R EE WD
Award Scheme are as follows: T

BB R BRI E — B EE RN AT R
RA TSR MIFEST -

Further details of the share options and share awards are set out
in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements of this Annual
Report.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the largest supplier
accounted for 7% of the Group’s purchases and the five largest
suppliers accounted for 30% of the Group’s total purchases. The
largest customer accounted for 28% of the Group’s revenue and
the five largest customers accounted for 62% of the Group’s total
revenue.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has an
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$92,000 (2021: approximately HK$64,000).

CORPORATE BOND

Details of movement in corporate bond issued by the Company
during the year are set out in Note 30 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers all the INEDs to be independent.

REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased or redeemed any of the listed
shares of the Company.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders to be one of
the main objectives. Stable dividend payment to shareholders is the
primary objective of the Company. The basic policy is to pay interim
and final dividends in each financial year.

Under the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles
of Association of the Company, all of the shareholders have equal
rights to dividends and distributions. The Board determines the
interim dividend and recommends the final dividend which requires
the approval of shareholders. In addition to cash, dividends may
be distributed in the form of shares. Any distribution of shares also
requires the approval of shareholders.

Retained surplus is used to achieve further gains in corporate value.
For this purpose, the Board makes effective use of retained surplus
to strengthen the operating base and fund growth of established
businesses and the development of new businesses. The Board takes
into account the following factors when considering the declaration
and payment of dividends:

° liquidity position of the Company;

e financial results;

e  shareholders’ interests;

e general business conditions and strategies;

e  capital requirements;

e  contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by the
Company to the shareholders or by the subsidiaries to the
Company, if any;

e  taxation considerations;

e possible effects on the creditworthiness;

e  statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

e any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Company will not declare any dividend(s) where:

e there are reasonable grounds for believing that the Company is
or would be, after a dividend payment, unable to pay its liabilities
or discharge its obligations as and when they become due;

° pursuant to dividend decision date, the Company is insolvent or
bankrupt or where, as a result of paying dividends, the Company
would be rendered insolvent or bankrupt; or

e thereis any other case set forth by any law.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company and its management are committed to maintaining
good corporate governance with an emphasis on the principles of
transparency, accountability and independence to all shareholders.
The Company believes that good corporate governance is essential
for continual growth and enhancement of shareholder’s value. For
the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has applied the
code provisions stipulated in the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 (the “CG Code”) to the Listing Rules. Code
Provision C.2.1. of Part 2 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of the chairman and the chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Former Chairman
of the Company, Mr. Yiu Chi To, passed away on 28 January 2022,
currently the role of the chairman of the Company is performed by
Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Chen Chung Po. Besides the above, the
Company has complied with all the other applicable code provisions
of the CG Code. The Company periodically reviews its corporate
governance practices with reference to the latest development in
corporate governance. The Group’s principal corporate governance
practices and compliance with code provisions are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 53 to 73 of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

During the Reporting Period, the Group is committed to promoting
the long-term, steady and sustainable development of employees,
environmental protection and social responsibilities on a continuous
basis.

The Group’s environmental policies and performance are set out in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 74 to 87
of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed with the management the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022, the accounting principles and practices adopted and discussed
auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters.
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AUDITOR

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been audited by
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (“SHINEWING”). We have not
changed auditor in the past three years. A resolution to re-appoint
SHINEWING as our auditor will be submitted for shareholders’
approval at our forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Mr. Chen Chung Po
Executive Director and Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance (“CG”). The Board believes that adherence
to CG practices will definitely be beneficial to the Company’s
shareholders in the long term. For the year ended 31 December
2022, the Company has applied all the other applicable code
provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules in force at that time. Code Provision C.2.1 in Part 2 of the CG
Code stipulates that the roles of the chairman and the chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Former Chairman of the Company, Mr. Yiu Chi To, passed
away on 28 January 2022, currently the role of the chairman of the
Company is performed by Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Chen Chung
Po. The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of the Board
from time to time and should suitable candidate with the requisite
knowledge, skill and experience be identified, the Company will make
appointment to fill the post of the chief executive as appropriate.

According to the Code Provision B.2.4 in Part 2 of the CG Code, if
all the INEDs have served on the board for more than nine years, the
issuer should appoint a new INED at the forthcoming AGM. The three
INEDs of the Company are appointed on 11 March 2014 and they
have served more than nine years. The Company will appoint a new
INED before the AGM to be held in May 2023 and the relevant INED
will be subject to re-election in the AGM.

The Board considers that good CG is central to safeguarding the
interests of the shareholders and enhancing the performance of
the Group. The Board will continuously review and improve the CG
practices and standards of the Company to ensure that business
activities and decision making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner.

With a view to further improving the Company’s CG practices, the
following actions were taken in 2022:

e Appointment of INEDs with appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management experience with
regulatory entities to further broaden the collective knowledge,
perspectives and skills of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE (continued)

e All members of the Audit Committee are INEDs and all of them
have appropriate professional accounting qualifications and
financial management experience.

° Provision of internal training to the Board through implementing
a continuous professional development programme.

e To adopt Board diversity policy in order to diversify the
composition of the Board so as to recognize and embrace the
benefits of having a diverse Board and to enhance the quality
of its performance. In designing the Board’s composition with
regard to Board diversity, the Board has taken into account
a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board currently comprises five males and three females, and also
encompasses a wide range of age levels and different professional
skills, including professional experience in the Group’s related
industries, legal and financial fields. The Board considers that the
current composition of the Board is in line with the diversity policy.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. Pursuant to specific
enquiry by the Company, all the Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct during the FY2022.
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THE BOARD

The Board is mainly responsible for the overall strategic development
of and is also responsible for monitoring the financial performance,
risk management and the internal controls of the Group. With a
wide range of expertise and a balance of skills, the INEDs bring
independent judgment on issues of strategic direction, development,
performance and risk management through their contribution at
Board meetings and committee work.

Distinctive Roles of the Board and the Management

The Board has the collective responsibility for leadership and
control of, and for promoting the success of, the Group by directing
and supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board is responsible for
determining the overall strategy and corporate development and
ensuring the business operations are properly monitored. The Board
reserves the right to decide all policy matters of the Group and
material transactions.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and
monitoring the operations of the Group, in discharging its duties,
certain responsibilities are delegated to:

i) the standing Board committees of the Company namely: the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Risk Management Committee. Each
committee’s constitution, powers and duties are clearly defined
by its terms of reference, and the committees are accountable
to the Board;

i) the Chief Executive Officer, being delegated with the day-to-day

management of the businesses of the Group, is accountable to
the Board; and
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THE BOARD (continued)

Distinctive Roles of the Board and the Management
(continued)

i) the senior management team of the Group, being delegated
with the responsibilities to deal with daily operational functions,
is answerable to the Board.

The Board regularly reviews its arrangement for delegation of
authority to ensure that such delegation is appropriate in view of the
Company’s prevailing circumstances and that appropriate reporting
systems are in place.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

All of the Directors have entered into service agreements or letters of
appointment and the details of their terms are set out in the Report
of the Directors on pages 36 to 52 of this annual report. At each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting at which he retires. Retiring Directors
are eligible for re-election and re-election of retiring Directors at
the annual general meeting is dealt with by separate resolutions
for each individual Director. Where vacancies arise at the Board,
candidates will be proposed and put forward to the Board by the
Nomination Committee as more fully explained below in the section
on Nomination Committee. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting after
his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board is composed of five executive
Directors and three INEDs, as shown on page 3 of this annual report.
Biographies of the Company’s Directors are shown on pages 29 to
35 of this annual report.

INEDs ensure the Board accounts for the interests of all shareholders
and considers major issues objectively. The Board has received from
each INED an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers all of the INEDs
to be independent. INEDs represent 37.5% of the full Board.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, there is no financial, business
and family relationship among members of the Board except that Ms.
Luk Fong is the mother of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu and mother-in-law of Mr.
Chen Chung Po and that Mr. Chen Chung Po and Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu
are a married couple.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Chen Chung Po acts as the Chairman (“Chairman”) and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEOQ”) of the Board.

Induction, Information and ongoing Development

All Directors have been kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may have affected the Group’s businesses, including
relevant rules and regulations. In addition, the Group has implemented
a continuing development programme to update the Directors (in
particular INEDs) on the macro-economic conditions and business
environment relevant to the Group’s major operations.

In addition to the above, each newly-appointed Director has received
a tailored induction programme, which covered briefing on the
Company’s overview by the CEO, meeting with the management
and the Company’s external legal adviser on directors’ legal role and
responsibilities. To further maximize the contribution from INEDs,
separate meeting between the Chairman and INEDs was held in
December 2022 to address business and related issues. Written
procedures are also in place for Directors to seek independent
professional advice in performing their duties at the Company’s
expense. No request was made by any Director for such independent
professional advice during the FY2022.

During the FY2022, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in accordance with code provision C.1.4 contained Part 2 of
the CG Code. Each of the Directors has received a series of training
locally or overseas. Relevant trainings and briefings included, among
others:

e development of national and global economy;

° national policy outlook;

e  corporate governance;

° regulatory updates; and

e LED backlight and lighting industry development trend, etc.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Induction, Information and ongoing Development
(continued)

All Directors have also provided to the Company their records of
training attended or fulfilment of ongoing development requirements
for the FY2022, the information of which has been entered in the
register of directors’ training records maintained and updated by
the Company from time to time. The following table summarises the
compliance status of all Directors of the Company in respect of code
provision C.1.4 during the FY2022:

E5E ()
Bl - ERMBEER (R

FIEEEEHARRNRIRMET 2022 FH BMF[E
B HERNEIKFERFESRREERNRT
8o HPMEEEECHRARFEFEER
BENMMESEILREELMR - TERE
44 T IR BB T B S CAL4 1§ 2022 £ B I 4F
EARRZBEETMETER

In compliance
with Code
Provision C.1.4

Name of Directors EEHNA BRI CA4F

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Yiu Chi To (Former Chairman, passed away on EE A (BT EE N/A 3
28 January 2022) 20224 1 528 Hi#itt)

Mr. Chen Chung Po PREEFL ST (FEFTIHAEE) v/
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Luk Fong (Appointed on 22 March 2022) BT+ (R 2022493 A 22 H v/

Z 1)

Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu hEmZ L v

Mr. Chen Wei Wu PR 4& I T A v/

Ms. Yong Jian Hui EREE LT v

Independent non-executive Directors BAEHITES

Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah B S REE L A4 v

Mr. Chen Kwok Wang R B 7 5 A v

Mr. Ho Chi Wai AR E v

Role and Responsibilities of the Board EEgzAGKEEE

The Board delegates appropriate aspects of its management and
administrative functions to the management. It also gives clear
directions as to the powers of the management, in particular, with
respect to the matters that the management must report back and
obtain prior approval from the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company. The Board
determines on a regular basis which functions are reserved to the
Board and which are delegated to the management.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Role and Responsibilities of the Board (continued)

The Board exercises a number of duties and powers which include:
e formulating the Group’s long-term strategy;

e approving major acquisitions, disposals and capital investment;
° reviewing operational and financial performance;

e approving financial results and public announcements;

e reviewing the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control;

e authorizing material borrowings;
e setting dividend policy;

e approving appointment of members to the Board and senior
management; and

e  setting the Group’s remuneration policy and human resources
deployment.

To assist in fulfilling its duties and responsibilities, the Board has
established four committees, namely the audit committee, the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee, and the risk
management committee.

Board Processes

All Directors have been regularly updated on governance and
regulatory matters. There is an established procedure for Directors
to obtain independent professional advice at the expense of the
Company in the furtherance of their duties. The Company has also
taken out appropriate director and officer liability insurance against
liabilities that may be incurred as a result of potential legal actions that
might be taken against the Directors.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board Processes (continued)

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to review the overall
strategies and monitor the operations as well as the financial
performance of the Group. The Chairman mainly focuses on Group
strategies and is responsible for chairing and managing the efficient
operation of the Board and ensuring that all key issues are considered
by the Board in a timely manner. Notice of at least 14 days has been
given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings and the Directors
can include matters for discussion in the agenda whenever they
consider appropriate and necessary. Agenda and accompanying
Board papers in respect of regular Board meetings are despatched
in full to all Directors within a reasonable time before the meeting. and
in any case, at least 3 days before the intended date of the meeting
or such other period as agreed before the meeting. Directors have
to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any, in any proposals
or transactions to be considered by the Board at Board meetings
and abstain from voting as appropriate. Draft minutes of all Board
meetings are circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable
time prior to finalisation of the same. Final versions of the minutes are
also circulated to Directors for record within a reasonable time after
the Board meeting is held.

Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board committees are
kept by the Company Secretary. All Directors have free access to
Board papers and related materials, and are provided with adequate
information in a timely manner, enabling the Board to make informed
decision on matters placed before it. In FY2022, four Board meetings
were held and the attendance details are shown as follows:

EEE (&)

EEEERF (@)
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RAKENEERRMBRAE - TFEETEA
BEAKEZRE YAERARAERERE
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DHORBEN WRERR/AEXBEFTE
ExA R mEEMABHEEZRE -EFEE
HeznaElMMErETeXHearle
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Board Meetings
attended in FY2022
2022 F BB E

Name of Directors BEEHA HEEEESEERE

Executive Directors HiTES

Mr. Yiu Chi To (Former Chairman, passed away on kEEB LA (FIEEE - N/A T i 3
28 January 2022) R 20224 1 5 28 A#i )

Mr. Chen Chung Po PREE L o & 8/8
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (FEFITBAEE)

Ms. Luk Fong (Appointed on 22 March 2022) P75+ (R 2022493 A 22 H 7/7

Z1E)

Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu kEmMZ L 8/8

Mr. Chen Wei Wu BRAE I A 8/8

Ms. Yong Jian Hui RSB+ 8/8

Independent non-executive Directors BAFEBITES

Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah BRES RER & 8/8

Mr. Chen Kwok Wang FR B 7= o A 8/8

Mr. Ho Chi Wai &K S 8/8
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely audit committee,
remuneration committee, nomination committee and risk management
committee. Each of them has specific terms of reference, which are
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company and is responsible for reviewing matters relating to specific
areas and for advising the Board on such matters. INEDs play a
significant role in these committees to ensure that independent and
objective views are taken. The list of the chairman and members of
each Board committee is set out on page 3 of this annual report. The
Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties.

(a) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls.

The Audit Committee comprises all three Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, was appointed as
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the senior management
and external auditors the Group’s significant internal controls
and financial matters (as set out in the Audit Committee’s terms
of reference), including:

° the Group’s interim and annual financial statements with
recommendation to the Board for approval;

e the Group’s compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements;

e the Group’s financial reporting, internal controls and risk
management;

e formulating the working plan of the internal control audit
department, discussing the review result of internal control
system on a regular basis and reporting to the Board;

e  discussing with the external auditors the nature and scope
of the audit, significant accounting policies and other audit-
related issues;

° connected transactions; and

¢ managing and overseeing the external auditors.

2022 Annual Report | £

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
tEERRE

EEEBETZEE
EZECCRUNEZES AEZZES -
YHEES - REZEeRAREELZES -
ELEeREEEBEGE  BESETH
Kﬁéﬁxﬁﬁ&$ BISEMBY BAEES
ARTHENEE URZESEMNESE
REEBER -BUNBEHZSZECERE
T BRRIBIAEHNER SE=S
CBETZEENERRKNEZERNAFR
F3BE -EFECZECHRETRHERNU
BITERE -

(a) BEXEET
KRB EZEZESAHFE LMRANE
321EMMK - B ﬁ%$ilﬁvmﬁ7f
TR SRR A ERESE - WA B BEER o

ERZBEREM=-RBIUIFNTES

K- -BBREEERZEREREER

GZERE -

ERZBECEHaMEEE RINERE

Fi 28 B 7 £2 [ & B K P P B 1 45 it N B

BEE (WEZZESNRBESREMH) -
B

s MEFSRUAKETHLFER
BHRERBRTHAE

o AKREEETEMKEEREZER

o AKREEHMBHE  NIPEERE
BB Ig

e HFEBERNIEFIEERLICIE
E‘|'§U EE]@ETHWWDB%*I%%&%E
BR - WREZFER:

o HANEBEAImEIIEE B
REZGHRERHEMEZER

s HEXRZ K

o EEREESNEZEED -

61



CORPURATE GOVERNANGCE REPORT
tEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

(a)

(b)

62

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee is entitled to conduct investigations into
any matter within its terms of reference and is authorised to
obtain independent professional advice if it deems necessary in
discharging its responsibilities.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the audit scope, process
and effectiveness and independence of the audit conducted
by SHINEWING and has thus recommended the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to the Board for its approval.

In FY2022, two meetings were held by the Audit Committee with
100% attendance rate of all members of the Audit Committee.
Draft and final versions of minutes of the meetings were sent
to all members of the Audit Committee for their comment and
records, within a reasonable time after the meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises all
three INEDs. Mr. Ho Chi Wai, was appointed as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to
the Board on the Group’s overall policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management, and ensures
that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding
his/her own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee also
reviews and approves (i) compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that such compensation
is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive; and (i) compensation arrangement(s) relating to
dismissal or removal of Director(s) for misconduct to ensure that
such compensation arrangements is consistent with contractual
terms and is otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

The Company has delegated the determination of the
remuneration packages of individual executive Director and
senior management to the Remuneration Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

In determining the remuneration of Directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors and the suitability of performance-based
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee meets to determine the policy
for the remuneration of Directors, assess the performance
of executive Directors and approve the terms of executive
Directors’ service contracts. In FY2022, five meetings were held
by the Remuneration Committee with 100% attendance rate of
all members of the Remuneration Committee.

In FY2022, the Remuneration Committee had performed the
following works:

e reviewed the remuneration policy and structure of the
Group;

e discussed and recommended the remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management for the Board’s
approval;

e authorised by the Board to approve the allotment and issue
of Shares upon exercise of share options under the Share
Option Scheme;

e considered the grant of share options under the Share
Option Scheme and recommend to the Board for approval;
and

° reviewed and discussed the adoption of the Share Award
Scheme.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company comprises all three
Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Chen Kwok Wang,
was appointed as Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the candidates’ qualification and competence, and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors, so
as to ensure that all nominations are fair and reasonable.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

(c)

64

Nomination Committee (continued)

The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are:

e to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually;

e  to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

° to establish a formal and transparent procedure for the
appointment or reappointment of Directors;

e to make recommendations to the Board for new
appointments or reappointments of executive and non-
executive Directors;

e to evaluate the performance of Directors and determine if
they should be reappointed; and

e to be responsible for significant issues concerning the
nomination of Directors during the year.

Reviewed, assessed and considered all INEDs are independent,
in particular for three INEDs of our Company served the Board
as INED for more than nine years. The factors considered
and the conclusion for the independent of Mr. Au Yeung Tin
Wah and Mr. Ho Chi Wai to be set out in the documents to
shareholder accompanying the proposed resolution for the AGM
to be held in May 2023 for the re-election of Mr. Au Yeung and
Mr. Ho as INED.

The Nomination Committee meets to discuss the procedures
and criteria which should be adopted by them in nominating
candidates for directorship and has agreed that such criteria
should include the candidates’ professional background,
their experience and their past track record with other listed
companies (if any). In FY2022, two meetings were held by
the Nomination Committee with 100% attendance rate of all
members of the Nomination Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

(c) Nomination Committee (continued)

Board Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Nomination Policy and the
Nomination Committee considers and makes recommendations
to shareholders for the election of appropriate candidates as
Directors at general meetings or appointment of such Directors
to fill casual vacancies.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

1. reputation for integrity;

2. accomplishment and experience in the business in which
the Group is engaged in;

3. commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest in the business;

4. diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,
professional experience, skills and length of service;

5. qualifications which include professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy;

6. the number of existing directors and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

7. requirement for the Board to have Independent
Non-executive Directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and whether the candidates would be considered as
independent with reference to the Independence guidelines
set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules;

8. Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any policies
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board; and

9. such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

(d) Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises three members
which include the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”), Chief
Financial Officer (“CFO”) and one INED of the Company. The
Board has appointed Mr. Chen Chung Po (Chairman and CEO),
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung (CFO) and Mr. Chen Kwok Wang (INED)
as members of the Risk Management Committee. Mr. Chen
Chung Po has also been appointed as the Chairman of the Risk
Management Committee.

The primary responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
include reviewing the Company’s corporate risk management
framework, and the guidelines, policies and procedures for
risk assessment and risk management and reviewing the
effectiveness of the risk management function.

In FY2022, two meetings with attendance of all Risk
Management Committee members were held.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid or payable to the external
auditor, SHINEWING, and its affiliated firms, in respect of their audit
and non-audit services for FY2022 are set out below:
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HK$
B
Audit service Fa R 1,200,000
Non-audit services* EET RS 263,900
1,463,900

* Included in non-audit services were HK$23,900 in relation to services * BIEE K M B A R A IEEFT AR 23,900

performed by SHINEWING's affiliated firms.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

During the year, the Group has complied with Principle D.2 of the
CG Code by establishing appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The management is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring of such systems, while the
Board oversees management in performing its duties on an ongoing
basis. The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems are described in the sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following aspects:

° Identification: Identify occurrence and changes in the nature and
extent of risks; identify business objectives and risks that could
affect the achievement of those objectives.

e  Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly; assess the Group’s ability
to manage risks.

° Management: Consider the risk response plan, ensure effective
communication with the Board and monitor risks on an ongoing

basis.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2022, no significant risk
was identified.
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LEELIRE
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL [ bix B IR K R AR EE 2 (4B)
CONTROLS (continued)
Internal Control System NEEEERG
The Company has in place an internal control system which is NAINRE —EAMBEZERS  BHEEEE
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the ZEgHRAMBZES ([COSOJ)20131EZE
Treadway Commission (“COSO”) 2013 framework. The framework FR  RERFEAEBENETEEN AR
enables the Group to achieve effective and efficient operations, MERMBE - RS S RETER
reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and FERMERMNER - ZIERBENUTITE

regulations. The components of the framework are shown as follows:

e Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and e RBEE: BASEBEEHEAINEITRME
structures that provide the basis for the Group’s implementation KB —EZR%E - RIETAERE -

of internal control.

e Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying . fpaff : —EAXBHMNFENBRIRE -
and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives, forming a ’EAu‘Eﬂz RIS ATE R A ER S E 8 B TT
basis for determining how risks should be managed. T TE N {A) B 1R [ fr BE TE B o

e Control Activities: Development of policies and procedures to o EMEE:RBHREMEFRMNEN B
facilitate risk reduction and effective management. R ERRGEREREENEE -

e Information and Communication: Internal and external e EEE®: AHEIFIER AEE
communication to provide the Group with the information RHETRAEEEMTNGER -

needed to carry out day-to-day management.

e Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain o EE:FERERNFE UBERNIE
whether each component of internal control exists and functions. TR EEBEKIT D S FEMET -
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

Internal Control System (continued)

In order to enhance the Group’s inside information processing
system and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness
and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and
implements an inside information policy and procedures. A series of
appropriate measures have been taken from time to time to prevent
any breach of the Group’s disclosure requirements, which include:

e  The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

° Non-disclosure agreements are in place when the Group
conducts significant negotiations.

e  The Executive Directors are designated persons who speak
on behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

e  Sending blackout period and securities dealing restrictions
notification to the Directors and relevant employees regularly.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in FY2022, no
significant control deficiency was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which is performed
by professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operational effectiveness.

An |A plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted semi-annually and the results are reported to
the Board via the Audit Committee afterwards.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring that a review of the effectiveness
of these systems which covers a period of 6 months since the last
review has been conducted semi-annually. Several areas have been
considered during the Board’s reviews, which include but are not
limited to (i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks
since the last review, and the Group’s ability to respond to changes
in its business and the external environment; (ii) the scope and
quality of the management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the
internal control systems and the work of IA function; (i) the extent
and frequency of communication with the Board in relation to the
result of risk and internal control review; (iv) significant failures or
weaknesses identified and their related implications; and (v) the status
of compliance with the Listing Rules.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews conducted by
IA function and the Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. It is also considered that the resources,
the qualifications and experience of relevant staff were adequate, and
the training programs and budget provided were sufficient to carry
out such work.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and comply with the requirement of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (‘Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance”) and the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Listing Rules. The auditors are responsible for forming an
independent opinion, based on the audit, on the financial statements
prepared by the Directors and reporting the opinion solely to the
Company’s shareholders. The Independent Auditor’s Report is set out
on pages 88 to 94 of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Wai Hung is the Company Secretary of the Company. Al
members of the Board have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The appointment and removal of the Company
Secretary are subject to the Board’s approval. In FY2022, Mr. Cheung
has taken the required number of hours of relevant professional
training.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATION

The Company endeavors to continue maintaining a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders and the investment
community at large. Briefings and meetings with institutional investors
and analysts are conducted regularly. The Company is committed to
maintaining an open and effective investor communication policy and
to update investors on relevant information on its business on a timely
manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.

In order to ensure effective, clear and accurate communications
with the investors and analysts, all corporate communications are
arranged and handled by the CFO of the Company in accordance
with the established practice and procedures.

Financial information and all shareholder corporate communications
of the Company are made available on the Company’s website at
http://www.waichiholdings.com and updated regularly on a timely
basis.

The Board and the management shall ensure shareholders’ right
and all shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. The Company
has announced and published its interim and annual results and
despatched them to the shareholders in a timely manner, which
is well before the time limits set out in the Listing Rules. Separate
resolutions will be proposed at the general meetings on each major
issue, including the re-election of individual Directors, if any.

The annual general meeting will provide an opportunity for direct
communication between the Board and the Company’s shareholders.
The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important
event in which the Chairman and all Directors will make an effort to
attend. External auditors shall also be invited to attend the Company’s
annual general meeting and are also available to assist the Directors
in addressing queries from shareholders relating to the conduct of
the audit and the preparation and content of the auditors’ report. All
shareholders will be given prior notice on a timely basis together with
a detailed agenda. The Board, according to the Listing Rules, will
conduct voting at the forthcoming AGM by poll. The results of the
Company will be declared at the meeting, and announced timely on
the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening an extraordinary
general meeting and putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

Any shareholder(s) individually or collectively holding 10% or more
of the Company’s total issued share capital shall be entitled to
request the Board in writing to convene an extraordinary general
meeting. Upon receiving such request, the Board shall issue a
notice of extraordinary general meeting within 21 days and hold an
extraordinary general meeting within two months from the receipt
of such request. If within 21 days of the receipt of such request the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the shareholder(s)
proposing to convene an extraordinary general meeting in writing may
himself/herself (themselves) convene an extraordinary general meeting
in the same manner.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to make proposals or
move resolutions at the general meetings under the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman
Islands. Shareholders who wish to make proposals or move a
resolution may, however, convene a general meeting in accordance
with the preceding paragraph.

Procedures for shareholders to put enquires to the
Board

Shareholders must prove to the Board that they really own the equity
interests of the Company (e.g. by providing shareholding documents
etc.). The Company suggests shareholders should submit their
enquiries in writing (including by email, facsimile and mail) and provide
sufficient contact details so that the Company can process their
enquiries in a proper and timely manner.

Shareholders may contact the Company via the following means:

Address: 6/F, Liven House, 63 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email: barry.cheung@waichi.com

Tel No.: (852) 3760 2805

Fax No.: (852) 2341 8144

72

B SRAEF

BABRIRRAERMNRRAZTRH
REZBE

ERLAAMBEARA2ME HITARA
10% A LM ERN —RHZEZRER B
BUEEHABREZEEERIIRRAS
EEenRERMERR  BEDIRAED
BEFHIRREAGNRS YTRNEEEHE
KEM2EARNBITRHINRRERAE  WES
ERENEEABEZRRARNETEER
FERAE EEREAEFIERAEHN
BRAZRA- A BTERFAIRRAS

REAQFEBERRAIANLHERS
AP BEEXUFFBRRRERAE LR
EERIMELBHE AN BEERZEZZRIE
HBHEA PR A IRRATRATE AR -

RROESERHIEANERF

BRENEZTSEAEEEREARR RN
B (MEEFRXHE) - AR EHEBIRE
BEESN (BEREDR FEMBT)REE
AN WIRHEHMBEENNEEEE
AKREESABINENRIE -

BRAABEATHESARARARED
B

Ak BENEB BN ET 3R N4
REGE

BE MU barry.cheung@waichi.com

B (852) 3760 2805

EERE © (852) 2341 8144

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | 5B ER Q7



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance function as set out below:

e  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

e to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

e to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

Constitutional documents

Rights of the shareholders are also provided under the articles
of association of the Company. The articles of association of the
Company which was adopted on 27 October 2014 was drafted in line
with provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which came
into effect on 3 March 2014, the Listing Rules and current corporate
practices. There was no change in the articles of association of the
Company in FY 2022. An up-to-date consolidated version of the
articles of association of the Company is available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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OVERVIEW

Over the years, Wai Chi Holdings has committed to adhering to
the philosophy of environment-friendly management, caring for
the needs of staff, enhancing the product quality and performing
social responsibilities. This environmental, social and governance
report will give an overview of each of the Group members
in Hong Kong, Shenzhen, Huizhou and Yichang for the year
ended 31 December 2022 through various aspects including
environmental management, working environment, supply
chain management, product responsibility and community
engagement.

This report was prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”). The Group has complied with all “comply
or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide and
followed the four reporting principles — materiality, quantitative,
balance and consistency, in the preparation of the ESG Report.

Commitment to environment friendly operations is one of the
Group’s core philosophies. The Group’s internal operational
guidelines firmly comply with the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other applicable
international standards to facilitate environmental protection,
pollution prevention and efficiency of resource use.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group believes that understanding the views of its
stakeholders lays a solid foundation for the long-term growth
and success of the Group. It develops multiple channels to
a broad spectrum of stakeholders in order to provide them
with the opportunity to express their views on its sustainability
performance and future strategies. To reinforce mutual trust
and respect, the Group is committed to maintaining enduring
communication channels, both formally and informally, with
stakeholders, to better shape its business strategies that
respond to the needs and expectations of stakeholders,
anticipate risks and strengthen key relationships. The Group
has identified employees, business partners, shareholders,
suppliers, government and the community at large as its key
stakeholder groups. The information collected through different
communication processes serves as an underlying basis for the
structure of this Report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (continued)

Stakeholder engagement plays a core role in the sustainability
of the Group. The Group fully appreciates the need to build
both online and offline communication channels and provides
stakeholders with timely reports on strategic planning and
performance of the Group in order to establish a continuing
communication mechanism with the stakeholders. In addition,
the Group consults the stakeholders on their recommendations
and propositions to ensure its business practices can meet the
expectations of the stakeholders.

Relevant stakeholder groups include the shareholders,
government and regulatory bodies, employees, customers,
suppliers and society and the public. The Group discusses with
the stakeholders through various channels for their expectations
and relevant feedback as below:

2.

B - ERELEE

#BEEZSHEE)

RN ELEERAEENAKEZRTIE
ERLAE AEERAERER LR
TEBRENMVEN X RERFN
RHEEEASEBRAEINKRENRS
FELABH5 1) E RS RBUB BB o ttHh
AREBRAFDEBCKERE REZE - A
REXBEBRTAFNEZINE -

HEASHEBRBERERR BNLEE
e -EE TP HEBUAREER
NR-AREEBLRRBEEFNE
mE I MAARAREE - BT

Stakeholders Expectations Communication and Feedback
KeaE HiEE BEEEE
Shareholders e Financial results e Annual General Meeting

e Corporate transparency e Annual and interim reports

e Sound risk control e Announcements and website update
PR o HISEAE s BERKRSE

o BEFEHE
o EEME RIS

Government and regulatory e

bodies e Relevant conferences
BT R BEE et o BSREEER

o MHEEH

Employees e Career development platform
e Salary and benefits
e Safe working environment

e Provision of employee training and
safety awareness enhancement

il
i
[ ]

BEHRTE
. HERER
.« ZRHL{ESR

s REEEHIIERLZEZEH
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Compliance with laws and regulations

o FHRLFHRE
o RERMEER

e Company’s filings and announcements
e Work conference and discussion
e HERKASE

o TEEi& R

e Staff meetings and activities
e Staff training
e Staff handbook

o BTERWAD
o EEHFII
o BT
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2. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (continued) 2. BIXEZSHE(4E)

Stakeholders Expectations Communication and Feedback
BaE HiEE BiEEEE
Customers e Protection of customer rights and e Company visits
interests e Product exhibitions

e Customer information security
g o REEEPRER KEZ o NEIREH

s EPFEERE o EmRTR
Suppliers e Integrity cooperation e Company visits

e Business ethics and credibility e Regular evaluation on suppliers
HER e WEEIE o REIKE

e BEBENMEE o TEHRRT(LHELIER
Society and the public e Environmental protection e QOperation handbook and guidance

e Social welfare

e Provide job opportunities
HERAR o IRIFIRE

o HEREA

o RUET{EKE

e Charity and voluntary services
e Company’s website

o BRIEFMANIER

o EEREIMRY

o NAEIHME

We engaged our management and employees who are usually
in communication with our stakeholders to identify material
ESG issues. Through this approach, we identified areas for
improvement in our daily operations to achieve environmental
and social goals. During the Year, no material ESG issues arose
from our engagement with stakeholders.

PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group acknowledges our responsibility to protect the
environment. As such, we have integrated environmental
considerations into our business operations, including but
not limited to improving our environmental practices through
minimising pollution, utilising energy efficiently and reducing
waste in our daily operations. In particular, the Group keeps
minimizing the environmental impacts and reducing pollution
from its operations with the following methods:

3.1 Reduce Energy Consumption

o Maintaining room temperature at above 25.5°C;

BAMEEEMEERTEAENESE -
NHEEEARE g RERHE B
BUEHE RMCEEATEERFTENR
EMEE  NERARFELEEEAR R
AEE BAKOHELENZEREE
ERE - HERERANEARE -

RERIE
REBRANBFURERITOEE - ALt
HMEHRREEMARPNELLE -
B (BERRR) EBHE ISR - B UF
AR BEEEPNEYMRT
RRFMR - ABME AKEXZAEB
UTHERRDEZEBRPAISR T
BB EIRIBHRE

3.1 [R{KHERE
o  REFEBAE255CHU E
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3. PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT
(continued)

3.1 Reduce Energy Consumption (continued)

Adopting timers or plug load controllers to turn the
lights on and off before and after office hours;

Switching off electronic products and office equipment
when idle;

Constantly upgrading the facilities and equipment to
increase energy efficiency, and prioritizing the use of
green technologies in business operations;

Procuring energy efficient electrical appliances with
energy efficiency labels to reduce indirect GHG
emission whenever practical;

Placing “Green Message” reminders on office
equipment and workplace to further enhance
employees’ environmental awareness; and

Establishing energy targets and indicators, as well as
the implementation plans.

3.2 Reduce Paper Consumption

Promoting paperless office by using own internal
administration system to reduce the use of paper in all
levels of our management;

Encouraging use of electronic means of
communication such as email, intranet, WeChat and
Zoom, to manage daily process; and

Using duplex printing and reuse single-side printed
papers.
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3.1 [R{EREHE ()
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B - tERELHE

3. PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

(continued)

3.3 Water Consumption

e  Set up water meters at multiple locations to monitor
the water consumption, detect and avoid abnormal

usage as early as possible;

o Inspect pipelines regularly, check and repair the water
pipes leakage to avoid wastage; and

e Turn off the faucets when not in use.

Environmental Performance

In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide, our
environmental performance of “Energy and Resources Use”

3. RERIE ()

3.3 FKAMH

o ERKE - BERKGKR A
K BHEB PR REERANRN

s ERKEER WMEIIEEK
E2RATERKREBTR « &
o TEMKRIE/KEHE -

RERRHE
RIBRRE HERERBEHES
BN ANFEE8ER R ERA A

during the Year are tabulated below: RIRRERN T XHRER :
Energy and Resources Use BEJE % & (E FH
Unit 2022 2021
B 20224 2021 4
Electricity kWh 19,657,535 19,786,963
5 TR
Unleaded Petrol L 16,521 17,868
E UM DI
Diesel L 24,950 30,972
s AF
Water m3 211,509 127,704
7K 3275 K
Paper KG 4,155 3,655
AR T

During the Year, there were no non-compliance cases
reported in relation to use of resources within the Group.
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4. WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND EMPLOYEE 4, THRIBENRETIHRE
DEVELOPMENT

4.1 Human Capital and Vocational Training

41 NHEBEXRRBEIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has a total of
2,904 employees, the majority of which are between
20 and 40 years old. The Group strictly complies with
relevant laws and regulations to prevent child labour and
forced labour. The Group encourages its employees to
improve their motivation, concentration and innovation.
Due to the epidemic situation, we mainly provided online
training totaling more than 700 hours, with a total of
more than 9,000 participants and successfully improved
our employees’ professionalism and proficiency in every
aspect. Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules,
all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending training courses or reading
relevant material relating to corporate governance and
regulations to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Group endeavors to attract and cultivate highly
skilled technical personnel with various benefits and
packages. Both Shenzhen Wai Chi and Huizhou Wai Chi
Electronics Company Limited have been accredited by
local governments as high-tech enterprises and enjoyed
corresponding tax concessions.

The Group adopts a monthly performance appraisal system
to evaluate employees’ performance with scientific and
comprehensive indicators, the results of which are used
as important references for employees’ salary adjustment,
promotion and annual bonus rating. We encourage
employees to explore their own strengths. Without being
limited by their positions and profession, we respect
employees’ personal career planning, and support them
in trying and taking up challenges in different areas. The
Group opens up horizontal and vertical career paths, and
always puts the talented and competent people as the first
priority.

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the
performance of employees with reference to the market
condition. The Remuneration Committee was established
to ensure formal and transparent procedures for setting
policies on the remuneration for the Directors.
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B - tERELHE

4. WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND EMPLOYEE

DEVELOPMENT (continued)

4.1 Human Capital and Vocational Training

(continued)

4. THFRIERETHR (F)

4.1 ANBEFXRREEEE (F)

Staff Composition BTHAR

Employees’ Age and Gender Distribution 1E 8 F e R 15 5
2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 &
Age Group F Y4 R 454 (g g
0-15 0-15 0% 0%
16-20 16-20 10% 14%
21-30 21-30 28% 28%
31-40 31-40 35% 34%
41-50 41-50 22% 20%
51-60 51-60 5% 4%
=61/>61 =61/>61 0% 0%
Total wmEt 100% 100%
2022 2021
2022 FF 20214
By Gender BHERIE S 754 btk
Male S 42% 46%
Female gegiid 58% 54%

4.2 Workplace Safety

The Group is committed to providing employees a safe
and healthy working environment, abiding by the Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Rights and Interests
of Workers, and other applicable laws and regulations.
The Group conducts strict and effective management with
respect to personnel, machinery, objects and operating
methods in the production sites, carries out Safety Month
activities on a regular basis and announces the inspection

and evaluation results to all employees.
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4. WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND EMPLOYEE
DEVELOPMENT (continued)

4.2 Workplace Safety (continued)

All new employees will be given a Staff Manual to ensure
that they are informed in a timely manner of the Company’s
general information, regulations and corporate culture
etc. We regularly review and update the contents of the
Staff Manual to keep up with the Company’s strategy and
development plan, and announce such contents timely
on the Group’s internal websites immediately after any
changes are made. In addition to making timely payments
for the pension and insurance on a pro-rata basis as
required by law, the Group also regularly purchases
commercial accident insurance for its employees.

There was no official record of any fatal accident, major
work-related fatalities and work injuries, lost working days
due to work injury in the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the data of
the Group’s work-related injuries and fatalities are listed as
below:

B - ERELEE

4. THFRIERETHR (F)

4.2

%= Z ()
MABBTIHZRBTFM  BR
EETRHERAR—RER &
BREREXS - I i
FHETIFMASR AEZRAAF
EWERERAYN  TRHEREEAR
BEUDT - REK R E TIHRAE
BEAER AR IREZER
RIS BTHABTIHENEE
SMRER -

RMEPAT EBETNERAILS
TESRATEmMBERTIERS -

HE2022F12A31HIEFE &
EEARTETHEERNT

2022 2021 2020
20225 2021 4 2020 4F
Number of work-related A TEMmILT A AE
fatalities IR S 0 0 0
Lost days due to work injury & 1% M 18 L 8 TE R £X 0 0 0
4.3 Care for Our Employees 43 ETHAE

Each subsidiary of the Group sets up a labor union. Funds
are appropriated to such unions on a regular basis for
labor union activities, collection and resolution of staff’'s
suggestions and requests in order to protect interests
of individual employees. Collective birthday celebration
activities are organized regularly for the employees,
featuring delicious meals, entertainment programs and
birthday presents. A special fund for caring donations is
set up by the Group and accrued monthly to help staff in
need, making them feel cared for and developing a sense
of belonging.
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4. WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND EMPLOYEE
DEVELOPMENT (continued)

4.4 Employee Health and Safety

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease (Covid-19)
has become the biggest challenge for the health authorities
in Hong Kong and Mainland China in the past year, the
Group has devised several policies to protect its staff:

—  The Group issued a series of internal rules covering
every aspect of anti-epidemic measures, including the
managing of workshops and dorms, departmental
responsibilities, and procedures to handle health-
related crisis;

— Al public areas and the factory would be disinfected
on a weekly basis;

—  Set up temperature detection gates, personnel
entering the company must pass the temperature
detection, and arrange for staff with fever to be
isolated and seek medical treatment immediately;

- Providing masks, hand sanitiser, 75% alcohol
disinfectant, and protective gloves to all staffs on a
daily basis;

— New crown antigen test kits and antipyretic are
stocked for emergency use;

- Requesting all staffs returning to work from other
regions to present mandatory Health Code, nucleic
acid test records and monitor their health conditions;

— Requesting each staff to report their health status
everyday;

—  Requesting each department head to monitor the
health status of their staff on a timely basis;

— Actively cooperating with community organizations,

and arranging special vehicles with the community to
transport employees to receive COVID-19 vaccination;
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4. WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND EMPLOYEE 4, THRIREBEREIERE (E)
DEVELOPMENT (continued)

4.4 Employee Health and Safety (continued) 44 ETREHEZZ (1)

—  Cooperating with the nucleic acid testing carried
out by the community, and isolate employees who
have been to areas where the epidemic occurred
according to the government’s epidemic prevention
requirements;

—  Posting relevant knowledge on epidemic prevention
in prominent areas inside and outside the company’s
factory area, and promoting the latest epidemic
prevention requirements to employees; and

—  Assigning special epidemic prevention management
staff.

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
health and safety laws and regulations during the year.

5. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
5.1 Supplier Relationships

The Group adheres great importance to the collaboration
with suppliers and believes deeply that establishment of
a cooperation relationship with suppliers would enhance
the continuous improvement on the Group’s workflow
and product quality. The Group conducts comprehensive
evaluations of suppliers on a regular basis. In addition
to reviewing factors such as brand and product quality,
suppliers’ environmental and social responsibility
performance is one of our primary considerations when
establishing strategic relationships. In considering building
partnership, we will give priority to companies holding
ISO14001 environmental management system certification.

All information of the suppliers are maintained in the
ERP system. A supplier assessment mechanism is in
place to perform a strict selection of suppliers in respect
of qualification, material quality, intellectual property
qualification and price in order to ensure the suppliers meet
the production standards in terms of raw material quality,
price and production capacity.
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5. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (continued)

5.2 Price Management Mechanism

A reasonable and effective price management mechanism
is set up. A quotation team reviews material prices,
compares and monitors the prices of each kind of materials
and submits timely reminders and a periodic summary, so
as to make the procurement fair and transparent and to
maintain healthy competition.

6. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

84

6.1 Qualification Certificates

We have been granted several qualification certificates,
including 1ISO 9001:2008, ISO 14001:2004 of Quality
and Environment Management System Certificates, and
ISO/TS 16949:2009 of Quality Control System Certificates.
By stringent and careful implementation of the management
and control systems, the Group maintains an excellent
standard in the industry for the quality and reliability of its
product.

6.2 Product R&D

In response to the rapid technological advancement in the
LED backlight and LED lighting industries, the Group has
been maintaining strong R&D capabilities, upgrading the
skills required in the production processes and actively
improving the production technologies. The Group’s R&D
centre has core competitiveness in the industry, and its
professional and dedicated R&D team has developed on its
own more than 1,000 LED backlight and lighting products,
which have obtained 234 (2021: 209) patents in China
and Hong Kong. Some products have been recognised by
the Science, Industry, Trade and Information Technology
Commission of Shenzhen Municipality as “Independent and
Creative Products of Shenzhen”.
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6. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
6.3 Quality Control

The Group has fully adopted quality management system,
and every employee involved is responsible for the
product quality. We strive to achieve flawless and smooth
procedures from understanding customers’ needs to
providing after-sales services. The Group has purchased
a series of advanced production and testing equipment
with professional technical engineers, committing to
improving production technology and enhancing output
efficiency and product passing rate. There are strict quality
control processes from procurement, design, production
to storage. Such processes include incoming materials
management, sample reliability testing, quality inspection
during the process, ultimate quality control and quality
assessment experiment for the final products.

Through the quality assessment experiment, the yield rate
was improved and the product return rate was below 1% in
2022 (2021: 1.32%)).

6.4 After-sales Service and Information

Maintenance

We undertake the responsibility for each product and
provide customers with warranty and replacement services.
After the expiry of warranty period, we can continue
to provide maintenance services and only charge for
necessary costs. We have been well-received for providing
excellent products and services to our customers. There
are no substantial complaints, returns or reworks arising
from product quality problems during the year.

We strive to protect customer information. All customer
information is maintained in ERP system. Different
management and operation permissions are assigned
to each process and position. The system information is
updated in a timely manner, with layered audit and offsite
backup to ensure the information of every customer can
be properly kept and maintained. The Group is committed
to protecting customers’ data and privacy. Unless the
customer’s consent is obtained, the collected customer
information will not be used for promotional purposes.
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7. ANTI-CORRUPTION

86

7.1 Inspection Mechanism

The Group pursues business ethics and is committed
to operating with integrity. Any form of bribery, fraud,
extortion, corruption and money laundering is strictly
prohibited. The Group has established an inspection
mechanism to regularly scrutinise the implementation of
regulations in each department, and is devoted to reducing
adverse effects on the day-to-day business activities
caused by improper operation and supervision.

Additionally, the Group has implemented an effective
Internal Manual on inside information or price sensitive
information and provided separate channels for the
reporting of any suspected business irregularities, frauds
and corruptions. During the Year, no incident of corruption
was reported within the Group. There was no non-
compliance in relation to corruption or money laundering
related laws and regulations during the Year.

7.2 Internal Audit

The Group has established an internal audit department
which is directly accountable to the Independent Audit
Committee and monitors and improves all procedures of
each member company in the Group, to keep the operation
system and procedures of the Company consistent with
its operational development and changes. The Group has
established a reporting and complaint mechanism and
opened internal and external channels for whistle-blowing
in order to maintain fairness, equity and high standards of
the operational mechanism.
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

We are committed to social responsibility and the contributions
to environmental protection through the development of new
LED energy-saving products. We actively participated in the
government’s street lamps replacement project and popularized
the positive effects on saving resources by replacing the
traditional lamps with LED lamps.

Under the COVID-19 pandemic, we are deeply concerned for
the people in need in our community. As such, we focused
our contribution on relief for the families and elderly in need.
We made a donation of goods worth HK$20,000 to families in
need, through the distribution network of People Service Centre,
Hong Kong Lutheran Social Service, Food Angel, and Kwun
Tong Methodist Social Service. Around the Mid-autumn Festival,
understanding the mental and livelihood challenges of the Hong
Kong elderly, we sponsored HK$40,000 for Charity Cantonese
Opera Show Welcoming Mid-autumn (% 2 & 38 30/ FX) that
provided free online streaming for all. And we made a further
goods donation worth HK$20,000 distributed by HKSKH Li Ka
Shing Day Care Centre for the Elderly, Hong Kong Sheng Kung
Hui Tsz Wan Shan Day Care Centre for the Elderly, Sik Sik Yuen
Ho Chui District Community Centre for Senior Citizens, and
Caritas District Elderly Centre — Yuen Long.

SUMMARY

The Group adheres to the corporate culture of “bring light into
life”, and has been persistent in making contribution to the
development of global lighting industry with superb technology,
reasonable prices and quality services. We strive for excellence
and continuous innovation, aim to create more environmentally
friendly products, commit to the practice of environmental
protection, promote energy conservation and bring about
benefits to customers, shareholders, employees and the whole
society.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 1L &% B 2R 5

.o.o.o .
.0..‘.. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited BEXRPR(EE)GHNEEABRAT
0.0.0 17/F, Chubb Tower, Windsor House, e s T E3115%

311 Gloucester Road, EERELEASKBITHE

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WAI CHI HOLDINGS COMPANY
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wai Chi
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
95 to 218 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of inventories

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on page 120.

The key audit matter
FARERSE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB ERE

AR EELE IR
FARBEZEREARMNEXZHEHRSE X
RSN EREANERIFTRRSERN
FH-ZFFTERBMERBROEAMBR
RARBTEKEBERLNES TERE MR
AT REEFFRERBILER

FE&E
R &Wéﬁﬂ%#&%ﬂﬁ&m M E120E &5t
BUR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMRELRNARERRER

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of
inventories was approximately HK$276,763,000.
Provision of inventories of approximately HK$7,196,000,
and reversal of provision of inventories approximately
HK$13,713,000 were recognised during the year.

We have identified the valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter because of the involvement of significant
management judgement and estimation in identifying
inventories with net realisable values that are lower than
their carrying amounts, and obsolescence, with reference
to the selling prices and condition of inventories.

MR2022%F 12 A31H - FE/MEREEL A276,763,000
BTN  ERERBRGTERELNT7196,008 TEEFE
B 51 1 49 13,713,000 7 7T, °

HRESZFENEE RN BN T 2R FEEREER

EENTFERREBRE S REXNEEEH @b -
B HiFEMERR S HEREZFIER -
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Our audit procedures were designed to assess management
estimation and judgement on the assessment of net realisable
values of inventories and identification of obsolete items
based on their subsequent usage and sales and selling prices
subsequent to the end of the reporting period and current
market conditions.

We have assessed the net realisable values and utilisation of
inventories subsequent to the end of the reporting period and
discussed with the management about the adequacy of the
allowance and provision made by the management based on
subsequent usage and sales, individual market price, ageing
analysis and current market conditions. We have challenged
the assumptions and critical judgements used by the
management by assessing the reliability of the management’s
past estimates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B MRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of trade receivables

Refer to Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on page 126 to page 132.

The key audit matter
AREZSEE

A EZEE ()
P& U B R 1 B

BLMGRAYBHRERM T2 REI126HEE
182 B FTUR »

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMRBELRNARERREE

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was approximately HK$749,923,000, net of
accumulated allowance for impairment of trade receivables
of approximately HK$25,217,000. Net reversal of
impairment losses of trade receivables of approximately
HK$4,425,000 was recognised during the year.

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables is based on
lifetime expected credit losses model, which is estimated
by taking into account the historical credit loss experience
and forward-looking information including both current and
forecast general economic conditions.

We have identified the valuation of trade receivables as
a key audit matter because the impairment assessment
of trade receivables involved a significant degree
of management estimation and may be subject to
management bias.

MR2022F 12 A31H MR EREXRREIRERED
25,217,000 JT 1% + F& UK BR 3K &Y BR T {8 /& %7 749,923,000
BIL-FN CERREREFFREBSERELRFELY
4,425,000/8 7T °

EWERFOREREBNER FERRAEEBRRAEL
MEREEBEEDEHRBEEERRERIAELE
FBRYERNMBARBEENN) REESH

RN ERRFTRENE S REREEE G REERER

BEHIRRER - R HRERREERN A - BERE
=EIA -
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Qur audit procedures were designed to assess the
assumptions and estimation adopted by the Group on
the assessment of expected credit losses model of trade
receivables.

We have assessed the reasonableness of management’s
assumptions and estimation for impairment by examining
the information used by management, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data and evaluating whether
the historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted based on
current economic conditions and forward-looking information.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B MRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B MRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Cheung Wang Kei.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Wang Kei

Practising Certificate Number: PO7788

Hong Kong
24 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
HERaER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FExT FHET
Revenue ¢ -C 7 2,216,352 1,922,595
Cost of sales $HE K AR (1,953,661) (1,640,398)
Gross profit EF 262,691 282,197
Other income H it Ug A 7 52,335 23,239
Other gains and (losses) Habuzs & (E8) 9 14,838 (8,303)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R HAS (36,009) (36,437)
Administrative expenses TEFAX (108,449) (98,748)
Research and development expenses e = (86,044) (65,100)
Finance costs B T R 10 (40,189) (44,975)
Profit before tax FREiRIRE 59,173 51,873
Income tax (expenses) credit Fre®i ()& 11 (377) 69
Profit for the year FERE 12 58,796 51,942
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: AT ALEEFEFRE
(E18) -
— Owners of the Company S YNGIETZ =N 59,912 51,469
- Non-controlling interest — IR S (1,116) 473
58,796 51,942
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings per share SRETR
Basic and diluted BEARREE 15 0.28 0.24
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FeiRaREMZEEaE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

2022 2021

2022 £F 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000

Ti&xT FAET

Profit for the year FERNE 58,796 51,942

Other comprehensive income (expense) that HEEFSEHFL/ETES
will not be reclassified subsequently to MEMZEKRE (FAX) :
profit or loss:

Fair value gain (loss) on investment in equity FBEZRALEFAEMEEI
instrument designated at fair value through mHED TARENARE
other comprehensive income Wz (F518) 1,325 ®)

Other comprehensive (expenses) income that HETREEH D EFTEAH
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or  E{tt 2 (FI3) Y :

loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation of BREBIINEBIBREREED

financial statements of foreign operations PE 3 =58 (55,725) 16,249
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEHMA2E (X)) K

for the year (54,400) 16,241
Total comprehensive income for the year FEFHEKEERE 4,396 68,183
Total comprehensive income (expenses) NTATEEFEZAE YR

for the year attributable to: (X)) #ezs

— Owners of the Company —AREEE A 4,851 68,626

— Non-controlling interests — IR (455) (443)

4,396 68,183
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FeaMBkiiE

As at 31 December 2022 72022412 831 H

2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5% T8 T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BERE&EE 16 309,002 351,357
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 46,186 54,562
Investment property "EYE 18 24,700 26,300
Financial assets at fair value through BRARER AER
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) ([BDanEFAERED
ZEMEE 19 7,633 7,478
Financial asset at fair value through BARBEFAEMEERE
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") Wz (D REFAER
mEmEmkE]) -
TRLEE 20 11,692 10,367
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, BEME - KRB M&E
plant and equipment [RENE& 5,597 6,115
Deposits with bank RITFER 24 167,917 183,464
Deferred taxation assets EIEFIE & B 29 9,254 8,052
581,981 647,695
Current assets MENEE
Inventories 7B 21 276,763 312,029
Trade receivables JRE U5 BR 3K 22 749,923 672,316
Bills receivables e 22 135,822 265,827
Prepayments, deposits and other FENFIE - me LHEM
receivables JE W sk 1E 23 154,594 79,443
Derivative financial instrument MTESFBTA 26 3,162 -
Pledged bank deposits BHEFIRITER 24 562,630 342,017
Bank balances and cash RITAEBR KRR S 24 257,912 112,312
2,140,806 1,783,944
Current liabilities mENAE
Trade payables FEAS BR 3K 25 393,639 400,649
Bills payables AL 25 938,391 763,867
Other payables and accruals HEMENFIERERER 25 75,004 58,418
Contract liabilities afaf 27 10,766 22,499
Bank and other borrowings RIT R H A E R 28 444,408 325,429
Corporate bond NREFH 30 1,976 -
Income tax payables e TSR 3,272 3,497
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 4,347 5,928
1,871,803 1,580,287
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEeMEKAR

As at 31 December 2022 72022512 A31H

2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 5% T8 T
Net current assets mEEERE 269,003 203,657
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 850,984 851,352
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred taxation liabilities BERIAEE 29 368 368
Corporate bond NEfESH 30 - 1,936
Government grants B B 31 17,200 18,793
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 7,015 10,205
24,583 31,302
Net assets EEZRE 826,401 820,050
Capital and reserves BEARRHEE
Share capital (&N 32 2,168 2,168
Reserves ] 823,119 816,313
Equity attributable to owners of KAalER ANE(LER
the Company 825,287 818,481
Non-controlling interests eI 1,114 1,569
Total equity RS 826,401 820,050
The consolidated financial statements on pages 95 to 218 were FOSE2I8EME A M B IHRE D N 2023F 3
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 RAosBEEe i EREETE  WH T
March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: REEE -
Mr. Chen Chung Po Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu
PREEFLEAE kEmLZ L
Director Director
EFE o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReEER=R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 22022412 A31H I FE

Attributable to owners of the Company
AREREAEL
Share Non-
Share Share option  Statutory  Translation Revaluation Merger  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interest equity

Rx  RGEE BRERE  OZERE  EXRE  EEER  SHER  REWE At FERER 4k
HK$000  HK$000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000
Tién Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tién Tn Tin Tin Tin

(Notea) (Note )

(Kita) (K3tb)
At 1 January 2022 H2022%1 £18 2,168 382,147 - 65,713 7,406 440 34,561 376,046 818,481 1,569 820,050
Proft for the year ERHE - - - - - - - 59912 50912 (1,116) 58,796

Other comprehensive EEEMRE (AR 4R
expensg) income for the year

~fairvalue gain on investment & BRAAEIA

in equity instrument Ar2EREL

designated at fai BRTRREZ

value through other ks

comprehensive income - - - - - 1,325 - - 1,325 - 1325

-exchange dfieences arsng A Z 1550 £ 5B %
on translaton of financiel BREEN
statements of oreign EfZE
operations - - - - (56,366) - - - 56,366) 661 (55,725)

Total comprehensive (expense) B2 (B%)
income for hzeg
the year - - - - (56,366) 1,325 - 59,012 4,851 (455) 4,396

Recognion of equity-setted ~ BEFMEREE
share-based payments AR 3R

(Note 37) () - - 1,955 - - - - - 1,955 - 1,055
Transfer &5 - - - 1,906 - - - (1,906) - - -
At 31 December 2022 RARE12A318 2,168 382,147 1,955 67,619 48,980) 1,765 34,561 434,052 825,287 1,114 826,401
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReHREEER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

Attributable to owners of the Gompany

KARERARE
Non-
Share Share  Statutory  Translation  Revaluation Merger  Refained controling Total
captal  premium feserve fesere esenve esenve profts Total Interest equity
RE  BORE irBE  EREE  BREE  AUBR  REVE At FoRER  BEs
HK$ 000 HK$j0(J£) HKS000  HKS000  HKS 000 HK$j0(J£) HKS000 K000 HK$fO(p HK$f0@)
TEn  TEr TEr T TER TEr TEr TEn TER TR
Notea) Noteb)
(Kta) (Kistb)
At 1 January 2021 RONETA1A 2168 33147 61,938 (9,759 448 34561 30832 749855 2012 751867
Proft for the year EEHE - - - - - - 51469 51469 a3 5194
Other comprehensive income~ £E 42 B4 E (A%
(expenses) for the year
~fairvalueloss onnvestment BT BRAREA
in equity instrument EfprEhE
designated at fai RIARE LR
value through other [EEE
comprehensive income - - - - ] - - ) - )
-exchange diferences aisng  ~AE B £ BHHR
on transiation of financial REEM
statements of foreign EXEE
Operations - - - 17,165 - - - 17,165 916) 16,249
Total comprehensiieincome.~ £5 2EAE
(expense) or the year (Rx)£8 - - - 116 6] - 51469 6866 {43 68,183
Transfer BT - - 3775 - - - (3779) - - -
At 31 December 2021 ot
128318 2168 33,147 65,713 7,408 40 3561 376046 818481 1569 820,050
Notes: P& -
(@  As stipulated by regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), (a) hEARLEMNME ([RE]) EZRB|EARQ T RE

the Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in the PRC are required
to appropriate 10% of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year losses)
as determined in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations in
the PRC, to statutory reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital of the relevant subsidiaries. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of a dividend to equity owners.

Merger reserve represented the difference between the nominal value of the
issued capital of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation
over the consideration paid for acquiring these subsidiaries.

In 20183, as part of the pre-listing reorganisation, the Company issued 135
ordinary shares of HK$1,000,000 each which, through its subsidiaries, were
used to subscribe for new shares issued and allotted by Wai Chi Group
(HK) Limited and became the holding company of the Group. The difference
between the proceeds from the issuance of shares and the then share capital
and capital reserve subscribed was recognised in the merger reserve.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FeBanER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

2022 2021
20224 2021 F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Ti&xT FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Profit before tax B 31 A1 A1 59,173 51,873
Adjustments for: FEATEIE
Finance costs B 75 A AN 40,189 44,975
Bank interest income HRITHEHA (34,815) (9,298)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y- BEREEITE 53,262 48,274
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FERAREENE 6,748 10,186
Government grants RS 48 B (10,981) (5,442)
(Reversal) provision of impairment losses of P MK BR SR % EL A FE M SR IR R (B
trade and other receivables, net 518 (B =) B 5 (308) 10,455
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and HEYWE  BELXEEE
equipment (Wezs) 9,366 (58)
Loss on write-off of property, plant and MY - BE R EREEE
equipment 1,390 702
Impairment loss recognised on construction RERIRRRZRMEESE
in progress 2,624 -
Reversal of provision of inventories BEiFERE (13,713) (9,364)
Provision of inventories FERE 7,196 6,483
Share-based payment expenses AR A RIBR X 1,955 -
Gain on fair value changes of derivative financial ~ $fTE£ &M T EZ AR EEEH)
instrument Wz (3,162) -
Loss on fair value changes of investment property && #% ~ A v [EE 8 EE 1,600 -
(Gain) loss from changes in fair value of financial R A BT ABZR 2 &8
assets at FVTPL BEZAREZE (W)
BB (155) 729
Operating cash flows before movementsin ZEELEEH
working capital RERSRHE 120,369 149,515
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA GEm) 19,756 (82,093)
Increase in trade receivables JE Y BR B3 0 (160,240) (99,623)
Decrease (increase) in bills receivables e S g R > (12 n) 102,760 (101,969)
(Decrease) increase in prepayments, deposits and  TE{T 78 ~ & & H h fE Uk
other receivables RIE Ot ) 180 (49,096) 71,345
Increase in trade payables FET R SR N 23,850 96,684
Increase in bills payables FET R EEIE N 257,861 199,601
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities armaE o) Em (11,412) 16,171
Increase in other payables and Hab e gIERTEIRE AN
accruals 18,412 7,832
Cash generated from operations REFMELERS 322,260 257,463
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BAFBEMSH (2,481) (2,047)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & ZHFFE4XRSEHE 319,779 255,416
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HeEReiER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Ff&E TR FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Interest received B W F B 1,703 2,692
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERALEFAERZ
through profit or loss SHREE - (4,697)
Purchase of financial asset at fair value BEZALETAEM
through other comprehensive income TEHESZEREE - (6,692)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEE - HERRE
plant and equipment FriS U8 93 238
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BBEWE - BE K& E (50,660) (25,359)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary 4 & — & Ff B 2 &) 49
e mLFE 40 - (79,749)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits R EEFRITIFR 519,108 519,317
Placements of pledged bank deposits FABBHERITIFR (766,166) (575,250)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETEFTARLSERE
ACTIVITIES (295,922) (169,600)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Interest paid ERFLE (40,149) (44,894)
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BRIRIT R EAME K (769,384) (757,810)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEARE (6,772) (9,962)
New bank and other borrowings raised FTIGERIT M H b & 3K 942,648 729,686
Government grants received B, YR T 4 B 10,841 5,296
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING R Z EBIFRESE (FrA)
ACTIVITIES ReFE 137,184 (77,684)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReERF2EEWILM
CASH EQUIVALENTS RE 161,041 8,132
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT M1A1BNRERAEE
1 JANUARY B 112,312 101,520
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEHNTE (15,441) 2,660
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE 7128 31 B&REFHY
END OF 31 DECEMBER, represented RERALZEY -
by bank balances and cash BERTESBRAS 257,912 112,312
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

GENERAL

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands on 16 August 2013 and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 November 2014. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, Rexell Technology Company
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Island, is
considered as the parent and ultimate parent company of the
Company. Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Yiu Chi To, who
passed away on 28 January 2022.

The address of the registered office of the Company is Offshore
Incorporations (Cayman) Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands and the address of the principal place of business of the
Company is 6th Floor, Liven House, 63 King Yip Street, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 39.

The functional currency of the Company and the subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong are Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) while
that of the subsidiaries established in the PRC are Renminbi
(“RMB”). For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) adopted HK$
as its presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following amendments to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which are effective
for the Group’s financial year beginning 1 January 2022:

Amendments to HKFRS 16~ COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
2021
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Amendments to Hong Kong  Property, Plant and Equipment:
Accounting Standard Proceeds before Intended Use
(“‘HKAS”) 16
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 cycle

Amendment to HKFRSs

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material effect on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior periods
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

The amendments did not have significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

104

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. ERMIEEBMEHRELEL

(E8KHELEL] REE
HE:S

RNEEF AEBEBREAATHESS
A ((EBEMAE) AHENE
B EREER ((EBMEREED))
BEIA  BAEER2022F1A1HH
18 B BT B S AR

EEMBHREER 7202146 A30H
F16%5 (BFTA) 1% COVID-1918
Aeme
EBTHHRELER BEZRRM
EXEACCHIWN)

BT ER] S E P &
([EBEERN]) H:BHEAEH
ERLEACCHES) B FT 15 3R

BB SRR FEIEEEO-FE
F 375 (BETA) TE MR

BREMBRELER 2018 F £20204F
(BETA) REEBYS

WMEEANF
ERe:

RAFREREBMBGHREENEFT A
HAREEEAMBEHENMBRIR KL
MR, S AR A B 5 R 3k 79 P R O 3R
BEMUESATE -

AFERI AT HAREE I BN R
RBERERTE -

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | 5B ER Q7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the October  Insurance Contracts

2020 and February 2022
amendments to HKFRS 17)
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture ®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and the related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause ?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 2
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transactions

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the above new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

2022 Annual Report | £

2. ERAMIEEMGHREEH

(EEMBREED ) REE
HENE)

EEMERRENOMTERY
BHRELEAHREEITR
AEEWEIBFEAATEHEMER K
MR BB B EmE ER R EERT
N

BB HREER REBAEHK"
F17% (B152020F
10 B R 20222 A K
ERRBRELRE
17RAERTA)

BB HREER EhOANEERR?
£16% (1B K)

BB HREER BREFHREBENAN
FI0RRBEGE AEbECEHEE
8552857 (53] &) HEHIRAS

BB ERE1H BEENERTELE

(BETK) RBREERESS
5% (2020 F) BT R &

ZE2H-ERAHE
BREFEEERD
THEFETIEN
RAEAT

BEGENEIR  MERENERD
(7T A

BEGTEANFEIRR  SHBERE
BEMBHREERE

BRES 2

CHES)

BB QHERZESR SEHEHMNES
CHES)

ABGHENE 2R BHE-RFELNEE
(1BETR) LB ERBERLT

HIE!

! R2023F1 A1 HEFRIENFE M
AR

2 20241 A1 B HZ MR FE R
HER e

¢ REHERHIRERMAHFERBER -

ARAREFEY  BRLAFHTREN
BHREENREETAG IS U AEH
MERENRVBERABEATE -

105



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFHHE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment property, financial
assets at FVTPL, financial asset at FVTOCI and derivative
financial instrument, that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. Details of fair value measurement
are explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (jii) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income/expenses of subsidiaries is attributed
to owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Assets acquisitions

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially all
of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in
a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from
the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test is
met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to be a
business and no further assessment is needed.

When the Group acquires a group of assets that do not
constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired assumed by allocating
the purchase price first to investment properties which are
subsequently measured under fair value model and financial
assets and financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the
remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not
give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods. Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

e  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
e  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation.

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of
goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are
substantially same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e The Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

e The Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHE(E)

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer, excludes discounts and sales related
taxes.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration from the customer.

The Group recognised revenue from the sales of goods including
(i) Light-Emitting Diode (“LED”) backlight; (i) LED lighting; and (iii)
sourcing business.

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered to location specified by the customers and accepted
by the customers, which is recognised at a point in time when
the customer has the ability to direct the use of the products.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those
goods to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an
agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good before
that good is transferred to a customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Principal versus agent (continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange
for the provision of the specified good by another party. In this
case, the Group does not control the specified good provided
by another party before that good is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods to be
provided by the other party.

Leasing

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease,
at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term
leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease liability
at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. The lease payments are discounted by using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise:

e fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments); and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before
the commencement date and any initial direct costs.

Except for the right-of-use assets classified as investment
property and measured under fair value model, right-of-use
assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. They are depreciated over
the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or
the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group expects
to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The
depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property as a separate line item in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The right-of-
use assets that meet the definition of investments property is
presented within “Investment property”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-
use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment
loss.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term upon exercising purchase
options, the carrying amount of the relevant right-of-use asset is
transferred to property, plant and equipment.

The Group as lessor

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect
to its investment property. Leases for which the Group is a
lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct cost incurred in negotiating and arranging on operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHE(E)

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to stage-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax (expense) credit represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
property that is measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amount of such property is presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. The directors of the Company reviewed the
Group’s investment property and concluded that the Group’s
investment property is not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in investment property over time, rather than through
sale. Therefore, the directors of the Company have determined
that the “sale” presumption set out in the amendments to HKAS
12 is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised
any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the investment
property as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on the
fair value changes of the investment property on disposal.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at
initial recognition due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent
revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and
lease modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition
exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement or
modification.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or for administrative purposes
other than construction in progress as described below are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
buildings

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position except for those are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management, including cost of testing whether
the related assets are functioning properly and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
buildings (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Owned investment property are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment property is measured at its fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property is included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value of inventories represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and bank balances comprise cash (i.e. cash on hand) and
cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments rather for investment or other
purposes.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents,
as defined above.

Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value, except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets. Financial assets are
classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI") and FVTPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured

using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period.

For financial assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) excluding expected credit losses (“ECL”), through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost.
For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset.
If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in
the “Other income” line item (Note 7).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Equity instrument designated as at FVTOC/

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate
investment in equity instrument as at FVTOCI. Designation at
FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held for
trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination.

Investment in equity instrument at FVTOCI is initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the revaluation reserve. The cumulative gain
or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of
the equity investment, instead, it will be transferred to retained
profits.

Financial assets at FV/TPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.
Specifically:

o Investments in equity instruments are classified as
at FVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent
consideration arising from a business combination as at
FVTOCI on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

e Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost
criteria or the FVTOCI criteria are classified as at FVTPL. In
addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortised
cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates
or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases. The Group has not designated any debt
instruments as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part
of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “other gains
and losses” line item (Note 9). Fair value is determined in the
manner described in note 6.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term; or

e on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

° it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument).

This category contains investment in a life insurance policy. The
Group accounts for the investment at FVTPL.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on investments
in debt instruments that are measured at amortised costs. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continueq)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical credit loss experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors
operate, obtained from relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate
to the Group’s operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continueq)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if (i) the financial instrument
has a low risk of default, (i) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and (jii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of ‘investment grade’
in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating
of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there are no past due amounts.

128

EFEEERE)

£MIE (M)

SMAE ()

SBAENE (F)

(S R 0 ()

s EBANEE EHEARMERRE
PRECTEH IR B AT B T 8 5
EHARTHEGRTNENAR
TH -

Tim B FHEEROE - AEBRERE
BRNFBEEB0RE  eRITAMN
FERRE B NRERARBEL N
BRIEAKEEREAMERKENE MR
R IR AR L RIVE Bl ©

BE LA AEEBRWEF LA
EThARBERHAEGKREERR 8
EFTANEERR B THERNRL
BmEBERM-MBATER 8T A
ETrTAAEBEEERRKR: (2T AR
BEREORR  WERAREHANELE
HWEENBOTEANBESREEE @ Ki)
REEEREBRAN T EB) A 4218
F—EHRBERABITESGNESRE
EEMEN - REBMRB A BEREZRM
BAMNTEE  BEEMIINBEEAFTAIE
B RIZESTAAEREEERR
SR TRl SN R -  ZBEERA
NEBT R [BAIR] - BRI HEF
7 BB M AR B Em ER 08 o

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | 5B ER Q7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continueq)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable:

e when there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor;
or

e information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continueq)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the debtor;
e  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

e the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continueq)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this
is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continueq)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised
in profit or loss. On derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial recognition
to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit
or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of
an acquirer in a business combination, (i) held-for-trading, or
(i) designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transaction

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payment transaction (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Share options granted to employees (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to retained earnings.

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generation units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the year in which it is incurred.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s share-based
payment transactions, leasing transactions, net realisable value
of inventories and value in use of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets for the purpose of impairment
assessment, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value measurements
into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as
follows:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 —  Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 —  Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occurs between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgement, estimates and assumptions about the
amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses reported
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised and disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Principal versus agent consideration

The Group engages in trading of memory chips related products.
The Group assessed whether the Group should recognise
revenue on gross basis based on the requirements in HKFRS
15. The Group concluded that the Group acts as the principal
for such transactions as it controls the specified good before
it is transferred to the customer after taking into consideration
indicators such as that the Group is primarily responsible for
fulfilling the promise to provide the goods. The Group has
inventory risk and discretion in establishing selling prices of the
goods. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recognised revenue in respect of such business is approximately
HK$504,317,000 (2021: HK$319,145,000).

Deferred taxation on investment property

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment property that is measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property and concluded that
the Group’s investment property is held under a business model
whose objective is to consume through sale, rather than to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on such investment property, the
directors of the Company have determined that the presumption
that the carrying amount of investment property measured
using the fair value model is recovered entirely through sale
not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised any
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment properties
as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on the fair value
changes of the investment property on disposal.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2022, No deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax losses of HK$64,147,000 due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams for certain subsidiaries.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal takes place.

Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price for
inventories, less the estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sales. The management reviews the
inventory ageing listing on a periodic basis for those aged
inventories. This involves comparison of carrying amount of the
aged inventory items with the respective net realisable value.
The purpose is to ascertain whether allowance is required to be
made in the consolidated financial statements for any obsolete
and slow moving items. The Group has carried periodic review
on the net realisable value of inventory. However, the actual
realisable value of inventory is not known until the sale was
concluded. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of
inventories of the Group was approximately HK$276,763,000
(2021: HK$312,029,000) (net of provision of inventories of
approximately HK$61,465,000 (2021: HK$74,002,000)).
Net reversal of provision of inventories of approximately of
HK$6,517,000 (2021: HK$2,881,000) was recognised during
the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Valuation of trade receivables

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables are based on
assumptions about ECL. The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, bases on the number of days that an individual
receivable is past due as well as the Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forward-looking information at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in these assumptions and estimations
could materially affect the result of the assessment and it may
be necessary to make additional allowance for impairment to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at 31 December
2022, the carrying amounts of trade receivables of the Group
was approximately HK$749,923,000 (2021: HK$672,316,000)
(net of accumulated allowance for impairment of trade
receivables of HK$25,217,000 (2021: HK$32,563,000)).

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use-assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying amount
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in
the case of value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs.

140

S Est FIE R A5t T HEER
ENEEZRIF (B)

ERF T RERZNEEZRR ()

B R (L {E

FEURR A R BB E I IRE B TE R
EBEENBRREL AEBEIFLZS
BEBEIMERBFBRESTENGAZBIBE - T
R A5 1B 51 FE 45 AR 518 HA R U R AR &2 (B
RBERRNESLEEEBLERH RATE
MHERHEL HE - ZEBRRMGEINE
R THTEEREEEAZE kA
BEFE N A BERPEREINRERE -
MN20225 12 A31H - NEBHEWEE
R (B & #749,923,000 7% 7T (2021
F 1 672,316,000 7T) + HOBR & B BR X
R ER M 25,217,000 7T (2021 4F -
32,563,0007/87C) °

ME- -BERRBUAREREEE
fHEtiR{E

M R R R DA K (5 B #E B EE LARK
AR R AT E FORE (I F) JI R - IV
EEERTDBER  NEBZAELHE
Nfbst LEFHE: (NWREEEHE#E
ERBEAESRAETEEEFE: (Q
EEREESGREMATERE 5 (10
REMEE) XK IRBRSEEREE
B ARKRBESRENFRE : RO B
FERR AR AT S A EE BRRR
(BRREREFHZEENRREK) -
B EOAARHER B ER AU & 5B
AEBEEHAEEMBRSESEMDN
AU el 5

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | 5B ER Q7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use-assets (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets were approximately
HK$309,002,000 and HK$46,186,000 respectively (2021:
HK$351,357,000 and HK$54,562,000 respectively) (net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately HK$2,624,000
and nil (2021: nil and nil) respectively). Impairment loss
of property, plant and equipment of approximately of
HK$2,624,000 (2021: nil) was recognised during the year.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consist of net debt, (which
includes lease liabilities in note 17, bank and other borrowings
disclosed in note 28, corporate bond disclosed in note 30, net of
pledged bank deposits, deposits with bank and bank balances
and cash) and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of
the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new shares issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. 2R TAHA
Categories of financial instruments eMIBENER
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T FHET
Financial assets EREE
Amortised cost - E S DN
(including bank balances and cash) (BIEBRITEHERS) 1,962,539 1,633,291
Financial asset at FVTOCI BAREBEHAEMEERZEZ
— Equity instruments designated at FVTOCI —BEABAEF ARAM
FHRE E=T A 11,692 10,367
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREFABRZEREE
- Equity assets mandatorily measured -8 IR A A BT ABEET
at FVTPL ECEREE 10,795 7,478
1,985,026 1,651,136
Financial liabilities 2RAaE
Amortised cost 3N 1,850,829 1,544,512
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets
at FVTPL and FVTOCI, trade receivables, bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
deposits with bank, bank balances and cash, trade payables,
bills payables, other payables and accruals, bank and other
borrowings and corporate bond. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which exposes the Group to foreign currency
risk. Approximately 58% (2021: 31%) of the Group’s sales is
denominated in United States dollars (‘US$”) other than the
functional currency of the group entities making the sale, while
approximate 59% (2021: 48%) of costs is denominated in US$
which are different from the functional currencies of the entities
carrying out the transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Also, trade, bills and other receivables, bank balances and cash,
trade, bills and other payables and bank and other borrowings
are denominated in RMB, US$ and HK$ which are currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant group
entities. The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

RMB AR
uss$ ETT
HK$ BT

6. £ T H (%)
Bt 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

% E kg (%)
B (&)
BESN - R BR R - MR SR R N H A R UK

R RITEBRERE  BHKRR B
SR8 K E A A SRR A RR 1T R E At
ERAHEEE BRI EERE U A
R# XA RAETAHE - ARERRE
HIRMIMNEGHEMEREERER AR

FEREELT ¢
Assets Liabilities
BE afE

2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 £F 2021 4 2022 2021 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHET T T T
267 319 - _
254,343 39,124 163,829 197,727
42 235 - 2,737

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
exchange exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to RMB and HK$.

No sensitivity analysis was prepared for US$ as the financial
assets and liabilities denominated in US$ are mainly held by the
subsidiaries with HK$ as the functional currency and HK$ is
pegged to USS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continueq)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2021:5%) increase or decrease in HK$ against the relevant
foreign currencies other than US$. 5% (2021: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents the
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of each reporting period
for a 5% (2021:5%) change in foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes external loans as well as loans to
foreign operations within the Group where the denomination of
the loan is in a currency other than the functional currency of
the lender or the borrower. A positive (negative) number below
indicates an increase (a decrease) in post-tax profit where the
respective functional currencies strengthen by 5% (2021: 5%)
against the relevant currency. For a 5% (2021: 5%) weakening
of HK$ against the relevant foreign currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit and other equity and the
balances below would be negative.

R TH (&)
B 35 L B E I B R R BUR (4])

hi% E ks (48)

B (&)

BREE DT ()
TRAVAEEBFBBETHETAINIG
HERAONE EFHE T #5% (2021 4F : 5%)
I BURE © 5% (20214 : 5%) AR &R (A
FEEEABREIERRTERD
R E REEEBYINEIERS
AEEEEMTE RRELIMESEMN
INESTEMAREEEREE  UHER
MERRNBLEERINEEREE5%
(2021%F : 5% ) AR - BEREDTE
FEINEEE FRIA R M AL B A B INET
RENER  EREFUERARER
AR EB AN EBETE - AT
PIMIE (B) BERWSBIEEE X8
RSN TFHE 5% (2021 4 : 5% ) BE & Hi 14
I CRid) - 478 7T X AERE SN EE B
B5% (20214 : 5%) - ¥ 58 R EH A
BREKESSENEREE MUT
EHERAH -

Impact on profit for the year HERFENZE
RMB AR
HK$ BT

2022 2021
2022 2021 F

HK$’000 HK$’000

TExT FHET
(i) (11) (13)
(i) (2) 106

(i) This is mainly attributable to the exposure to bank balances and cash
and trade and bills receivables denominated in RMB at the end of the
reporting period.

(i) This is mainly attributable to exposure to bank balances and cash,
trade and bills receivables and trade and bills payables denominated in
HKS$ at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate pledged bank deposits and deposits with bank (see
Note 24) and fixed-rate bank borrowings (see Note 28). The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider other necessary actions when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate pledged bank deposits and bank
balances (see Note 24) and variable-rate bank and other
borrowings (see Note 28). It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interest so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (‘HIBOR”)/
London Interbank Borrowing Rate (“LIBOR”) arising from the
Group’s Hong Kong dollars denominated borrowings and the
fluctuation of Loan Prime Rate (“LPR”) arising from the Group’s
RMB denominated borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the amounts of financial instruments outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point (2021: 50 basis point) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents the management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2021: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2022 would decrease/increase by HK$2,907,000 (2021: post-
tax profit decrease/increase by HK$1,531,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk on its variable-rate bank borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into
account any collateral held or other credit enhancements, which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from bank balances,
pledged bank deposits, deposits with bank, trade receivables,
bills receivables and deposits and other receivables. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets. The
carrying amounts of these balances represent our Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. The Group determines the ECL collectively by using a
provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss
experience, as well as the general economic conditions of
the industry in which the debtors operate. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

For bills receivables, deposits and other receivables, the Group
has assessed whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. The Group considers that
there are no significant increase in credit risk of these amounts
since initial recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12m ECL.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance as at 31
December 2022, HK$206,274,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$178,967,000), representing 28% (31 December 2021: 27%)
of the total trade receivables, is due from the Group’s largest
customer. There are no other customers who represent more
than 5% of the total trade receivables balance as at the end of
the reporting periods. The concentration of credit risk is limited
due to the customer base being large and unrelated.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in PRC, which accounted for 69% (2021:
65%) of the total trade receivable as at 31 December 2022.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 28% (2021:
27%) and 62% (2021: 58%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively within the property construction business
segment.
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e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and

R TH (&)
Bt 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued) FE R (4])

The Group'’s exposure to credit risk REEE G IZERRE

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the REEEB A2 EERRITRELRBEN
following categories: TR -

Basis for recognising

Category Description ECL
ERENREESE
%5l ikt P=%
Performing For financial assets where there has been low risk of default or 12-month ECL
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit-impaired (refer to as Stage 1)
B4 RENEBRBEINNEERARGEERRT ERELNL 12@8BHEESE
TREREERENEREE BEE—BR)
Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a significant increase Lifetime ECL - not credit-
in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit- impaired
impaired (refer to as Stage 2)
T &t SRR ERAREERRBEENMEYBELREEREN FERRREESS
TREE(BERR) —WEEREERE
Default Financial assets are assessed as credit-impaired when one or Lifetime ECL - credit-
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated impaired
future cash flows of that asset have occurred (refer to as
Stage 3)
EHX) BRLGHZEAEMAARKRRRREBEXN TP EN—H GFEHRBEEESSE
ZREN AeREESRTITR/LREERE (FBE=HKR) —HREERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
85 EEBRTEBSARABRENMBREEAEE TR ABER WHEHSHE
AT E A B@RIA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& M H R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. 2R T H (&)
Financial risk management objectives and BERAREEEEREE(8)
policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EE RS (48)
The Group's exposure to credit risk (continued) FEFE G IZRER (E)
The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s financial TRFMZEERBIHRE D 2 AEEH
assets, as well as the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk CHEEZEEERURAEERABR Y
by credit risk rating grades. BAEERR -
31/12/2022 311272021
202F12A31R 2021512 A31H
Gross Net Gross Net
Internal credit 12-month or carrying Loss carrying carrying Loss carrying
Notes ~ rating lifetime ECL amount  allowance amount amount  allowance amount
12ERSHEY
fi ABEERR RHEEESE REAE BREE  RETE QR - R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#n T THT T TR T
Trade receivables 2 (Notg) Lifetime ECL (simpliied 175,140 (25,217) 749,923 704,879 (32,563) 672,316
approach)
e (H3t) FRERBEERR
(L)
Bils receivables 22 Performing 12-month ECL 135,622 - 135,822 265,827 - 265,827
EYEE B 12EARBEESR
Deposits and other 23 Performing 12-month ECL 98,630 (10,299) 88,335 64,082 (6,927) 57,355
receivables
& RABENGR ) 1EARREESE
Deposits with bank 24 Performing 12-month ECL 167,917 - 167,917 183,464 - 183,464
#i7E7 B 1EAREEESE
Pledged bank deposs 24 Performing 12-month ECL 562,630 - 562,630 342,017 - 342,017
BERRTER B 1REAREEESE
Bank balances 24 Performing 12-month ECL 257,912 - 251,912 112312 - 112,312
/765 B 1PEABHEESR

(35,512) (39,490
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e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's exposure to crediit risk (continued)

Note: For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group
determines the ECL on trade receivables collectively by using a
provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience
and the past due status of the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to
reflect current conditions and estimates of future economic conditions.
Note 22 includes further details on the loss allowance for these assets.

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL as
disclosed in note 19 best represents their respective maximum
exposure to credit risk. The Group holds no collateral over any
of these balances.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank and other
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2022, the Group has
available unutilised trade financing and bank loan facilities of
HK$57,671,000 (2021: HK$472,601,000), details of which are
set out in Note 28(e).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the banks or financial
institution choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates
for other non-derivatives financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.

152

R TH (&)
Bt 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

EEREM (&)

A& [E E i < 1= B R ()
iaE : BLBMOERKM S - ARBEERBEEMBR
SRR FESROEILAF EFEBRAE
BEEENEBREE AEERBEREE
PREARETERUERNEREEDBE
RRBEEBANELEEBRER BT
BEROR A WEHEE BEAR
AR B OR R BA B FT o B RE
RHBEREEEBRBENE—TFE -

M 19 IBEAREIR A LB AR
ZeRMEBEEZREAERERRBEAEE
FEEEYzEREERR AKELE
MEMZFEST A TAERR -

REBEXER

REERDESREBRMNE  AEBEER
REREEERSEMBRNASEEXH
MRERERENBNTENRE RER
TEBYKY - EEEEERITREM
ERERBER - ARFERE T BN -

AEBEKBRITREMEREARDE
SR EBRIF - L2022 12 A31H -
AEEHREUANADAEZME MR
TE R RN & 57,671,000 7T (2021 4 :
472,601,000/ 7T) - B FBEH R =F
28(e) °

TRANREEFITESRBENTH
O TERESHMABMNRIRR
TRERE - WIRANKE A BEAN KA
RPAHOE RABME 2 AAKE
SKIER G AIRITIE AT AR R R AR
MAmBITHN S REE R D AR ET
FERENEF - HMIFTESRBED
AMAREHEEEDMER

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | 5B ER Q7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 22022412 A31H I FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. ERMIA (M)
Financial risk management objectives and BERAREEEEREE(8)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) RENE £ ()
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To TEREEFBERASCHESRE - WF &
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted MRFEFE  BIRMBSHEUASTRE
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of each HAR M FI R AR5 -

reporting period.

As at 31 December 2022

R2022512A31H
More than More than
On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
or within less than less than undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
EEX BB1F BiloF REH
H1EFER BOR25F BOR5E REKME IREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti#x Tign Ti#gn Ti#gx Ti#n
Trade payables FERERR 393,639 - - 393,639 393,639
Bills payables ENER 938,391 - - 938,391 938,391
Other payables and accruals ~ EHERFUB L
ERRER 72,415 - - 72,415 72,415
Bank and other borrowings BT REAMER
(Note) (FizE) 482,976 - - 482,976 444,408
Corporate bond NElfEH 2,120 - - 2,120 1,976
1,889,541 - - 1,889,541 1,850,829
Lease liabilities HEAE 4,895 4,496 2,871 12,262 11,362

2022 Annual Report | F & 1 53



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

6.

R TH (&)
Bt 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

RENE £ ER ()

As at 31 December 2021

R2021F12 A318

More than More than
On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
or within less than lessthan  undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
JEZ sk BiE1E B2 F REFE
H1FR BAR2EF BLREE HEREHE RHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT
Trade payables FERT AR 400,649 - - 400,649 400,649
Bills payables EREE 763,867 - - 763,867 763,867
Other payables and accruals ~ E A e FUE &
BRER 52,631 - - 52,631 52,631
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER
(Note) (F3zE) 329,118 - - 329,118 325,429
Corporate bond NEfER 160 160 1,960 2,280 1,936
1,546,425 160 1,960 1,546,425 1,544,512
Lease liabilities HEaRE 6,656 4,101 6,926 17,683 16,133

Note: Bank and other borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or within 1 year time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank and other borrowings
amounted to HK$444,408,000 (2021: HK$325,429,000). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors of the Company do
not believe that it is probable that the banks and financial institutions
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The directors of the Company believe that these bank and other
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows will amount to approximately
HK$485,202,000 (2021: HK$357,127,000).

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of each
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& M H R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. R T A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and BERAREEEEREE(8)
policies (continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments ERMTAENAAEGFE
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TERRERSREAREAABTED
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting ST ASN  UREBEAEESEER
period, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on the degree to AERAAREABREZIEEIERE &
which the fair value is observable in accordance to the Group’s =

accounting policy.

31/12/2022
20225 12H31H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F—1R FH F= At

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TiEx TiEx Ti#rn TiEx
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAABHARRZEREE

Derivate financial instrument fTHEEBTIA - 3,162 - 3,162

Investments in a life insurance policy ~ A SRR EHRE - 7,633 - 7,633
Financial asset at FVTOCI BAABEHAEMZEKEZ

tREE
Unlisted equity investment FETREEHRE - - 11,692 11,692
Total Fot - 10,795 11,692 22,487
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

6. €mTI A (&)
Bt 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

EMTANDAENE (B)

(continued)
31/12/2021
202112 A31H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—8 EZH E=R @ar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET THT THET
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAABHABRZEMEE
Investments in a life insurance policy ~ ASRBREHRE - 7,478 - 7,478
Financial asset at FVTOCI BRAABEGAHMREKE 2
SHEE
Unlisted equity investment FEMERRE - - 10,367 10,367
Total @t - 7,478 10,367 17,845

The valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair value
measurements of each financial instruments on a recurring basis

are set out below:

Financial instruments

$HIA

Derivate financial instrument

fTE2RTA
Investments in  ife insLrance

policy
NERRERE
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EeMIAARBEAEMERNMGEET
ERBABIE (GREE L) HIIT

Valuation Significant Relationship of key inputs
Fair value techniques and unobservable and significant unobservable
higrarchy Fair value as at key inputs inputs inputs to fair values
fbERER X7 IERABBREATTHR
DLEER IEBANE LN ¢ BABBEQLENEE
RAAPIP M 3112/2021
ANE W1
12A31H 12A318
HK$'000 HKS000
Tin T
Level2 3,162 - Discounted cashfow N/ /A
E-R §FReRE el 0l
Level2 1,633 7478 Quoted price by the NA NA
insurance company  MEF 0k
b RBLTHRE

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | 5B ER Q7



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

Financial instruments

$HIE

Unlisted equity investment
FIPEGRE

2022 Annual Report | £ &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

6. £ T H (%)
Bt 35 L B I B AR R BUR (4])

EMTANDAENE (B)

Valuation Significant Relationship of key inputs
techniques and unobservable and significant unobservable
key inputs inputs inputs to fair values
[EERER EXFT IZHAMBREATTEE
IZBANE LN HAHBALAENER
3112/2021
W1
12A318
HKS'000
T
10,367 Market approach Mean Enterprise Value-to-sales ratio The mean of EV/S is postiively correlated
k) ('EV/S") multples of 0.7 (2021: 1.04) to the fair value measurement of the

CEEEABELX([EVS)) B2
hZ 07/ (20015 1 1.0418)

Mean Price-to-book ratio (‘P/B’) multiples
0f1.25(2021:1.28)
mRERAELE (TS &8

o

81 250 (2015 1 1.2815)

Mean Enterprise Value-to-Eaming Before
Interest and Taxes ratio (‘EV/EBIT')
muttiples of 13.41 2021: 15.37)

PEBEERSRANRNSLE
(TEVIEBIT]) & AE1341 (%
(20215 : 15.376%)

Mean Price-to-Eaming ratio (‘P/E')
multiples of 13.78 (2021: 16.62)

TRERHLE(HRE) R
AT 13.785 (20215 < 15.62%)

unlisted equity investment
EVISPALEERSE AR AR
PMETEZLAE

The mean of P/B is postively correlated
to the fair value measurement of the
unlisted equtty investment

mRERUHEE L REREN
MEFEZIEE

The mean of EV/EBIT is positively correlated
o the fair value measurement of the
unlisted equity investment

EVEBT L8155 LR REH
MEBHEZTHE

The mean of P/E s posttively corrlated
o the fair value measurement of the
unlisted equty investment

MARRUHEE L REREN
MEFEZEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)
Valuation
Fair value techniques and
Financial instruments hierarchy Fair value as at key inputs
[sERER
SRIR MEER e IRBALE

IAPIVZ  31/12/2001
N2E W E
128310 IR
HK$000 HKS'000
TR TEn

&R TH (%)
Bt 35 L B I B AR R BUR (4])

EMTANDAENE (B)

Significant Relationship of key inputs
unobservable and significant unobservable
inputs inputs to fair values
EXFY IZHAMBREATTEE
LN HAHBALAENER

Marketabilty discount rate of 20% (2021:  The discount rate is negatively correlated

0%

to the fair value measurement of the

BRI ER 0% (2021 % 20%) unlisted equity investment

AEXEE FEERAN
METEZRRE

Mean Price-to-Sales rafio (‘P/S") muttiples  The mean of P/Sis postively correlated
0f2022: 0.73(2021: 0.64) to the fair value measurement of the
NRETEREELE(HEE)EE unlsted equity nvestment
)

RILE: 07365 (2021 F 2 05465

TERTUSER LHREREY
AMEHEZTHE

During the reporting periods, there were no transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy.

For recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy, if the marketability discount rate to
the valuation model were 5% higher/lower while all the other
variables were held constant, the carrying amount of the unlisted
equity investment would decrease/increase by HK$1,278,000
(2021: HK$878,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

&R TH (%)
Bt 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

EMTANDAENE (B)

(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial

assets on recurring basis:

ERMEEE=-QANEFENHREK:

Unlisted equity
investment

FLEmEERRE

HK$000
TAT

At 1 January 2021
Purchases
Total loss in other comprehensive income

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022

Total gain in other comprehensive income

At 31 December 2022

R2021F1H1H
BE
Em2mEUR SR EEARE

N2021E12 A3 B K
2022%F1 A1H
HE2mR sk

M2022%12 A31 H

3,683
6,692
(G

10,367
1,325

11,692

For the year ended 31 December 2022, included in the
above total gain is an amount of HK$1,325,000 (2021: loss of
HK$8,000) relating to unlisted equity investment designated at
FVTOCI held at the end of the year.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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HE2022F12A31BIEFE - Latlg
HEBRREFRFENEERAZAR
BErff A\AEth2ERENFELEMESRE
B A 1,325,00078 7T (20214 : F18
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 7. WESREMIEA
Revenue represented revenue arising on sales of goods exclude WHREFANEEEmELEN KR T8
discounts and sales related tax for the year. An analysis of the ENEREEREHE AEEFAN
Group’s revenue for the year is as follows: et T

2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$°000 HK$’000
Fign TAT

Revenue from contracts with customers HBIFRELEBIE 15558

within the scope of HKFRS 15 AREEFEF AL
Disaggregated by major products lines REIEERGE S HAHE
Sales of goods HEEm
LED backlight LED & 3 1,620,565 1,454,015
LED lighting LED f2 AR 91,470 149,435
Sourcing business FIB T 504,317 319,145

2,216,352 1,922,595

2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
Fign TAT

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts ZEZEEEI S KEEFAN
with customers by timing of recognition B Uk 25BA4A

Timing of revenue recognition U 25 1 R R ]
At a point in time e R AR 2 2,216,352 1,922,595
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

7. WaERkHEMURA ()
REBERNNEMBBEAITOT -

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

An analysis of the Group’s other income for the year is as

follows:
2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 FHET
Other income Hug A

Bank interest income RITH B UL A 34,815 9,298
Government grants (Note) BT #8 B (B 7E) 10,981 5,442
Sales of scrapped materials 5 55 BE 1,995 1,510

Gain on disposal of property, plant and LENE  BER
equipment B - 58
Rental income B2l A 1,361 2,768
Sundry income FEIFULA 3,183 4,163
52,335 23,239

Note: Included in the amount, there are government grants immediately

recognised as other income during the year ended 31 December 2022
of HK$10,681,000 (2021: HK$5,296,000) which were received from
PRC government in respect of certain research projects and salaries
subsidies.

There are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to
the receipts of those subsidies.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised
government grants of HK$160,000 (2021: nil) in respect of the
subsidies which was related to Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”)
provided by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region under the Anti-Epidemic Fund. Under the ESS, the Group had
to commit to spend these grants on payroll expense, and not to reduce
the employee head count below prescribed level for a specific period
of time. The Group had complied with all attached condition during
the year ended 31 December 2022 and does not have other unfulfilled
conditions and other contingencies attach to receipts of the grant.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, amount of HK$140,000
(2021: HK$146,000) were government grants recognised as deferred
income utilised during the year (Note 31).
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HEC02FE12A31HILEE  AEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM”) for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
or services delivered or provided. In addition, for both LED
backlight and LED lighting operations and sourcing business of
high-tech electronic components and products, the information
reported to the CODM is further categorised into different types
of products and application of products. No operating segments
identified by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments

under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. LED backlight — Manufacture and trading of LED
backlight products in different sizes
and applications

2. LED lighting — Manufacture and trading of LED
lighting products for public and
commercial use

3. Sourcing business - Provision of memory chips related
products sourcing business
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& M H R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. FMEH (&)
Segment revenues and results DEBUR RSN FE AR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results AEEZRAZHREEDBEDHEE R
by reportable and operating segments. EESNWT -

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE20225F 12831 HILFEE

LED LED Sourcing

backlight lighting business Total

LED & 3¢ LED F& HH FEEK #at

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Ti&x Fi#&x T#&x FH&T

REVENUE Y25

External sales HNER 5 & 1,620,565 91,470 504,317 2,216,352

Segment profit 7 B F)E 101,437 1,844 2,666 105,947
Unallocated income R A 51,596
Unallocated expenses RAOBRHX (58,994)
Unallocated finance costs RO B (39,376)
Profit before tax B 75 A1 59,173

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE2021F12A31BILFE
LED LED Sourcing

backlight lighting business Total

LED &3¢ LED FBRR REEZET BET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET FAET FAET

REVENUE Y25

External sales HNER 5 & 1,454,015 149,435 319,145 1,922,595

Segment profit 7 BB A 151,360 4,542 2,547 158,449

Unallocated income RoOBLUA 16,287
Unallocated expenses KOEAX (79,060)
Unallocated finance costs KOBY IS (43,803)

Profit before tax B 75 AT F 51,873
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
emoluments, certain other income, certain finance costs and
certain other gains and losses. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by reportable and operating segments:

Segment assets

8. ZEEH (4)

BB ERES (]

EEBED B EFTH R AN I A S
B BE W oA BEIE DR
BHFAE TEEFRITHRER &3
Be - FFTEMRA BT BEEKAIN
METFTHEMRE REBEHDE - TR
FTEEEBRRAMBRESERERIRER
RIVFTHE R GRS -

SMEERERE

AEBEZAZHREEDHMEADNEER
BEDFOT

LED backlight LED &3¢

LED lighting LED f& AR
Sourcing business AR T
Total segment assets DEPEEEE
Unallocated assets KOBLEE
Consolidated total assets HEEAERE

DEEE
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET
1,263,080 1,328,788
167,042 162,896
95,090 151,506
1,525,212 1,643,190
1,197,575 788,449
2,722,787 2,431,639
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

Segment liabilities

2EBEH ()

LED backlight LED &%

LED lighting LED & A
Sourcing business T
Total segment liabilities HEEERE
Unallocated liabilities KoL BE

Consolidated total liabilities

SMEEREE ()
SBWELE
2022 2021
20224F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER TET
1,275,548 1,102,066
105,006 137,370
85,956 39,133
1,466,510 1,278,569
429,876 333,020
1,896,386 1,611,589

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

RERDPERERHES BRERNS

all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than deferred tax assets, financial assets at FVTPL and
FVTOCI, pledged bank deposits, deposits with bank, bank
balances and cash, certain property, plant and equipment,
investment property and certain other receivables. Assets
used jointly by reportable segments are allocated on the
basis of the revenues earned by individual reportable
segments; and

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
income tax payables, certain bank and other borrowings,
corporate bond, deferred tax liabilities, certain lease
liabilities and certain other payables and accruals. Liabilities
for which reportable segments are jointly liable are allocated
on the basis of the revenues earned by individual reportable
segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 831 H I FfE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. FMEH (&)
Other segment information HinnHER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HBZE2022F 12831 HILFE

LED LED Sourcing
backlight lighting business Unallocated Total
LEDE % LED & #A REBRT RAE &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TER TR TRx Tign

Amounts included in the FASBFES S HEE

measure of segment profitor B £ :

segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets*  REIERBEE" 47,358 2,727 - 3,675 53,760
Depreciation of property, plant 1% - BERRENE

and equipment 42,064 5,858 1,079 4,261 53,262
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1# REEENE 5,978 770 - - 6,748
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE KR

plant and equipment B 9,293 73 - - 9,366
Loss on write-off of property, MEME  BERE

plant and equipment B 1,390 - - - 1,390
(Reversal) provision of impairment (¥ [2]) FE 4R BR 70 I E

losses of trade and other [EMF IR R EEE

receivables, net REFE (540) 31 201 - (308)
(Reversal of) provision of (BE)FERE

inventories (10,746) 4,229 - - (6,517)
Finance costs LA 778 35 - 39,376 40,189

Amounts regularly providedto EERFEEEREA
the CODM but notincluded ~ REEFH A2
in the measure of segment fRgoBEE

profit or segment assets: FENSE:
Bank interest income RTFBBA - - - (34,815) (34,815)
# Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets, deposits with bank # IRBEETRBEREHRBEE  R1TF
and financial assets at FVTOCI and FVTPL. REBAANEFAEMZEARREREAR

EBEff ABRZEBAE -

1 66 Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | {52 R AR A7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2021

8. DEBEH (&)
HihaEEE (4F)
HZE2021512HA31BLEE

LED LED Sourcing
backlight lighting business  Unallocated Total
LEDE ¥ LED R EA REER AOE A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL FAL THL THT TEL
Amounts included in the HASBAES A HEE
measure of segment profitor B £ :
segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets®  REJFREBE" 66,877 8,367 - 324 75,568
Depreciation of property, plant ~~ ¥1% - BiE R REHE
and equipment 43,579 4,324 359 12 48,274
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {# FEEEf & 8,715 1,471 - - 10,186
Gain on disposal of property, HENE - BEREE
plant and equipment, net Wz 38 50 8 - - 58
Loss on write-off of property, WENE  BEREE
plant and equipment B 702 - - - 702
(Reversal) provision of impairment (% [0]) fE Y BE 2 & E
losses of trade and other AR R EEE
receivables, net REFE (778) 11,778 (540) - 10,455
(Reversal of) provision of (BE)FERE
inventories (8,049 5,168 - - (2,881)
Finance costs BB 1,073 9 - 43,803 44,975
Amounts regularly provided to EHRTEZEREA
the CODM but not included REERHARE
in the measure of segment fRgoBEE
profit or segment assets: FENSE:
Bank interest income H|ATHSHA - - - 9,298 9,298
# Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets, deposits with bank # FIRBEETRREEEHBEE - R1TF

and financial assets at FVTOCI and FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ZEPEMN (&)
Revenue from major products KEFEEEMBIWNS
Analysis by type of products EBEEGRERE 20D
2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x FiBT
LED backlight LED &%
— Small dimension —/NRSF 254,913 346,056
— Medium dimension —f R 1,320,540 1,043,604
— Large dimension — KR 45,112 64,355
Sub-total N 1,620,565 1,454,015
LED lighting LED i@ #H
— Indoor lighting — = AR 90,565 143,334
— Outdoor lighting — = HNR A 905 6,101
Sub-total INET 91,470 149,435
Sourcing business R T
- Semiconductor memory chips —FEREFHESH
— Packaging and testing — 38 17,406 6,244
— Products sourcing —EmEE 486,911 312,901
Sub-total INET 504,317 319,145
Total A5 2,216,352 1,922,595
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Revenue from major products (continued)

Analysis by application of products

LED backlight

— Automobile displays
— Equipment displays
— Televisions

Sub-total

LED lighting
— Commercial lighting
— Public lighting

Sub-total

Sourcing business

— Semiconductor memory chips
— Packaging and testing
— Products sourcing

Total

LED &%

— B AR
— RN
—E18

Nt

LED i@ #H
— B IR
— R~ HRHA

gt

REBXH

—FERBEFRHOA
— 308
—EmRE

ZEEH ()
REFTEEmMBOKES ()
RERERBS NN
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$000 HK$'000
FTER THETT
1,350,820 1,158,602
232,434 229,685
37,311 65,728
1,620,565 1,454,015
90,565 143,334
905 6,101
91,470 149,435
17,406 6,244
486,911 312,901
504,317 319,415
2,216,352 1,922,595

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The Group’s customers are mainly located in Hong Kong, the

PRC and Taiwan.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 831 H I FfE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. FMEH (&)
Geographical information (continued) Mhis & H (48)
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from external customers is AEBEBEEFPHBUES S KBINER
presented based on the location of customers as below: FRWEDTIT
2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti#&x FAT
The PRC H 1,582,166 1,389,381
Hong Kong B 230,746 87,499
Tawan e 319,160 293,603
Others H A, 84,280 152,112
2,216,352 1,922,595
The Group’s information about its non-current assets is AEBREEMBUEE HSNIEREE
presented based on geographical location of the assets as EERNT
below:
2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti#&x FAT
The PRC s 284,004 335,832
Hong Kong BB 101,481 102,502
385,485 438,334
Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets, deposits with RBEETBRBELERIBEE - RT1T
bank and financial assets at FVTOCI and FVTPL. TFEREIE AR EFT A M 2w Rk

NAEFABRZEREE -

Information about major customers FEEFREH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding year contributing HEFEREPKREEREEAKZE10%
over 10% of total revenue of the Group are as follows: A EMBROT
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti&xT FHET
Customer A' EEA 818,522 658,407
! Revenue from LED backlight segment. ' RELEDE XD EBEYMa o
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9. OTHER GAINS AND (LOSSES)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M5 RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

9. Hittlrzsk (B18)

2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 &
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET T T
Provision of inventories (Note a) GFERE(Wita) (7,196) (6,483)
Reversal of provision of inventories (Note b) BEfFERE (FEb) 13,713 9,364
Reversal (provision) of impairment losses of & o] /i Uiz B 3% J E fh & Uk 3808
trade and other receivables, net WEEE (BE) FE 308 (10,455)
Impairment loss recognised on construction  FL7EiE TR MERREEE
in progress (2,624) -
Net foreign exchange gains 4N Ui 25 7 BA 8,920 -
Gain on fair value changes of derivative TEeMIAZARERS
financial instrument Uz 3,162 -
Loss on fair value changes of investment WEYEZ AN BEREERE
property (1,600) -
Gain (loss) on fair value changes of financial BRARBHAEBR I EREE
assets at FVTPL ZARBERE N (EE) 155 (729)
14,838 (8,303)
Notes: BT

(@  During the year ended 31 December 2022, provision of inventories of
approximately HK$7,196,000 (2021: HK$6,483,000) was made for
write-down of obsolete inventories that are no longer suitable for use in

production or saleable in the market.

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2022, a reversal of provision of
HK$13,713,000 (2021: HK$9,364,000) was made due to the sell-out

of inventories written off in previous years.

10. FINANCE COSTS

@ EZE2022F 1283180 IEFE @ BHMORT
BEAREERATMSBEENRETEH
12717 & B 47,196,000 7T (2021 4F :
6,483,000 7T) °

(o) HZE2022F12A31ALFE BHREE
HBAFEMBENGFE  WELBERR
13,713,000 77T (2021 £ : 9,364,000 7% 7T) °

Interest on:

— Bank and other borrowings
— Corporate bond (Note 30)
— Lease liabilities

— Bills payables

AT EIEHFE
—RITREAMER

— R AMESH (M3E30)
-HEAaE

—ENERE

10. B R AR
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET
18,891 17,441
200 200
813 1,181
20,285 26,153
40,189 44,975
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT)

1. iEHiRA% (IK%)

Current income tax EHMREH

Hong Kong Profit Tax HEBNEH

— Current year —KREE

PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI EATISE

— Current year —REFE

— Overprovision in prior years —BEFERERE
Deferred taxation (Note 29) EIERIE (M FE29)
Income tax expense (credit) A=z (Ex)

2022 2021
2022 FF 2021 &
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti&x FET

45 -

2,211 1,486

- (2,036)

2,256 (550)
(1,879) 481

377 69)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of qualifying
corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. For the year ended 31 December
2022, Hong Kong profits tax of the qualified entity of the Group
is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The profits of other Group entities in Hong Kong not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue
to be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group did not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC companies is 25% for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: 25%).

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Group’s subsidiaries, Wai Chi Opto Technology (Shenzhen)
Limited* (2 &Y€ OXII) B R A &) and Huizhou Wai Chi
Electronics Company Limited* (/M {E &£ E T B R A 7)), were
accredited as high-tech enterprises which will be expired in
2024 and 2023 respectively. They are entitled to the preferential
tax rate of 15% for both years.

*

The English name is for identification purpose only
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REFSHEMBRELES (REBRE
TEE) MRROER  AEEBAY
MHSRE LB RSN IRMEH -

BESBSAERMBFEHHERGE
BB ERFEE 2,000,000% T i%
8.25% ) i R + M A #8 2,000,000 %8
TTE R 812 16.5% B T R - - H =
2022F 12 A1 HILFE  AEBHA
ERERNTBFEHTRERESF
BRRENETE - THFAMBFER
RESEHNEMAEEEENTEGE
B 16.5% M — R R F -

BRAEBREZ2021F12 A31H IE
FEWETMARNEEFEHOER
BMAE MAEETEELETEFERH
Bt -

RIEREDEAEFE ([DERBHZE]
REMBEIEE D - REZE 2022
F12A31HILEFE  FEARANKEES
25% (2021 £ : 25%) °

BIEFEAEREENRER  AEBENK
BRRMELTNE ORY) AR A A REM
FEEETERAAESEASHTEME
¥ (59 3R 2024 F K 2023 F EIH) -
AIRMEFENZTEEEHRE15% -

Y RXEEEMRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) 11.
(continued)

Pursuant to circular issued by Ministry of Finance and National
Tax Bureau on 17 January 2019, the small-scaled minimal profit
enterprise with an annual taxable income below RMB1,000,000
(RMB1,000,000 included) is entitled to a preferential tax
treatment of 75% exemption of taxable income and application
of income tax rate as 20% from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2022. Certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group were qualified
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The income tax expense (credit) for the year can be reconciled
to the profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as follows:

FREHmX (ER) (&)

RIEFBEEE RS BHR2019F1 A
17 BEMEBE - FREMTATSEER
AR # 1,000,000t (& A R# 1,000,000
TC) B/ NV R (B B RE B 201961 A 1
HZE2022F12A31 B EZHEEHR75%E
W F P15 BB B0 B S 1E B I FE A 20% B B
BRHME - AEEMNETHENEBE AR
RELE 20224 K 2021412 A31 H I F
EFEERE-

FEMGHAX (E2) BRaEARMA
TRERBLRT FE SRR T -

Profit before tax FR 75 A FE

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25%
(2021: 25%)

Effect of preferential tax rate in the PRC

Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
purposes

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purposes

Additional tax deduction for research and
development expenses

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Tax effect of other temporary differences not
recognised

Utilisation of temporary differences previously
not recognised

Effect of two-tiered profits tax rates regime

Overprovision in prior years

Income tax expense (credit) for the year

RE R FTIS B % 25% 51 5 Y
FR18 (2021 4F : 25%)
PREERENFE
HMrzEEEENHEBA G
TR EMNTE
TRIHMBEA G2

BARBBANRE 2
fT 35 B ST M R IMR TR SR

AERRBABBORGEE
AL REROHRIARR

REREA TR Z BN
s/ 1
v E

PRBERAERNEREEZR

MBFIEHBE N Y B
B R

FEMBHAX (ER)

2022 2021
2022 £F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti&xT FHET
59,173 51,873
14,793 12,968
(4,448) (4,410)
(1,144) (1,299
3,482 201
(2,034) (1,492)
(9,376) (6,385)
3,810 2,573
(1,885) (3,710)
722 4,769
(3,445) (1,248)
(98) -
- (2,036)
377 69)

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note 29.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

12. £ EFIiE

2022 2021
2022 2021 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET

Profit for the year has been arrived at after FEFBERIOR GTA)
charging (crediting): T B IEBER -

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments ZEZRTETHAE8S

(Note 13(a)) (M52 13(a)) 5,160 5,628
Salaries and allowances (excluding Directors & K&IERL (R EIEAR 7

and Chief Executive of the Company) EEZRFETHRAER) 264,383 253,248
Retirement benefits schemes contributions RIKBFIET B

(excluding Directors and Chief Executive (TBRREARFTEER

of the Company) FEITHAER) 22,431 20,132
Shared-based payment expenses AR AT RIBR X

(excluding Directors and Chief Executive (TBERRAESER

of the Company) FTEITHAR) 1,142 -
Total staff costs BIRAERE 293,116 279,008
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BX R %7 B 1,200 1,007
Net foreign exchange losses M 5 1855 - 926
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R /&M S M7 & Ak A&

(included in cost of sales) (Note a) GrASHERA) (HiTa) 1,852,630 1,460,905
Research and development costs TR X A

recognised as an expense (Note b) AR (FFED) 86,044 65,100
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% = KR EHITE 53,262 48,274
Depreciation of right-of-use-assets FREEENE 6,748 10,186
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BEXR

and equipment Bt R e () 9,366 (58)
Loss on write-off of property, plant and HSE I - BB K&

equipment HIEEE 1,390 702
Lease expenses for short-term leases EHEENHEERS 1,197 4,415

Note: BIaE -

(@  Cost of inventories recognised as expenses included depreciation
of property, plant and equipment and staff costs and net reversal of
provision of inventories of HK$29,630,000 (2021:HK$35,609,000)
and HK$195,836,000 (2021: HK$200,410,000) and HK$6,517,000
(2021:HK$2,881,000) respectively. The amounts were also included in
the respective amounts disclosed above.

(b)  Research and development costs recognised as expense included staff
cost of HK$31,051,000 (2021: HK$26,315,000). The amounts were
also included in the respective amount disclosed above.
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@ ®RERIHNTFERADBBEDE-
MEREETEARB TRARERE
5 % 5% %8 29,630,000/ 7T (2021 4 :
35,609,000/ JT) & 195,836,000 T
(20214 : 200,410,000 7T) & 6,517,000
770 (20214F : 2,881,000/87T) ° ZE 4
BB AL EENAESET -

b WERAMIMFERABIBERIKA
31,051,000 7t (2021 4 : 26,315,000 #
7o) o %ESBNEFALXABENR
HEET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M5 RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 22022412 A31H I FE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2021:
eight) directors and chief executive of the Company during
the year were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Executive directors
#iEs
Mr. Chen
ChungPo  Ms. Yiu
(Chairman ~~ Kwan Yu
and Chigf ~ (Sales and

Mr. Chen
Wei Wy

Mr.Yiu  Executive marketing  (Financial
ChiTo  Officer  manager  controller

(Ex- ofthe ofa

ofa

Chairman)  Company) subsidiary) subsidiary)

fERLL

(-FNR  R&d%E
RER%EE LANEE  (-FME
fEELE (KDAIE  Ro&  THEE

(HIR) RTHER) HEEE)
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
Tén  fEn  TEn
(Note)
(Wit)

Emobmens pad orrecehaben  SHEAEAEE(T
respect ofapersonssenices asa FRAATIE
drector, whether of e Company ~~ HHEAFNEE)
and ts subsclres underakings:  RELBRAMN

RIS

Fees e

Emolments pad orreceivabe  SHERAAFRAK
i espect of directors oher FES
senicesnoomectonvihthe  EEHEERE
management of e afaisofthe X HAERA
Company and fts subsiclaries B

28
HK$'000
thn

13. B2 - FETHAEREESEH
£
(a) EERFTETHAEESE
FRDPEHIENEATENS
(2021 F : NR)EFERETETHA
EREEMT -

BE2022%F12A31HILLEE

Independent non-executive directors

BuFufEs

Ms. Yong
Jian Hui
(Deputy
general
manager Mr.
ofa Ms.  AuYeung Mr. Ho
subsidiary)  LukFong  Ting Wah Chi Wai

Refigt

(~HhE

R BRiE

HgR) Kt REREE MSAiE
HK$'000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
TEn ten  tEn  TEn

undertakings:
Salares and alowance B 326 1,200 0 3 mn 956 - - - 3697
Sheretesed peymentepenses AR AAERX - 31 181 90 181 - - - - 813
Refrement benefts Schemes RINRRIEE 30
contrbutions 2 18 18 3 3 18 - - - 122
Total emoluments HonE 38 1579 919 49 383 974 240 144 144 5,160
Note: P 5T

Mr. Yiu Chi To passed away on 28 January 2022,

Ms. Luk Fong as the spouse of Mr. Yiu Chi To was appointed on
22 March 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

13. 22 - FETHABR{ESH

£ (#8)
(a) EERFETHRASMSE ()

BEZE20215 12831 LLEE

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
#1788 BUFHTES
Mr. Chen
Chung Po Ms. Yiu Ms. Yong
(Chaiman~ KwanYu M. Chen Jian Hui
and Chief ~ (Sales and Wei Wu (Deputy
MYy Execuve  marketing  (Financial general
ChiTo Officer ~ manager ~ confroler ~ manager Mr. Mr.Chen
[Ex- ofthe ofa ofa ofa  AuYeung Kiniok Mr.Ho
Charman) ~ Company  subsidiary)  subsidiary) ~ subsidiary) ~ Ting Wah Wang ChiWai Total
HERTT
(-BME Refit ZE2ELr
RiEkrs AngEE  (-FWE  (-HNE
hEBEE (RRAEE RIS ARMEE  RAW BBERE
(MER) RuSH) %#FLD) £%) Hegm) it REZZE AR @5t
HKG000  HKBOOD  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS0O0  HKSO000  HKS000
Tér TR TR TEr TEm  TEr TEr TEn TEn
(Note)
()
Emoluments paid or recelvablein  $tEAEAES (T34
respect of aperson's senices R AR ASENE
asadrector, wheherofthe  AANEE)RE
Company and fts subsiclaries ~ FRES 8 B
undertakings: BB
Fees #s - - - - - 240 144 144 528
Emoluments paid or receiable ~ SHEEALRFAREN
nrespect of diectorsother ~ BARINERRE
senicesincomectionwih  EHEZREAR
the management of the afars A ENNES :
of the Company and it
subsidiaries undertakings:
Sdaresand other benefis B8 REMET 2,562 1200 720 36 1 - - - 4,985
Retirement benefis schemes ~ EIREFIHHEIES
contrioutions 18 18 18 30 31 - - - 15
Total emoluments Hess 2580 1218 738 36 208 240 144 144 5,628

Note: Mr. Yiu Chi To passed away on 28 January 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)

None of the directors of the Company waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments paid by the Group during both
years.

Mr. Chen Chung Po is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and the emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive
of the Company.

There were no performance related incentive payments to
the directors and Chief Executive of the Company during
both years.

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, three (2021: three) were directors and Chief
Executive of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022. The emoluments of these directors are included in
the disclosures in Note 13(a) above. The emoluments of the
remaining two (2021: two) highest paid individuals for the
year ended 31 December 2022 were as follows:

13. 25 - FETHAEBRESH

£ (#8)
(a) EERTETHRASME (B)

(b)

RAEFE BEARTDEERE
KABTRETMME -

REEFECENBARBEZRITERA
B EXWENNEBREEHRKE
EARRAEETHABAIRHRS
M o

RREFE YERARAABAESER
TEITHABXERBHBH L
@o

EEME

REE2022F12A31HILFE -
rEBREEsMEALTF =5
(20215 : =ZH) BARAEERE
BITRAB - ZEEEMHEER
EXHIFE13@) HEE - RELZE 2022 F
12A31BIEFE - A WA (2021
F WA Zaie ARSI

Salaries and allowances e KOEBh
Retirement benefits schemes

contributions

BB B R

2022 2021
2022 2021 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fign TET
1,708 1,653

36 36

1,744 1,689

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

ZEALTHMEN T TIIIHE :

2022 2021

2022 20214

No. of No. of

employees employees

ES%H EE#E

Not more than HK$1,000,000 % 721,000,000 7% 7T 2 2
177
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (continued)

There were no performance related incentive payments
during both years.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals and any of the directors and Chief
Executive of the Company as an incentive payment to join
or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office during both years.

14. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022, nor
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period (2021: nil).

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

13. 25 - FETHAEBRESH
£ (%)

(b) EEME (4)

AR A F 2 - 3 8 52 A 81K 3R 68
MG o

RMEFE  AEBEYEFADSER
BHALTARARBDEFNESTRE
BITBRABXMAME - FR/IMANR
£ [ 38 00 A 7R 5% [ By Y 2R B = B
e -

14. g 2
REE2022F 12 A31 B IEFEHE R
ARNBEBREIRNREZRMANRE
BRREHABRTEZZRATMEER
(20214 : ##) o

15. BIREF

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T

Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted ~ {E&+ & & f% E AN K #58 & F
eamings per share REn &R 59,912 51,469
2022 2021
20224 20214

Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of ~ {E&t & & IZ E A K 55 Z 7
basic and diluted earnings per share B#eL @ik g 216,825,000 216,825,000

Basic and diluted earnings per share SRERAREERF

(HK$ per share) (BB T) 0.28 0.24

The diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings
per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per
share as the computation of diluted earnings per share does
not assume the exercise of the Company’s option because the
exercise price of those options was higher than the average
market price of shares for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& M H R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. W% - MERR

Plant and Motor Office Leasehold Construction
machinery vehicles  equipment  improvements Buildings in progress Total
RER M RE  BOERE HAENEEE BF ERIE Eh
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
ThT Tin Tin Tin Tin ThL ThL
cosT A
A1 January 2021 P VAEIRES 434130 7047 23463 42675 127,235 20,860 655,410
Addftions TE 36,265 739 1,936 24237 - 10010 73,187
Transfer E+ 8,344 - - - - (8,344 -
Disposals/urie-off HE /Wi (6,099) (379 (575) - - - (7,083)
Exchange reaignment ERa% 13,637 128 701 1,602 374 639 20,448
Acquired on acquistion of a RYBEHBARARES
subsiciary (note 40) (3 40) - - 378 - 70931 - 71309
At 31 December 2021 and RANF12A3 AR
A1 January 2022 R02F1818 486,017 753% 25,903 68514 201907 23165 813301
Addtions i 44,607 12366 2580 529 - 1488 50,660
Transfer B+ 6,663 - - - - (6,663) -
Disposals/iwrite-off HE/ B (27,869) (540) (3,954) - - - (32,389)
Bxchange realignment ERAE (70882 (5%3) (1,078) (8,004) (20,366) (1,762) (102,685
At 31 December 2022 RRFE12AMR 438,886 7,768 23451 61,039 181,541 16,228 728913
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION BitERWEHS
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At 1 January 2021 R0 F1A1E 319853 6271 20485 22375 24,833 13521 407338
Provided for the year EMER 40,086 183 710 4685 2610 - 48074
Elminated on disposalsiwrte-off £ EEE8H /84 (5,298) (336) (537) - - - (6,171)
Exchange realignment EifE 10,008 P 590 645 770 398 12,503
At 31 December 2021 and Ro1E12 8318 R
A1 January 2022 20251818 364,649 6210 21248 27705 28213 13,919 461944
Provided for the year EEAHR 41,008 300 800 5,567 5,367 - 53,26
Elminated on disposalsiwrite-off ~ (H EB43 /M (18.481) (480) (2559 - - - (21,514)
Impaiment loss recognised o~ REBERRZREEE
profit or loss - - - - - 2,624 2,624
Exchange realignment EifE (62.217) (£42) (2,645) 7.289) 25%0) (1,28 (76,405)
At 31 December 2022 RRFE12AMR 325,179 5,588 16,850 25,983 31,050 15,261 419911
CARRYING AMOUNTS KEE
At 31 December 2022 o0 E12 A1 R 113,707 2,180 6,601 35,056 150,491 967 300,002
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A318 121,628 1325 4655 40809 173,694 9246 351,357
2022 Annual Report | F 3§ 1 79



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles

Office equipment
Leasehold improvements
Buildings

10% - 25%

10% — 33%

10% - 20%

5% - 50%

Over the shorter of term of the
lease or 2.5%

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES

(i) Right-of-use assets

180

16. Y% - BER®RE ()

YR - BERREEB AERER

L

il
A
B2
e
5

FRFIEIE -
& 10% — 25%
10% — 33%
=RE 10% - 20%
MERE 5%-50%
LB 2.5%
(AR E A%E)

17. EAEEERHEAR

(i)

Land THb
Buildings BgF
Plant and machineries BB 23

FHESE

2022 2021

2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FET

31,795 35,680

7,902 14,014

6,489 4,868

46,186 54,562

Right-of-use assets of HK$31,795,000 (2021:
HK$35,680,000) represents land use rights located in the
PRC.

The Group has lease arrangements for buildings used for
factory premises and offices and plant and machinery. The
lease terms are generally ranged from 2 to 6 years (2021: 2
to 6 years).

Extension options are included in the lease of buildings.
Certain periods covered by extension options were
included in these lease terms as the Group was reasonably
certain to exercise the option.

{5 P #E & 7 31,795,0007% 7T, (2021
£ 1 35,680,000/ 7T) #8475 B &)
T Hb R A RE o

AEEZRBEARIBRDERRAE
BT IAR RS MR E 2k -
HEHRRE RN F2E64 (2021
F:2E86%F) °

BFHETRSEREEZZ - AR
AEBEREMETEZERE &
EREERBENE THREEAA
SEHER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 17. FRAEEERBEERE (B)
LIABILITIES (continued)
(i) Right-of-use assets (continued) (i) EHESE (&)
Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ended BE2022F12H31BIEFE
31 December 2022 amounted to HK$3,100,000 (2021: A # & E 1% 51 3,100,000 7 7T, (2021
HK$2,609,000), due to new leases of a machinery. 12,609,000 7T) + Ty AR RS
R E TR -
The above items of right-of-use assets are depreciated on LT RAEEEEE HUEGER
a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: THFRFTE :
Land Over the shorter of term of i) HHPREE
the lease
Buildings Over the shorter of term of Bg¥F HEREEE
the lease
Plant and machineries Over the shorter of term of MRE Rikes FHIPEREEL20%

the lease or 20%

(i) Lease liabilities (i) HEAE

2021
20214
HK$'000
FHETT
Non-current ERB 7,015 10,205
Current mE 4,347 5,928
11,362 16,133
2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Amounts payable under lease liabilities RIZEHHE & FENF KA T8 FHETT
Within one year —FR 4,347 5,028
After one year but within two years —FRERTFAN 4,211 3,626
After two years but within five years MEZRBRFEA 2,804 6,579
11,362 16,133

Less: Amount due for settlement s 1218 A A B B

within 12 months (shown under HEE R FIE (AR

current liabilities BEBETITR) (4,347) (5,928)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 71218 A 1& 2| H 5 E 1 FE 7,015 10,205
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& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

(ii) Lease liabilities (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the lease liabilities in respect
of leased machineries under hire purchase agreements
amounted to HK$3,172,000 (2021: HK$875,000) with
purchase option at consideration of HK$1,000 was secured
by the leased assets by the title of the lessor.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
entered into a new lease agreements in respect of renting a
machinery and recognised lease liabilities of HK$3,100,000
(2021: HK$2,609,000).

(iii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

17. EREEERBEESRE (B)

(i) HEREGR)

R2022%12 A31H ' IRIEFHE
EHEKSEMNHEESEA3,172,000
77T (2021 4 : 875,000/ L) © BB
Bi#EEREMAE1,000% 7T m A
ARNTHEEEMBREER -

REE2022F12 831 B IEFE -
AEBHMEEKSIT L —MHHEE
Wem I B R A E & E3,100,000
77T (2021 4F : 2,609,000 7T) °

(i) RIESXEZFIE

Depreciation of right-of-use assets — Land  {FREEEFE —tit

Depreciation of right-of-use assets — FREEEE—EF
Buildings

Depreciation of right-of-use assets — Plant  {FREEEFE —FE &
and machineries e

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAEMEMX

Expense relating to short-term leases RHEERY

2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET
895 927
5,121 8,527
732 732

813 1,181
1,197 4,415

(iv) Others

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the total cash
outflow for leases amounted to HK$8,782,000 (2021:
HK$15,558,000).

Restrictions or covenants on leases

As at 31 December 2022, lease liabilities of HK$11,362,000
are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
HK$46,186,000 (2021: lease liabilities of HK$16,133,000
and related right-of-use assets of HK$54,562,000). The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

(iv) Eith

REZE2022F 12 A31 B IFFEE
FHEMIR LKL 4L % A8,782,000
BT (2021 4F 15,558,000 7T) ©

HEMRAHIZH
R2022%F 12 A31H R EE
f& 11,362,000 7% 7T 12 [7] #6 B8 (5 A3 1
& JEE 46,186,000 7T (20214 :
‘& & 516,133,000 7% Jr i [ M8 B f5F
P #E & 54,562,000 7T) © B
MABBHELEEREBERIN -
HEBETESEMRZLOKR - B
EEENMSAERRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 18. REME
HK$'000
FHT
FAIR VALUE RRE

At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 H1H -

Acquired on an acquisition of a subsidiary RUFEM B A R &S
(note 40) (PFif5E40) 26,300
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 2021412 A31 B % 202241 A1 H 26,300

Decrease in fair value recognised RIEEERHN A AERD
in profit or loss (1,600)
At 31 December 2022 M 2022412 A31H 24,700

The fair value of the Group’s investment property at 31
December 2022 and 2021 have been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out on 31 December 2022 by Peak Vision
Appraisals Limited, independent qualified professional valuers
not connected with the Group. Peak Vision Appraisals Limited
are members of the Institute of Valuers. The valuation was
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices
for similar properties in the similar locations and conditions and
is categorised as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. There has

REE R E Y R 2022 F K 2021 F12
A 31 B RRE TR I B A5 B30 £ 8
ENBUGEREEMGHEMRETHAE
(R A R R2022%F 12 A31 H#ETHEE
BH - BREFHERARALEMHBS
B o {H{E T2 E 5B L B R A& 2R
MEZRSGERZMHEREMER - I
PEEARBEELRE-H - BEFEM
M EERMT I ELE -

been no change from the valuation technique used in prior year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 831 H I FfE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 18. IREWME (&)
In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest and best REFEZAAER MEIZES R
use of the property is their current use. HERBRAEBAAR -
Details of the valuation techniques and assumptions are HEFERBRZFHFBEIREAT

discussed below.

An analysis of the Group’s investment property that is measured AEBRVBERBIEAALETENR
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into fair BEMENIT BREANBENEH AH
value hierarchy Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the ENABREEREAAAEE A2
inputs to fair value measurements is observable is as follows: E=H T

Fair value

as at

Level 3 31/12/2022
20224

12A31HK

E—R ER E=R ARE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T&xT Ti#&xT T T#&xT

Investment property LB - 24,700 - 24,700

Fair value

as at

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31/12/2021

20214

12 431K

F—& B4, F=| NI

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FHET FHET

Investment property mEME - 26,300 - 26,300

1 84 Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | 5B ER Q7
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e M5 RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 22022412 A31H I FE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 18.

There were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The following table gives information about how the fair value
of the investment property as at 31 December 2022 are

REWE(8)
REZE2022F 12 A1 HIEFE &
AREEHRzEzER -

TR IZ B B a0 ] 7 £ 20224 12 A 31
BIREMEARLENEN (LERFER

determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs KB A R ABUIR)
used):
Relationship of key
Fair value as at inputs and significant
31 December Valuation technique and key Significant unobservable inputs
Fair value hierarchy 2022 inputs unobservable inputs Range to fair value
TEBMABER
20225 EATTHE
12A31HH HERER EATTHE WABRERE
RRE TERAYE WABE DAENRE
Level 2 HK$24,700,000 Market Comparison approach - by N/A N/A N/A
E-4 24,700,000/ 7T reference to recent sales price of M@ F TEA TEA
(2021: HK$26,300,000)  comparable properties on a price
(20214 : per square feet basis using market
26,300,000 7T) data which is publicly available

MELRE-E2ZRETHRR
MEESENTELENF T
HEE ERARAEEH S
BEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 10. BAREFABS2EMEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2022 2021
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHEIT

Investments in a life insurance policy

AERBEKRE

7,633 7,478

In September 2021, the Group’s subsidiary, Wai Chi Opto
Technology Limited (“Wai Chi Opto”), entered into a life
insurance policy with an insurance company to insure Mr. Chen
Chung Po, a director of the Company. Under the policy, the
beneficiary and the policy holder is Wai Chi Opto and the total
insured sum is approximately US$1,750,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$13,650,000). The Company was required to
pay a one-off premium payment of approximately US$602,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$4,696,000). The Company can
terminate the policy at any time and receive cash back based
on the cash value of the policy at the date of withdrawal (“Cash
Value”), which is determined by the premium payment plus
accumulated interest earned minus the accumulated insurance
charges and a specified amount of surrender charge if the
withdrawal is made before the specified policy year.

In February 2020, Wai Chi Opto entered into a life insurance
policy with an insurance company to insure Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, a
director of the Company. Under the policy, the beneficiary and
the policy holder was Wai Chi Opto and the total insured sum
was approximately US$3,492,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$27,238,000). The Group was required to pay a one-off
premium payment of approximately US$600,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$4,680,000). The Group can terminate the
policy at any time and receive cash back based on the cash
value of the policy at the date of withdrawal (“Cash Value”),
which is determined by the premium payment plus accumulated
interest earned minus the accumulated insurance charges and a
specified amount of surrender charge if the withdrawal is made
before the specified policy year.

186

MR2021F 98  NEEMH B R RE
i%?@*ﬁﬁﬁ“ﬁ(rﬁﬁ”ﬁj);ﬁi—ﬁﬁ
RE AR ASZRERE  UAXR

BEEMELEERFR - BERE %
ARREFEABEBTHE  MBEKR
1%%%?2%%’]1,750,000%7E($E¥E<\?7
13,650,000 7T) ° A QA A X —

’\Ef%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%@GOZOOO%TE(*E—rﬁ ’J
4,696,000/ 7T) ° AR T ] B R
I IRE ﬁﬁ%ﬁéfﬂ%ﬁ ﬁﬁ{%ﬁmfﬁﬁ
BEE(HLEE) KK ﬁ%@iﬁﬁ
BETIZEREN N TR R FE

R EHRE Eﬁﬁ&%méﬁgﬁmﬁﬁi
BE(MABETREFEMNRR)ET -

M2020F2H - EEAXAEH -—ERREA
BRI ASREE  AARATEEHk
Eiguﬁﬂﬂ% BIBERE  Zm A KRR
BEREAANRBEELE MBEKRELES
#93,492,0003 7T ($E$B<\ #727,238,000
BL) c AEBATMN—AEREBNK
49600,000% 7T (FHE R %@ 4,680,000
T0) o ANEE A AT R IERE - I
ARERANRENE2EE(R2E
B KERS BHRECEENIZRE
NEMNEFMBERETHE B AR
ﬁ§%&¢%E§§EWLf%$i§§(TﬁE§
HEREFERR) ET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M5 RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

20. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

2&?@%EJAEMQEW§Z

Unlisted equity investment FELmERNE

2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHxT FAT
11,692 10,367

The unlisted equity investment is issued by a private entity
incorporated in Taiwan.

The investment in equity instrument is not held for trading.
Instead, it is held for medium to long-term strategic purposes.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company elected to designate
the investment in equity instrument as at FVTOCI as they believe
that recognising short-term fluctuations in this investment’s fair
value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the Group’s
strategy of holding this investment for long-term purposes and
realising their performance potential in the long run.

21. INVENTORIES

EEMERIEERER EEMA L 2R
ANBEBEIT

ZHEATIEAREVIHFFHEEERE - 18
R EHETDGERPRAKKEOMETH
RE-HAt ARREFEEHZER
TAREBEERBRAANBHAEMEZE
Wa AAKRERR RNIERERZIKR
B2 ARBEREHRESE IHFEREER
EEZTxﬁ{’EEHﬂFH BURRESFRAK
IRE 2 BRE o

21. 78

2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 &
HK$’000 HK$'000
TiExT FHT
Raw materials =AM R 43,537 42 968
Work-in-progress peaE O 79,191 100,952
Finished goods BIRY G 154,035 168,109
276,763 312,029
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e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22, FEUWRERFX N EE 15
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
Receivables at amortised cost comprise: LEE SR AN R = A B IREE
BIE
Trade receivables JRE U5 BR 3K 775,140 704,879
Less: allowance for impairment of trade B MR FUR B R
receivables (25,217) (32,563)
749,923 672,316
Bills receivables FEW =% 135,822 265,827
Total trade and bills receivables G ONES S L 885,745 938,143

As at 31 December 2022, the gross amount of trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers amounted to
HK$775,140,000 (2021: HK$704,879,000).

The Group allows an average credit period of 15 to 180 days
(2021: 15 to 180 days) to its trade customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of
allowance for impairment of trade receivables) presented based
on the invoice date, which approximates the respective revenue
recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period.

M2022F 12 A31H  KBAEBFAHH
JiE U BE TR 4858 /5 775,140,000 78 7T (2021
F 1 704,879,000/87T) °

AEEMEESIEFR T152180K
(2021 : 152180 K) W= &8 -

UTARBERRZEZEH (HEER
W iER B HIARE) 258 U ERR (3
B e U AR SR E B M) RO BRER D AT ©

2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 FET
0 to 90 days 0E 90K 708,580 633,131
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 36,901 33,276
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 4,442 2,058
Over 365 days 365K - 3,851
749,923 672,316
HK$41,343,000 (2021: HK$39,185,000) has been past due 90 41,343,000 7% JT (2021 4 : 39,185,000 JT)
days or more and is not considered as in default due to the good EEE0RIIA L - ARZEREFPHENRT
repayment records for those customers, continuous business BRI BAEBEHEERL  RHEME
with the Group and/or other reasonable and supportable EBRITHUEER MU BEREEL -
information.
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e M5 RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

All the bills receivables are aged within 180 days.

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The ECL on trade receivables
are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s
current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry
in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the years.

As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.

The following table provides information which are assessed
based on provision matrix.

22 EURERM R & (4)

B ERRIENRERS RB180KA

AEEREERNFEREREEEED
TR ERUR A E R AR o EIRER
ROEHMEEBERERBBREBMES
Y2EBEBANBEROLCEREBA
BRI SAOR DA RIEBERIRE B
BEBABENRE - BEHALEMRET
FE ) — R B IA K B A7 R TR
AR FHEE L TR -

FA - ABETDESMERNEARKRIAL

HRAEENBEEEBRLEL RY
TREF D H2REE TR EREN
BUBERNEE TR ER 2 HE—
FEyERETARANNEREHE -

TREHRRBEGBREFENER -

Weighted
average Gross
expected loss carrying
rate amount Allowance
In#ESE3g
FEHIEB IR E IREAE BiE
% HK$’000 HK$°000
As at 31 December 2022 20225 12H31H T#xT T#ExT
Collectively assessed e R
0 to 90 days 0F2 90K 0.21% 710,071 1,491
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 0.62% 37,131 230
181 to 365 days 181 E 365K 1.25% 4,499 57
Over 365 days 365 KA & 100% 23,439 23,439
775,140 25,217
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e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

22, TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22 BWERM R IR (48)
(continued)
Weighted
average Gross
expected loss carrying
rate amount Allowance
hntE
TEAAE R RE2E BiE
% HK$'000 HK$’000
As at 31 December 2021 72021612 531 H FHETT TAT
Collectively assessed SHE
0 to 90 days VEC N 0.16% 634,156 1,025
91 to 180 days 91 £180K 0.17% 33,334 58
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 1.34% 2,086 28
Over 365 days 365 KA E 89.09% 35,303 31,452
704,879 32,563
Generally, trade receivables are written-off when there is —BmME EEMEBETREBAERNRE
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial B 75 R B R A PR Bl AT RS - B S R
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. The R - NE B I EFFA EAE TR IE
Group does not hold any collateral as security. R o
The movement in the allowance for impairment of trade FEMER R R EREEBEI T

receivables is set out below:

2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T&xT FHET
At 1 January MW1A1H 32,563 25,442
Impairment losses recognised on trade B PE U AR SRR A
receivables BEEE 5,169 6,914
Impairment losses reversed on trade FLIELBR A B A
receivables B EE (9,594) 611)
Exchange realignment IE 3 % (2,921) 818
At 31 December M12A31H 25,217 32,563
The following significant changes in the gross carrying amounts FERBUBEREDAENATERE
of trade receivables mainly contributed to the decrease in the B 2022 F B EBER LD

loss allowance during 2022:

- decrease in loss allowance of HK$8,013,000 resulted from — EHI3E5 KA FE A sRIE D BB
decrease in balances past due over 365 days. B R &R 18,013,000 7T °
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e M5 RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

23. Y FIE - B R H B
k|

2022 2021
20225 2021 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti&xT FHET
Deposits and other receivables (Note) e Rk H A R FRIE (MHEE) 98,630 64,282
Less: allowance for impairment of other W HoAth FE W IER (B B
receivables (10,295) (6,927)
88,335 57,355
Value added tax receivables JE WL E R 3,521 10,876
Prepayments (Note) TafTRIE (I FE) 62,738 11,212
154,594 79,443
Note: BEaE -

Included in Deposits and other receivables amounted to approximately
HK$39,890,000 (2021: HK$6,703,000) is represented interest receivables.

Included in prepayments amounted to approximately HK$62,018,000 (2021:
HK$9,585,000) is represented trade deposits paid to suppliers.

Details of impairment assessment of deposits and other
receivables for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are
set out in Note 6.

The movement in the allowance for impairment of other
receivables under Stage 1 is set out below:

AR & K H b FE UL 3R I8 49 39,890,000 7T
(2021 4 : 6,703,00078 7T) A FEU FI &, o

= A B 3 E #962,018,000% JT (2021 4 :
9,585,000 7C) AN TFTHEFNEHRES -

BRI E2022F K 2021 F12 A31 8 1
FEMZES R E A EWRIB R ETEH D
EAF N

FARBR T EMEERAREREE
BN

At 1 January ®1A1H
Impairment losses recognised EERBIESE
Impairment losses reversed B EREEBE
Exchange realignment R

At 31 December W12 A31H

2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 T
6,927 2,652
4,135 6,100
(18) (1,948)

(749) 123
10,295 6,927
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e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

23.

24,

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following significant changes in the gross carrying amounts
of other receivables mainly contributed to the increase in the
loss allowance during 2022:

- increase in loss allowance of HK$3,368,000 resulted from
increase in balances of deposit and other receivables as at
31 December 2022.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the years.

DEPOSITS WITH BANK/PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Deposits with bank

The deposits with banks are unsecured, carry fixed interest rates
at 3.3% per annum at 31 December 2022 and 2021, with an
original maturity of 3 years from 2021 to 2024 mature.

Pledged bank deposits

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits
amounting to HK$562,630,000 (2021: HK$342,017,000) as
at 31 December 2022 have been pledged to secure bank
borrowings and bills payables due within one year and are
therefore classified as current assets. The pledged bank deposit
will be released upon settlement of relevant bank borrowing.

The pledged fixed deposits carry interest rates ranging from 0.3%
to 0.38% (2021: 0.3% to 0.38%) per annum at 31 December
2022.

Bank balances and cash

The bank balances and cash comprised cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. The bank balances at 31 December 2022 carry
interest at the prevailing market rate ranging from 0.01% to
0.38% (2021: 0.01% to 0.38%) per annum.

The Group’s bank balances and cash denominated in RMB
amounted to HK$187,373,000 (2021: HK$106,915,000) at 31
December 2022. Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies
is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.
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23.

24,

AR - BEERE BN
15 (#8)

H i EUGRIAREAENIATEAZ L
EE BN 2022 FEEEEBRINATE

- BEBEL 3,368,000 T - RE
RR2022F 12 A1 HWES M &
o JIE U FRIB A BRIE N o

FA A IDERAEHNEARRIAL
EHAEE -

MITERCEBRITER
RITHEBRRES

RITER

R 20224F 2021 F12 A31H @ $R177F
FAEEI 123.3% 2 BIEFEMRAE
[REIHAR B 2021 F#E3F = 2024 FEIH] -

EERRITEM

EEFRITFRECERTRITESR
ETAEERITHENEFENTFR
M2022F 12831 B BEEHEFER
562,630,000 7t (2021 4 : 342,017,000
B EA—FRIHMETERK
EREENER BIEwoEARBE
E - BEHEBIRITTE RSN EERBRT
BRI RRRR

MN2022F 12 8310 DA FHFR
BN F0.3% E0.38% (2021 F : 0.3% &
0.38%) FFFIEREHE o

RITERRAR

RITEHR LA EASERENES
MEREIEAB A =18 A kAR EHRT
TFR > R2022F 12 A 31 B IR 1745 &
T T0.01% £ 0.38% (2021 F : 0.01%
£0.38%) WIRITHHF M EETE -

M2022F 12 A31H REEMUAREK
FHERIRTTE % LIRS A 187,373,0007%
7C (20214 : 106,915,000/ 7T) - AR
BE S A PK OIS ZB 38 < AR B AN B R A4
MEEE - SEMEEERTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& M H R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

25. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. BHERM - BNEBEREMIE
= ~
AND ACCRUALS FTREUARFERER
2022 2021
2022 2021 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
Trade payables (Note a) FETERFR (M 3Ea) 393,639 400,649
Bills payables (Note a) FE =& (Ffska) 938,391 763,867
1,332,030 1,164,516
Other payables H A ET A
—lE—EHBAFR
— Consideration payable on acquisition of FERAE (B3R 40)
a subsidiary (Note 40) (Note b) (ffzEb) - 11,000
- Others —HAb 40,956 16,971
40,956 27,971
Accrued expenses TEHRRISZ 31,477 25,863
Value added tax payables JE TS E R 2,571 4,584
75,004 58,418
1,407,034 1,222,934
Note: BIaE -
(@)  The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on (a) MIMEHKR REZAH2INEMER
the invoice dates at the end of the reporting period is as follows: RIBREC A ITANT -
2022 2021
20225 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FA&T
0 to 90 days 0E 90K 319,400 319,546
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 69,379 72,788
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 2,969 1,415
Over 365 days 365 KA 1,891 6,900
393,639 400,649
The average credit period on purchase of goods is from 30 days to HKEERNTEHEERAORENK - K
90 days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to SEEHEV BRI EIRBR - ARRA
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe. BREMERERFEINEEHRALLS -
All the bills payables are aged within 180 days. FiE RN ZRIERERES R180KA ©
(o)  The consideration payable on acquisition of a subsidiary was fully (o) BHZE2022F12A31ALFE  WE—MH
settled during the year ended 31 December 2022. MEARMENRESBHRES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 26. fTEE€mM T A
2022 2021
20225 2021 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti&xT FHET
Currency forward contract BERBEH 3,162 -
Major terms of the currency forward contract are as follow: BEERAEHNNEZBRINT
Nominal amount Maturity Exchange rates aE LG Ex
At 31 December 2022 72022 %F
12A31H
Buy US$9,140,990 10 May 2023 US$1:RMB7.152 880,140,990 20234 1ETH
e 50108 AR%71527
27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. 8NEaE
2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 &
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET FHT
Advances received to deliver goods B E U ELR E R 10,766 22,499

As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$6,210,000.

In general, the Group receives certain percentage of the contract
sum as advance payment from the customers upon signing of
the sales contracts.

The change in contract liabilities in 2022 was mainly due to the
decrease in purchases order from customers in 2022.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2022
that was included in the contract liabilities as at 31 December
2021 was HK$22,499,000 (2021: HK$6,210,000). There
was no revenue recognised in the current year that related to
performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior year.
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MR2021F1A1H - AHBEEBEA
6,210,000 7T, ©

—RME AREREZHESNRR
EPEB—EBDLNAHNESBIERTE
5RIA -

2022 F A X BEMNEE) J)E B RN 2022
FRPHIRBITER DM -

R2021F12 AIAME N B EBER
E2022F 12 AT H I FEMRMHUZE
22,499,000 7T (2021 4F : 6,210,000
L) cBMER AT ERREBETER
MBI ETHURES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 28. SRIT R HABEFK
2022 2021
2022 2021 4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TiExT FHET
Secured: B
Trust receipts loans (Note a) ERBEER (FiEa) 59,169 42,885
Other bank loans (Note b) EMRrTER (MiEb) 143,823 199,619
Other loans (Note ¢) HEmE K (fsEc) 3,534 55,405
206,526 297,909
Unsecured: KR
Other bank loans (Note b) HEmRITER (MsEb) 237,882 27,520
444,408 305,429
Carrying amount repayable (based on JEEERTE(RESHNER
scheduled repayment dates set out in HENTETERBH)
loan agreements):
Within one year R—FK 431,553 277,363
More than one year but not exceeding fRE— AT HBA R
two years 12,855 31,065
More than two years but not exceeding BEMEETNBRASE
five years - 17,001
444,408 325,429
Less: Carrying amount of bank and other W EREBREERE—FA
borrowings that are not repayable EEEREKRERERSR
within one year from the end of the IERAIRTT R E A S 3N
reporting period but contain EEEGRSEE
a repayment on demand clause HTHR)
(shown under current liabilities) (12,855) (48,066)
Less: Carrying amount repayable within B R—FAEERBERE
one year and contain a repayment KEBERIMERE
on demand clause (55,501) (55,236)
Less: Carrying amount repayable within B RN EREE R E
one year without contain a repayment BEREREERGKK
on demand clause B AR E B (376,052) (222,127)
Amount shown under current liabilities KRB B EE TR FIE (444,408) (325,429
Amount shown under non-current liabilities RIEMB B EIB T REIRIE - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

Notes:

(@  Asat 31 December 2022, trust receipts loans with carrying amounts of
HK$59,169,000 (2021: HK$42,885,000) carry floating rate of interest
of 1-month HIBOR/LIBOR plus 2.5% (2021: 1-month HIBOR/LIBOR
plus 2.5%) per annum and was due within 3 months (2021: within 3
months).

(b) As at 31 December 2022, other bank loans of approximately
HK$306,388,000 and HK$75,317,000 carry interest at fixed rates and
floating rates respectively (2021: HK$162,060,000 and HK$65,079,000
respectively). The range of effective interest rates per annum on the
Group’s other bank loans are as follows:

Fixed rates other bank loans* EFEEMIBITER”

ERRITREFBFE,

Floating rates other bank loans ¥ B/ #l| & H b $R 1T & 3%

HEBREFFENM0.85% EF1.90% =ER

28. SRIT R H At &K (4&)

FAE

(@ 2022912 A31H - BE®E (859,169,000
75 7T (2021 4F : 42,885,000 7T) #I15 7L Uk
BEFE-—MAABERTRERENE
WBERITRI R EFEIN2.5% (2021 4 :
—EABBRITRERBFER MeHIRT
EIZEHFEFEMN2.5%)KIZEVFH K58 -
WHA=EAREIE (2021 F : Z@AR) °

() F72022%F12A31H  EMRTERY
306,388,0007% 7T & 75,317,000 7% 7T 5 Bl A
E A = RF B AR B (2021 4F : 9 7l
7%162,060,0007% 7T } 65,079,000 JT) °
REBEMBITEROEREFN KRG EN

T
2022 2021
2022 2021 4F
3.65-4.85% 4.76-6.5%

HIBOR/LIBOR plus
2.50%-2.75%

HIBOR/LIBOR plus
2.50%-3.00%
BEERITRAEFSFE

MBIRITRIZER S B IRITRIZER &
FIZEA12.50% E2.75% F % 412.50% % 3.00%
LPR plus 0.85% to 1.90% LPR plus 0.90% to 3.75%

ERFIEN0.90% = 38.75%

*

The interest rate is reference to a current HIBOR/LIBOR plus
certain fixed percentage.

(c) As at 31 December 2022, the other loans of approximately
HK$3,534,000 (2021: HK$55,405,000) carried floating interest at
4.85% (2021: 4.98%). In 2019, Huizhou Wai Chi Electronics Company
Limited* (“Huizhou Wai Chi”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered
into a sales and leaseback agreement for financing with an amount
of HK$24,560,000. Pursuant to which, Huizhou Wai Chi sold certain
plant and machineries to a financial institution (the “lessor”), which
shall then be leased back for use by Huizhou Wai Chi, with the lease
period of 2 years from the date of inception. Upon expiry of the lease
term, Huizhou Wai Chi has the right to repurchase the leased assets
in accordance with the agreed terms and with a consideration of a
nominal amount of RMB1,000. The loan has been further extended for
2 years to 9 February 2023.
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Y BRNXRDL2EEREBRITRERSNE
S RBRITREFRSFIEMETEALLEH -

© H2022412 A31H » #3,534,000% 7T
(2021 4 : 55,405,000 7T) 1) H fth & Zi%
4.85% (2021 4F : 4.98%) KB K& 8. -
R2019F - AEBEHNBAREMNELEETF
ERAR ((EMEERED I ZHEEROAR
3% BB & 524,560,000 T © Itk
BMNEEHEETHERESEETT —Hd
B (THEAND @ HEBHEBAREEN
FEER HHEMBBER2F - R
HiEme  BMNESEERIBEETIAR
EREBARBI000THELDRAELEE - &
REHE— P 2FE2023F2H9H -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d) As at 31 December 2022, secured bank and other borrowings of
HK$206,526,000 (2021: HK$297,909,000) were secured by:

i The pledge of certain property, plant and equipment and
investment property of the Group with carrying amount of
HK$163,121,000 and HK$24,700,000 respectively (2021:
HK$187,311,000 and HK$26,300,000 respectively);

ii. The pledge of certain right-of-use assets with carrying amount of
HK$31,795,000 (2021: HK$35,680,000);

iii. The pledged of certain trade receivables with carrying amount of
approximately HK$28,258,000
iv.  The pledge of bank deposits as set out in Note 24.
() As at 31 December 2022, the Group has undrawn available

trade financing and bank loan facilities of HK$57,671,000 (2021:
HK$472,601,000).

29. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes.

28. SRITR HMERR ()

MisE - (88)

(@) F 2022412 A31H - 206,526,000% 7T
(20214 : 297,909,000 7T) ) B K 17 4§
TREMEBERTIATY AR -

iv.

IR E S 54 163,121,000 7T
124,700,000 7 7T (2021 4F = 5 5l A
187,311,0007% 7t & 26,300,000 7% 7T
ZAEEETYE  BEREEAR
WEWE

X BR F A 4 31,795,000 7% 7T (2021
% : 35,680,000/ 7T) & T F A
BE:

35 9 B T (5 4) /328,258,000 %8 7T 2
BT RURER

AN EE 24 BT EL - HARIRITIFAN o

) 20229 12A31H  AEEERKIRWME
SEERIEITERBES7,671,0007% T
(2021 4 : 472,601,000/ 7T) °

28. EHEHLE

DT

Deferred tax assets FEETRIEE E
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIERE

T ABIETBHRE BN ZIELERIBLS
2022 2021

2022 20214

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FET

9,254 8,052

(368) (369)

8,886 7,684
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 831 H I FfE

29. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised and movements thereof during the current and prior
years:

29. IEFEFIA (4R)
7R [ 3B 1 4 [ BT R R A E RSB
BAE (BE) REEHMT

At 1 January 2021
Charged to profit or loss
(Note 11)

7H2021F1 A1H
REF B (FsE11)

Exchange realignment HE 5, 8 B

At 31 December 2021 and 2021 F12 A31 H

1 January 2022 2022F1A1H
Credit to profit or loss (Note 11) R85t A (HFsE11)
Exchange realignment HE 5, 38 B

At 31 December 2022 M2022F12 A 31 H

Difference
between
depreciation
allowance Impairment
and related and
depreciation allowances
EREGR
HEE
=8 WAE R 1A A%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
T FHIT FHET
(381) 8,312 7,931
13 (494) (481)
- 234 234
(368) 8,052 7,684
- 1,879 1,879
- (677) (677)
(368) 9,254 8,886

As the end of the reporting period, certain subsidiaries of the
Group had aggregate unused tax losses of HK$64,147,000
(2021: HK$53,060,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of these unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit stream of these subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2022,
tax losses of HK$11,585,000 (2021: HK$7,251,000) will be
expired within 5 years from 2018. With effective from 1 January
2018, the tax losses incurred by “High and New Technology
Enterprise” (‘HNTE”) of HK$52,562,000 (2021: HK$34,382,000)
will expire in ten years from the year in which the loss originated
in 2015. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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RIREBER  AEEETHBE QR A M
EHARFBORB AR BABERE S
64,147,000 7% 7T (2021 4F : 53,060,000 %
JL) o AR B ATEBIZ S B A R R R
FER MU ERZERDERIEEE
HWREET I8 E ZE - 7202212 A 31
B - FHIEEE 11,585,000 7T (2021 4F
7,251,000 7T) #5 B 2018 F #£ 5 F (N F
Hi o 5201841 A1 B - [mEF T
¥ ((SHENeE) EE2HEREIE
52,562,000 % 7T (2021 £F : 34,382,000 %
T B EBRELEFE2015FRTER
JEm o EAth BB A] PR B4 uE o
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30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

As the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of HK$113,062,000 (2021:
HK$116,281,000). A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to HK$59,110,000 (2021: HK$51,438,000) of
such temporary differences. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to the remaining HK$53,952,000 (2021:
HK$64,843,000) as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can
be utilised.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards (the “Post-2008 Earnings”). Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary difference attributable to the
“Post-2008 Earnings” amounting to HK$518,439,000 (2021:
HK$566,489,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

CORPORATE BOND

In 2017, the Group issued a 7.5 year corporate bond with
principal amount of HK$2,000,000 to an independent third
party, net of direct expenses of HK$300,000, which will be due
in September 2023. The corporate bond carries interest at a
fixed rate of 8% per annum with interest payable annually in
arrears. The corporate bond is unsecured. The effective interest
rate of the corporate bond is approximately 11.05% per annum.

29.

30.

RAEFRIE (48)

PR E B R - AL B AR E R
# % /5113,062,000%8 7T (2021 4F -
116,281,000 70) E R ZEEH
M 2= 25 F 59,110,000 7T (2021 4F ¢
51,438,000 7t) MERIELE T 18 & E o
PR A FE RR A 1B 8 AT AR 1K 8 P R
BEMEEZREMA T A M ERGT
53,952,000 7T (2021 4F : 64,843,000
TL) ERIBEETIBEE o

RIBCZEMEH L 820081 H1H
e - A EIF B A B B EL AT BRERE ([ 2008
FEROMEF) WREBEHIFENE © B
A7 £ 1B A 422 ) 488 (o] B B 1 = AV B R
MBBEREERIETENITERD
PR - A N R AR A BT SRR A
L2008 F M EF | EBHEREEE
518,439,000 7T (2021 £ : 566,489,000
PETT) BRI R A VE H B o

YNGILEE

R2017F » REBEMBULE= FETAR
% 882,000,000 LRI 7.5F A EIES -
0B & # B 5 300,000 7T+ #§ 72023
FOAEH - REEHIRETEFEEE%
AR (BFHAIZIMNFE) - RRIEH
WHEKE - REEFNERTFNENA

11.05% °
HK$’'000
TAET

At 1 January 2021 R2021F1A1H 1,896
Effective interest expenses (Note 10) ERFEFRZ (F:E10) 200
Interest paid during the year FAERFE (160)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R2021F12 A31HK2022%F1A1H 1,936
Effective interest expenses (Note 10) ERFERZ (iE10) 200
Interest paid during the year FAEMFE (160)
At 31 December 2022 20224912 A31 H 1,976
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

31. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 31. BT ##Bh

HK$’'000

T

At 1 January 2021 R20219F1A1H 18,398
Government grants utilised during the year (Note 7) FRE BB (FE7) (146)
Exchange realignment ME W I 541

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R2021F12 A31HK2022%F1A1H 18,793
Government grants utilised during the year (Note 7) FAEBBT B (FIFE7) (140)
Exchange realignment ME W S (1,453)

At 31 December 2022 R2022F 12 A31H 17,200

As at 31 December 2022, the government grants of
HK$17,200,000 (2021: HK$18,793,000) which were designated
for certain research projects, export incentives, technical
innovation, localisation incentives and fiscal refund were granted
by the PRC municipal government. The government grants of
HK$17,200,000 (2021: HK$18,793,000) is stated as non-current
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position as
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that certain
conditions in respect of these grants will not be fulfilled within

R2022% 12 A31H - EEERARE TH
FIEE - WO HRE - BRI AIE - #h5 8E
T8 B B R 589 BRURT 48 B 17,200,000 74
7t (20214F : 18,793,000 7T) Jy & &
BEHBART BREARBIESERER
TEREREBRERKI2ME A ANE
RZEMPHE TIHRME  WERFE
17,200,000 7T (2021 £ : 18,793,000
T0) RERE W IEIRR RIBR RIERBIALE -

the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

32. SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 is as follows:

BRO0TBTHERK
EE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
Authorised

32.

Number of shares

RABHE

A
RANBIR2022F & 2021F 12 A31 B A
fEAIN TR

Share capital

LTS

2022 2021
2022 F 20215
HK$'000 HK$'000

TEx TAT

At 1 January and 31 December R1A1BR12A31H 1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000 10,000 10,000

Issued and fully paid BETRER

At 1 January and 31 December R1A1BR12A31H 216,825,000 216,825,000 2,168 2,168
33. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 3B.EEHFRERSH

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered
into a lease arrangement in respect of acquisition of right-of-use
assets with a total capital value at the inception of the lease of
HK$3,100,000 (2021: HK$2,381,000).

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group has entered
into the following significant transactions with related parties
during the year.

(a) Compensation of key management
personnel

Other than the remuneration paid to the directors and
employees of the Group as set out in Note 13, who are
considered as the key management personnel of the
Group, the Group did not have any other significant
compensations to key management personnel.
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34.

REZE2022F12A31BIEFE K
EERNAERNLSESEEARNEBME
3,100,000 7t (2021 4F : 2,381,000
TR REEER Y —EHEERHE -

BEALXR B RER

BREaMBEHRREMBIFINZ S
REgIN AEBEECRFERNEREAL
RIMIATERRS °

() FEEEASNHE

BRRHE1S BN T AREES
LEE (RERBRAEETEE
BAB)MHMN  AEELER
TEEEABXNEMEMEAR

f& -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

(a)

(b)

202

Compensation of key management
personnel (continued)

The remuneration of the directors of the Company and key
management personnel of the Group is determined by the
board of directors of the Company having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

Banking facilities and bank and other
borrowings

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, certain banking
facilities and other borrowings of the Group were
guaranteed by Mr. Yiu Chi To, the ultimate controlling
party and the director of the Company, and Ms. Luk Fong,

4. EALRR B RER ()

() FEEEAENHIE (F)

ARREFERAGETEEEAR
MFMBE AL EFTSLERMEA
KEMTEBBEE -

(b) SRITRMBLURBITREHth
B=
2022 F 2021 F12 A31H » |
RSB RARAREEREE %
Rk EE A 2 BBk L e
REOAEBEE TRITRHE R EAE

spouse of Mr. Yiu Chi To, to the following extent: EQ (1N

2022 2021

2022 20214

HK$’000 HK$’'000

T FHET

Ms. Luk Fong b5 2+ 538,453 428,082
Mr. Yiu Chi To (passed away on ok B 5 A

28 January 2022) (PA2022 %1 A 28 HEHH) - 1,484,834

538,453 1,912,916
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 4. FAEATRGREGRR (E)

BALANCES (continued)

(c) Other related parties transactions

(c) HittBAZEA LR 5

2021

20214

Name of company Nature of transaction HK$’000

NEEB XEHE TET
Maxtone Electronics Limited (“Maxtone”) Lease and interest payment

BFRETARAR(BEE] HE MABRRK 1,182

A director of the Group, Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, has beneficial
interest in Maxtone. The above transaction has determined
and agreed by the Group and the relevant party.

In 2019, the Group entered into a two-year lease in respect
of office premises from Maxtone. The amount of rent
payable by the Group under the lease is HK$98,500 per
month. In 2021, the Group has renewed this two-year
lease upon expiry. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of HK$2,256,000 were recognised at the commencement
of the lease.

On 11 November 2021, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, and her connected persons of
the Group, at a consideration of HK$91,000,000 for the
acquisition of Maxtone (note 40). The acquisition has been
completed on 30 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
made lease payment of HK$1,182,000 to Maxtone before
the completion of the acquisition.
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AEE-REEUERLLIHAE
EENEDED DR ZIHAR
B AR A LB E MG E

R2019%F - ARERESFENNA
METLAFMENHEE - N&EH
RIEAEREMNNEL AT A 98,500
BIL e R2021F  AEBEREM
NEEZABPMFMNEE - REE
FERECRRCAREEREES
1&2,256,000 7 7T °

MN2021 11 B11 B AEERE
2EMBAREKREMZLERER
EEBEBEATITVEE RS  UR
£ 91,000,000 7T U B8 & = 8 (K
FT40) - WIEEIEE M 2021F 12 A
30H =K °

REZE2021F12A31 B IEFE

AEBERKEZKAABEEEY
TR EFIE1,182,000/8 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 35. BIREFIETE

The Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
Group contributes 5% of relevant costs to the scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees. The contributions from
each of the employer and employees are subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary established in
the PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefits
schemes operated by the PRC government. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes is to make the required contributions under
the scheme.

The Group made contributions to the retirement benefits
schemes of HK$22,553,000 (2021: HK$20,247,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M5 RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

Financing
1/1/2022  cash flows

22F  @ERSE
1A1H ikt

36.

Finance
incoostd
(Note 10)

EE%E
BREA
(Wt 10)

MERTHEEZRRZHIR

TERENAEERELTHELZARBE
B BRASLIRSEH -ANRD
MEXERELY BRELIELEZR
BERERIBENBREERATRER
MIREREIRKIRERE

Non-cash changes
37k ]

New
leases Government Foreign
arrangement grants  exchange
(Note 17&33)  recognised movements  31/12/2022

FHERH B 2028
(HE17R33)  BA#E  HEZEH  12A31A

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER Tin Ti#x TEx TEx TER TEx
Interest payable (includedin -~ RIS (G AZ
other payables) ERTE) 61 (39,989) 39,989 - - () 56
Bankand otherborowings AT REMER
(Note 28) (Rt 28) 325429 173,264 - - - (54285 444,408
Corporate bond (Note 30) NEEH (M330) 1,036 (160) 200 - - - 1,976
Government grants (Note 31) B #i8) (Fi&£31) 18,793 10,841 - - (10,981) (1,459) 17,200
Leas liabilties (Note 17) RERBMHE7) 16,133 (6,772) - 3,100 - (1,099) 11,362
362,352 137,184 40,189 3,100 (10,981) (56,842) 475,002
Non-cash changes
FREED
Finance New
costs leases  Government Foreign
Financing incurred  arrangement grants exchange
1/1/2021 cash flows (Note 10) (Note 17&33)  recognised ~ movements  31/12/2021

BEE HHEZH

WIE FERE  BBAL (Wsz17 R M1
1A18 wE (W) R3%)  BAEH  HER 127318
HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
Tin Fhn FAT TET TET TAT Tin

Interest payable (ncludedin -~ RTS8 (FFAEH
other payables) FEfI3E) - 26,112) 26,153 - - 20 61

Bank and other borowings /7R EMER
(Note 28) (FitsEo8) 346,569 (45,565) 17 441 - - 6,984 325,429
Corporate bond (Note 30) NS (HzE30) 1,896 (160) 200 - - - 1936
Government grants (Note 31) B #8) (FizE31) 18,398 5,296 - - (5,442) 541 18793
Lease liabilties (Note 17) BERE M7 24,393 (11,143 1,181 1179 - 523 16,133
391,256 (77,684) 44,975 1179 (5,442) 8,068 362,352
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company:

2014 Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2014 Scheme”),
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 27 October
2014 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees, and will expire on 24 October 2024.
Under the 2014 Scheme, the board of directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

At 28 June 2022, 4,710,000 share options were granted by the
Company to a number of eligible participants (the “Grantees”)
under the 2014 Scheme. The share options will entitle the
Grantees to subscribe for 4,710,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company. The vesting period of 2014 Scheme is 12
months from the date of grant of the share option. The details
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 28 June
2022.

2014 Scheme was terminated pursuant to a resolution passed
on 19 December 2022 due to the expiration of 2014 Scheme on
24 October 2024. The management of the Company proposes
to take the opportunity to adopt a new share option scheme
to replace the 2014 Scheme. The options granted prior to
such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the rules of the 2014 Scheme. The details were
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 19 December
2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company: (continued)

2014 Share Option Scheme (continued)

At 31 December 2022, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the 2014 Scheme was 4,710,000 (31 December 2021:
nil), representing 2.2% (31 December 2021: nil) of the shares of
the Company in issue at that date. The total number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued and
to be issued in respect of which options granted and may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholders or independent
non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time from 12 months from the
date of grant of the share option to the 10 anniversary of the
date of grant. The exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (i)
the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal
value of the Company’s share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 831 H I FfE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. MR A RIE2XR 5 (88)

(continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme of the AR EE 2 B8 :
Company: (continued) (48)
2014 Share Option Scheme (continued) 2014 FEERR RERH 8 (48)
The following tables disclose movements of the Company’s TREBEARRQAEZE2022F12 431 H
share options under 2014 Scheme during the year ended 31 LIEFE 2014 F5H 8B T 2 BIREZ 5
December 2022: P
Number of option shares
ERERRHE
Outstanding
Outstanding Granted Exercised at
Exercise Vesting  Exercisable at1January during during Lapseof 31 December
Category Date of grant price period  period 2022 the year theyear  share options 2022
#2022% o02F
1B1H 12A31R
gA RLAH kR 5RE | HATE  FRERM  FREOE  BREXY HALTE
HKS
&7
Directors of the
Company
ARAES
Mr. Chen Chung Po 28 June 2022 149 Tyear  Note - 800,000 - - 800,000
RiEts 202567288 1£ it
Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu 28 June 2022 1.49 1 year Note - 400,000 - - 400,000
BEBRL 202567288 1£ it
Ms. Yong Jian Hui 28 June 2022 149 Tyear  Note - 400,000 - - 400,000
ERANT 202567288 1£ firit
Mr. Chen Wei Wu 28 June 2022 1.49 1 year Note - 200,000 - - 200,000
REntE 202564288 1£ fiit
Employee
of the Company 28 June 2022 149 1 year Note - 2,910,000 - - 2,910,000
FRAER 202564288 1% iR
- 4,710,000 - - 4,710,000
Exercisable at the end
of the year -
RERATR
Weighted average exercise
price (HKS) - 149 - - 149
METHEE (B7)
Note: The options may be exercised at any time from 12 months from the Mt ERET R BRER D BHEF12EA
date of grant (i.e. 28 June 2023) of the share option up to and inclusive (BN20234 6 A28H) £203246 A27H
of 27 June 2032. (B¥EZA) BIFEERT6E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company: (continued)

2014 Share Option Scheme (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, options were
granted on 28 June 2022 (2021: nil). The estimated fair value of
the option granted on that date is approximately HK$3,816,000.

The fair value was calculated using The Black-Scholes pricing
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

37. MR A RIE2XR 5 (88)

ARRUERER 2B E
(IIE)

2014 F B #ESHEI (4])

HZE2022F12A31BIEFE - R
2022 6 A28 H X 1 AR # (2021 4 :
&) ERHERENZABNGTA
S ABE#) 43,816,000 7T °

RAETIABA T — FRATEERNG
B BRAZBHAZELT

2022
2022

Weighted average share price N (E
Exercise price TR fE
Expected volatility JELENE]
Expected life T8 HA 4F Bf
Risk-free rate Rk =
Expected dividend yield TEER Bl e X

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 10
years. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$1,955,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil)
in relation to share options granted by the Company.

2022 Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2022 Scheme”),
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 19 December
2022 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees, and will expire on 18 December 2032.
Under the 2022 Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company. The details were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 19 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there are no share
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
2022 Scheme. The vesting period of 2022 Scheme is 12 months
from the date of grant of the share option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ ZE20224F12 A31H IFFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company: (continued)

2022 Share Option Scheme (continued)

At 31 December 2022, no share in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under the 2022
Scheme. The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors
in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time from 12 months from the
date of grant of the share option to the 10 anniversary of the
date of grant. The exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii)
the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal
value of the Company’s share.

Share Award Scheme

The Company’s share award scheme (the “Award Scheme”),
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 19 December
2022 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees, and will expire on 18 December 2032.
Under the Award Scheme, the directors of the Company may
award shares to eligible employees, including directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there are no share
had been granted under the Award Scheme. The vesting period
is 12 months from the date of grant of the share.

At 31 December 2022, no share had been awarded to any
individuals under the Award Scheme. The total number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued
and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point
in time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholders or independent
non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. AR BRI R
THE COMPANY

2022 2021
2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Ff 5% FET FHTT
Non-current asset kREEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—RENBERARZ&RE 135,000 135,000
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIE - Ze &
receivables H b W s IE 1,590 1,590
Amounts due from subsidiaries JrE U B BB B 5B (@) 192,415 193,622
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS 1,353 1,352
195,358 196,564
Current liability nEAaE
Corporate bond NAEFH 1,976 -
Other payables and accruals Hin e IERTERER 665 586
2,641 586
Net current assets MBEEFE 192,717 195,978
Total assets less current liabilities & EifREN & & 327,717 330,978
Non-current liability FRBEE
Corporate bond NAfEFH - 1,936
Net assets BEFE 327,717 329,042
Capital and reserves BARRGHE
Share capital & s 2,168 2,168
Reserves e (b) 325,549 326,874
Total equity BRERS 327,717 329,042
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 831 H I FfE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. A E M AR & ()
THE COMPANY (continued)
Notes: 5 -
(@)  The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and (@) MERMEBRRIFBEIEER REURE
are repayable on demand. REREE-
()  Movements in reserves (b)) FEEE
Share
option Accumulated
reserve premium losses Total
BiRREGRE g8 RitEBHE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHT FAET
As at 1 January 2021 2021 F1HA1H - 331,977 (4,892) 327,085
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEEER 2R YL BE
expense for the year - - (211) (211)

As at 31 December 2021 and 1 72021612 31 A )
January 2022 2022%F1A1A - 331,977 (5,103) 326,874

Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEEER 2R YL BE

expense for the year - - (3,280) (3,280)
Recognition of equity-settled R UARE S 4 B IR (5

share-based payments S FB (H3E37)

(Note 37) 1,955 - - 1,955
As at 31 December 2022 R20226 12 A31A 1,955 331,977 (8,383) 325,549
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

39. SUBSIDIARIES 39. B A E]
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: ARARMBARMFEBENT
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of paid share capital/ interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment  operation registered capital  Form of legal entity attributable to the Company Principal activities
iR/ BETRERR
WEARARE RUME EEMA A/imES  EARENA ARIEERE RREAL IEER
Direct Indirect
E% 3
2022 2021 2022 2021
02F Winkd 202F Rk
Wincrider Technology Company ~ The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Company with imited ~ 100% ~ 100% - - Investment holding
Limited AERAES BE US$100 bty REZR
LER10ET  BRAA
Techwide Management Company  The BV Hong Kong Ordlnary shares ~ Gompany with imited - - 100%  100%  Investmentholding
Limited iBRAEE AR US$100 bty REZK
EBRI0ZT  ARAA
Wi Chi Electronic Technology ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Company with limited - - 100%  100%  Investmentholding
Management Company Limted ~ &% 3 HK$100000  liabilty RERHR
EFETHRERRRAT EaER100000ET  ARRA
Ecosquare Energy Company The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Company with imited - - 100%  100%  Investmentholding
Limited iBRAEE AR US$100 bty REER
EERI00ET  ARLA
Wai Chi Energy Services Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Gompany with imited - - 100%  100%  Investmentholding
Company Limited & (3 HK$100000  liabiity REBR
EHEEREARAR LaRi00000%T  BERLA
Alled Solution Gompany Limited ~ The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Gompany with imited - - 100%  100%  Investment holding
iBRaEE PR US$100 bty REBR
takioxr  ARAE
Wai Chi Group (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Gompany with imited - - 100%  100%  Investment holding
EEEBARAA (2 (3 HK$135,100,000  fiabilty REZR
Ak ERLA
135,100,000/ 0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

39. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. it @ 2 8] (4&)
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of paid share capital/ interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment  operation registered capital  Form of legal entity attributable to the Company Principal activities
iERL/ BETRMRR
WEARAR RUME RN A/iMER  EARREA ARARERE RREAMN IBRE
Direct Indirect
E# [}
2022 IV 2022 I
02F Pk 202F R
Wai Chi Opto Technology Limited  Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Company with limited - - 100%  100%  Tracing of LED
EEXEERAA B 3 HK$62,380,000  liabilty backight and
tak  ARLA lighting products
62,380,000 and semiconductor
memory chips
BELEDEY - BH
ERRVERR
ik
BEAE(RIERLF The PRC The PRC Registered capital ~ Company with Imited - - 100%  100%  Manufacture and sale
(Note ) # ﬁF RMBA7,128,000 liability of LED backight
(Pta) ahEr  ARAF and lighting
ARH97.128,0007 products and
sourcing business
RERHELED
ERRERER
RixBE%
ZikEExE(ER)ERAT  ThePRC The PRC Registered capital ~ Company with Imited - - 100%  100%  Manufacture and sale
(Note b) # ﬁF RMB30,000,000 liabilty of LED lighting
(FizED) HfER  BRLE products and
AR30,00000070 provision of LED
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39. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, £2022%12 531 H It FE

30. B8] (88)

Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of paid share capital/ interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment  operation registered capital  Form of legal entity attributable to the Company Principal activities
iERL/ BETRMRR
WEARAR RUME RN A/iMER  EARREA ARARERE RREAMN IBRE
Direct Indirect
E# [}
2022 IV 2022 I
20015 2001%
AMETREERLE The PRC The PRC Registered capital ~ Company with imited - - 100%  100%  Manufacture and sale
(Note b) ol mE RMB5,000,000 liability of LED lighting
(FzED) HfER  BRLE products
ARE5,000,0007T HERBELED
RAER
ENEFETERAA The PRC The PRC Registered capital ~ Company with Imited - - 100%  100%  Manufacture and sale
(Note b) HE mE RMB144,113,349  liabilty of LED backight
(ED) ahEr  ARAF and lighting
AR 1441133000 products
RERHELEDE Y
REHER
ESRTRLEE (2N The PRC The PRC Registered capitel ~ Company vith fmited - - 100%  100%  Inectie
ERAF Noteb) hE hE US$3,720000  liabilty EEex
(F3to) iMEx  ARRA
3720000%7T
ENEEXEREERAA ThePRC The PRC Registered capital ~ Company with Imited - - 100%  100%  Manufacture and sale
(Note b} # ﬁF RMB4,838,290 liability of LED backight
(HizFb) HfER  BRLE products
AR 48382907 HERBELED
EtER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

39. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. fff & 2 B (48)
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of paid share capital/ interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment  operation registered capital  Form of legal entity attributable to the Company Principal activities
iERL/ BETRMRR
WEARAR RUME EENE A/iMER  EARREA ALTEERE RREAAL IBRE

2022 2021 2022 2021
2022F BE 02F RE

Direct Indirect

3 &

EMESTERERAT The PRC The PRC Registered capital ~ Company with Imited
(Note ) HE ol RMB5,000000  liability
(Ftztb) AMER  ARAA
AR #5,000,0007T
Maxtone Electronics Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Company with limited
(Note ¢ B 3 HK$100 liability
BRI TARNA(Hitc) tEk  ARRT
1007

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during
the years.

Notes:
(@  The entity is wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.
(b)  These entities are limited liability companies established in the PRC.

(c)  On 30 December 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of
Maxtone. Details are disclosed in Note 40.

- - 11% 1%  Manufacturing
and trading of
semiconductor
memory chips
BRtH

- - 100%  100% Property holding
nxHE

BENE QA RRNZFFERTEMES

s
A °

fia -
@ HEBARDBRIONEBACE -
b HEEBARGERIHERAF -

€ 2021128308 AEEZKKES
Fil o BRI 40T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12 531 H IFF[E

40. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 30 December 2021, the Group acquired 100% issued
share capital of Maxtone for consideration of HK$91,000,000.
The principal activity of Maxtone is property holding, and its
identifiable assets are mainly investment property and property,
plant and equipment. The Group elected to apply the optional
concentration test in accordance with HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations. This acquisition has been accounted for as
an acquisition of assets rather than a business combination,
given that substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a group of similar identifiable assets
(investment property and property, plant and equipment). The
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition
of subsidiary comprise the following:

40. U B B 2 8]

N2021F 12 A30H » K&EE I
91,000,000 8 TR EBEWEEETEBN
100% B #ITIRA - BEBNEZEBA
MEFHE  EAEFEETEAREY
XURWE BEMEH AEEEE
BIEEBMBIREEANEIFEBLS O
FEREEBMHE TR - ENFTINEEEE
ENETHREAREDERE—HEEMU
MAIHERIEE REMEARDE - BE
R R AORMRBE B IR E E R T Ik
EBAAR - PRI E AR E B E
BHEENAENEAERRE

HK$’000
FHEIT
Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of RIBAERZNEERERE
acquisition
Property, plant and equipment VI - B KR 71,309
Investment property REYE 26,300
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables FENFIE - me R EMEWFIE 73
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNE S 251
Other payables and accruals HEMENFIEREREA (505)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERRAEWEB A HE (6,380)
Income tax payables FETFT1SHE (48)
91,000
Consideration of the acquisition: W HEBRIE -
Cash consideration BeNRE 91,000
Less: consideration paid upon acquisition B RUBEER TR E (80,000)
Consideration payable (included in other payables) ENRE GIAEMERKIE) 11,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31H It FE

40. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 40. Y2 BB B B 2 B (48)
(continued)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of Maxtone WREEESENRESRLEE HK$’000
FAT
Cash consideration paid BENRERE 80,000
Less: bank balances and cash acquired B BREERITEBRRIR S (251)
79,749
41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 4. REHEZHE
The Group as lessor AEBEBEBEA
Gross property rental income earned during the year was FRNBRIDAOMERSRABTEL A
approximately HK$1,361,000 (2021: nil). The Group leases 1,361,000 7T (20214 : ) - AEH
out its investment properties (Note 17) under operating lease BREEEHERHLHAEREYWE (M
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from two H17)  KREBHERENF_E2mE
to four years (2021: two to four years). The terms of the leases (20214 : —ZMF) - HEKRKR—KRE
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits. During the KEPELIMEE - FR KEWENAE
year, the investment properties generated rental yields of 5.5% WK B5.5% (2021 F + &) - i EHE
(2021: nil). None of the leases includes variable payments. BB -
Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable operating RNEB BN T RKBABKEARRSE R
leases in place at the reporting date will be receivable by the B RA G R EE T ARRBAE
Group in future periods as follows: R
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Within one year —F KN 732 1,361
After one year but within two years —FREMFEA 732 732
After two years but within three years WFEREBE=FNR - 732
1,464 2,825
42. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 42. EMBEH
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period. The Company MNEREHRE KA BIIRERDEE
issued 2,900,000 shares to certain directors and employees of FEmMARNAESETEENES /T
the Company under the Share Award Scheme (note 37). The 2,900,000 & B 17 (MF5E37) < FFIBE RN
details were set out in the Company’s announcements dated RN 7l HE A2023F1 17 H %2023
17 January 2023 and 9 February 2023. F2A9BHANE -
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

MR E

Percentage
interest of
Property the Group Floor Area Usage as at 31 December 2021
AEBEIEFHERS
L/ES 2B & R2021F12A31BZ2AR
(sq.ft)
(FHR)
An Industrial complex located in Sanxu 100% 1,807,709  Occupied by the Group for industrial
Village and Meihua Village, Luoyang use
Town, Boluo County, Huizhou,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
— (BRI BER S BN IS EFRERS R REBEREIXERR
RN RGN 2 TEE
A Land Parcel located in Yanjiahe Village, 100% 595,695  Planning for construction of office
Xiaoita, Yiling District, Yichang, Hubei and warehouse for leasing purpose
Province, the PRC
— B AR E BEE T REE VRS SrElEEpAEREBEELEAR
HESLE N Pd::p
An industrial premises located at Unit A, 100% 8,500  Occupied by the Group for use of
6/F., Liven House, 61-63 King Yip Street, warehouse and office
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
— (AR E R N BEEBIE T 61-635% REBEREREERPAE
Tl KECIEAZTN T EEAT
An industrial premises located at Unit B, 100% 6,299 Leased to an independent third party
6/F., Liven House, 61-63 King Yip Street, for use as warehouse
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
—(EGIRE R BRI T 61-635% MTE=A"RERE
Ml KECHEBEN T HEAT
An industrial premises located at Factory 100% 5,340  Currently vacant and planning for

Unit C on 2/F., King Yip Factory Building,
No. 59 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

— AR E B BB B 595
METERNE2ECEN T XK

use as showroom of the Group’s
products

BAT=8 Y& ERERTAEE
7 Y BR 5 =
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEMBHRE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20226 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiE&x FEx FET AT FET
Revenue BEE 2,216,352 1,922,595 1,395,888 2,214,974 2,249,786
Cost of sales HERR (1,953,661) (1,640,398) (1,197,471) (1,986,007) (2,002,523)
Gross profit E ] 262,691 282,197 198,417 228,967 247,263
Operating expenses BERR (203,518) (230,324) (167,716) (188,798) (197,738)
Profit before tax ER TR 59,173 51,873 30,701 40,169 49,525
Income tax credit/(expenses) FEHEL/(BX) (377) 69 329 (3,021) (4,418)
Profit for the year FEFE 58,796 51,942 31,030 37,148 45107
Earnings per share SREF
Basic and diluted (HK$) HEAREE(BT) 0.28 0.24 0.14 0.17 0.21
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE 581,981 647,695 557,002 310,333 368,103
Current assets MENVEE 2,140,806 1,783,944 1,475,013 1,299,379 1,199,444
Current liabilities mEEE (1,871,803) (1,580,287) (1,244,054) (904,404) (887,048)

Total assets less current HEERRBAR

liabilities 850,984 851,352 787,961 705,308 630,499
Non-current liabilities FnBEE (24,583) (31,302) (36,004) (29,619) (20,978)
Net assets BEEE 826,401 820,050 751,867 675,689 659,521
Capital and reserves BARMGE

Share capital A 2,168 2,168 2,168 2,168 2,168
Reserves el 823,119 816,313 747,687 673,521 657,353

Equity attributable to owners of AL T)HH AEIEEZR

the Company 825,287 818,481 749,855 675,689 659,521
Non-controlling interests g 1,114 1,569 2,012 - -
Total equity s 826,401 820,050 751,867 675,689 659,521
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